Public Document Pack

Public Safety and Protection
Committee
Agenda
Date: Tuesday, 27 July 2021
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: The Council Chamber - City Hall, College
Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Guy Poultney (Chair), Amal Ali (Vice-Chair), Marley Bennett, Chris Davies, Richard Eddy,
Tessa Fitzjohn, Katja Hornchen, Jonathan Hucker and Barry Parsons
Copies to: Ashley Clark (Legal Advisor), Lynne Harvey (Legal Advisor), Shreena Parmar (Legal Advisor),
Michael Bonnick, Sarah Flower (Licensing Policy Advisor), Abigail Holman (Licensing Policy Advisor),
Carl Knights (Licensing Policy Advisor), Wayne Jones, Andrew Lyle (Licensing Enforcement Officer) and
Oliver Harrison (Democratic Services Officer)

Issued by: Oliver Harrison, Democratic Services
City Hall, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Tel: 0117 3526162
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Monday, 19 July 2021

Public Safety and Protection Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome and Safety Information
(Pages 4 - 6)

2.

Apologies

3.

Declaration of Interest

4.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

To confirm as a correct record for signing by the Chair.

5.

Public Forum

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item
Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Public Forum items should be emailed to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines
will apply in relation to this meeting:Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5 pm on Wednesday 21 July.
Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your
submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on Monday
26 July.

6.

Suspension of Committee Procedure Rules CMR10 and CMR11
Relating to the Moving of Motions and Rules of Debate

Recommended – that having regard to the quasi-judicial nature of the business
on the Agenda, those Committee Procedure Rules relating to the moving of
motions and the rules of debate (CMR10 and 11) be suspended for the duration
of the meeting.

(Pages 7 - 8)

Public Safety and Protection Committee – Agenda

7.

Revision to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver and
Vehicle Policies
(Pages 9 - 328)

8.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

That under s.100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded
from the meeting for detailed discussion of the preceding item of business (if
required) on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of schedule 12A of the Act.

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
Changes to how we hold public meetings
Following changes to government rules, public meetings including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory
meetings (where planning and licensing decisions are made) and scrutiny will now be held at City Hall.
COVID-19 Precautions at City Hall (from July 2021)
When attending a meeting at City Hall, COVID-19 precautions will be taken, and where possible we
will:
 Have clear signage inviting you to check in to the venue using the NHS COVID-19 app or record
your contact details for track and trace purposes.
 Provide public access that enables social distancing of one metre to be maintained
 Promote and encourage wearing of face coverings when walking to and from the meeting
 Promote good hand hygiene: washing and disinfecting hands frequently
 Maintain an enhanced cleaning regime and continue with good ventilation
COVID-19 Safety Measures for Attendance at Council Meetings (from July 2021)
To manage the risk of catching or passing on COVID-19, it is strongly recommended that any person
age 16 or over attending a council meeting should follow the above guidance but also include the
following:





Show certification of a negative NHS COVID-19 lateral flow (rapid) test result: taken in the 48
hours prior to attending. This can be demonstrated via a text message or email from NHS Test
and Trace.
An NHS COVID-19 Pass which confirms double COVID-19 vaccination received at least 2 weeks
prior to attending the event via the NHS App. A vaccination card is not sufficient.
Proof of COVID-19 status through demonstrating natural immunity (a positive NHS PCR test in
the last 180 days) via their NHS COVID-19 pass on the NHS App.
Visitors from outside the UK will need to provide proof of a negative lateral flow (rapid) test
taken 48 hours prior to attendance, demonstrated via a text message or email.

Reception staff may ask to see this on the day of the meeting.
No one should attend a Bristol City Council event or venue if they:
 are required to self-isolate from another country
 are suffering from symptoms of COVID-19
 have tested positive for COVID-19 and are requested to self–isolate

Page 4

www.bristol.gov.uk

Members of the press and public who wish to attend City Hall are advised that you may be asked to
watch the meeting on a screen in another room due to the maximum occupancy of the venue.
Other formats and languages and assistance for those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee Members and will be published
on the Council’s website before the meeting. Please send it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk.
The following requirements apply:



The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, it may be that only the first sheet will be copied and made available
at the meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine
articles that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the Committee and published within
the minutes. Your statement or question will also be made available to the public via publication on
the Council’s website and may be provided upon request in response to Freedom of Information Act
requests in the future.
We will try to remove personal and identifiable information. However, because of time constraints we
cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement contains information
that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Other committee papers may be placed on the
council’s website and information within them may be searchable on the internet.

Page 5

www.bristol.gov.uk

During the meeting:









Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as
short as one minute.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.
Under our security arrangements, please note that members of the public (and bags) may be
searched. This may apply in the interests of helping to ensure a safe meeting environment for all
attending.
As part of the drive to reduce single-use plastics in council-owned buildings, please bring your own
water bottle in order to fill up from the water dispenser.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items). If you ask a question or make a representation, then
you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have given your consent to this. If you do not wish to
be filmed you need to make yourself known to the webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local
Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means that persons attending meetings may take
photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and report on the meeting (Oral commentary is
not permitted during the meeting as it would be disruptive). Members of the public should therefore
be aware that they may be filmed by others attending and that is not within the council’s control.
The privacy notice for Democratic Services can be viewed at www.bristol.gov.uk/about-ourwebsite/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services

Page 6

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 4

Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Public Safety and Protection
Committee
8 June 2021 at 10.00 am

Members Present:Councillors: Marley Bennett, Chris Davies, Richard Eddy, Jonathan Hucker and Barry Parsons
Officers in Attendance:Lynne Harvey (Legal Advisor), Carl Knights (Licensing Policy Advisor) and Oliver Harrison (Democratic
Services Officer)

1. Welcome and Safety Information
The Clerk welcomed everyone to the meeting and read the safety information.
1. Apologies
Apologies were received from Councillor Guy Poultney and Councillor Amal Ali.
As both the Chair and Vice-Chair could not attend the meeting, Councillor Richard Eddy was nominated by
members to chair today’s business.
1. Declaration of Interest
None received.
1. Minutes of the Previous Meeting
RESOLVED the minutes of the previous meeting 20 January 2021 are agreed as a correct record.
1. Public Forum
None received.

Page 7

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

1. Annual Report 2021/22
The Clerk introduced the Annual Report 2021/22 for the committee.
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.

the membership of the committee was NOTED.
The appointment of Councillor Guy Poultney as Chair for this committee was NOTED.
The appointment of Councillor Amal Ali as Vice-Chair for this committee was NOTED.
The Terms of Reference for the Committee were NOTED.
The meetings dates for the 2021/22 Municipal Year were AGREED.
RESOLVED that the Membership of the Sub-Committees does not have to be politically
proportionate. The Membership of the Sub-Committees is as follows:
Sub-Committee A
Cllr Amal Ali (Vice-Chair / Sub Chair)
Cllr Marley Bennet
Cllr Chris Davies
Cllr Richard Eddy
Cllr Tessa Fitzjohn
Sub-Committee B
Cllr Guy Poultney (Chair / Sub Chair)
Cllr Katja Hornchen
Cllr Jonathan Hucker
Cllr Barry Parsons

G. The Sub-Committee Terms of Reference were NOTED.
Members asked the Licensing Officer whether they could take the taxi driver knowledge test themselves
to increase their understanding of the level of education required for the test. The Licensing Officer
confirmed that this could be arranged.

Meeting ended at 10.15 am
CHAIR __________________

Page 8

Agenda Item 7

BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL
PUBLIC SAFETY AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE
27 July 2021
Report of:
Title:

Ward:

Executive Director, Growth and Regeneration
Revision to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver and
Vehicle Policies due to implementation of Department for
Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards
Citywide

Officer Presenting Report:

Carl Knights, Senior Licensing Officer

Contact Telephone Number: 0117 3574900
RECOMMENDATION
The committee are recommended to:
(1) consider the information within this report and;
(2) Approve the following proposals;
a. Introduction of a Private Hire Operator Policy and amendments to
the Private Hire Operator Licence conditions
b. Proposal to Introduce Mandatory Card and other instantaneous
Payment Facilities in Hackney carriages
c. Amendments to the current:
i. Private Hire Vehicle Policy; with the exception of tint
proposals; see (3) below
ii. Hackney Carriage Vehicle Policy
iii. Private hire vehicle licence conditions
iv. Hackney carriage licence conditions
v. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles Inspection
Standards
vi. Guidelines Relating to the Relevance of Criminal Behaviour
vii. Fit and Proper Person Policy
And incorporation of the above into a single policy document
entitled “Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy”
(3) Consider the consultation comments and Equality Impact Assessment
in relation to the proposal to relax the Private Hire Vehicle policy in
respect of tints in private hirePage
vehicles
9 and determine the appropriate
1

course of action.
Summary
1. The Council has adopted Part II of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. The Council is allowed to
develop and implement a policy in respect of exercising its functions
under the Act.
2. Over recent years it has been recognised by the government that the
existing regulatory framework for Hackney carriage and private hire
licensing was not fit for purpose. Events in Rotherham, Rochdale and
Oxford in particular demonstrated robust changes were needed with
regard to safeguarding. In recognition of this the Task and Finish
Group (TFG) on Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing was
established in 2017 whose aim was to produce recommendations both
legislative and non-legislative to address identified and evidence issues
in respect of Hackney carriage and private hire licensing.
3. In February 2019 the government responded to the TFG report and in
July 2020 the Secretary of State for Transport published the Statutory
Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards under powers contained within
section 177(1) of the Policing and Crime Act 2017. The Department for
Transport (DfT) standards are statutory guidance on exercising
Hackney carriage and private hire licensing functions. The DfT
standards are available here. The Council must have regard to the
standards and the DfT expects the recommendations in the standards
to be implemented unless there is a compelling local reason not to.
4. In addition requests were received from the trade to review the policy
with respect to permitting tinted windows on the rear passenger
windows of private hire vehicles and the introduction of mandatory card
reader and/ other instantaneous Payment Facilities in Hackney
carriages.
The significant issues in the report are
 Introduction of a Private Hire Operator Policy and amendments to the
Private Hire Operator Licence conditions
 Proposal to Introduce Mandatory Card and other instantaneous
Payment Facilities in Hackney carriages
 Amendments to the current:
o Private Hire Vehicle Policy; with the exception of tint proposals;
see (3) below

Page 10
2

o Hackney Carriage Vehicle Policy
o Private hire vehicle licence conditions
o Hackney carriage licence conditions
o Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles Inspection Standards
o Guidelines Relating to the Relevance of Criminal Behaviour
o Fit and Proper Person Policy
And incorporation of the above into a single policy document entitled
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy (Appendix A)
 Consider the consultation comments and Equality Impact Assessment
in relation to the proposal to relax the Private Hire Vehicle policy in
respect of tints in private hire vehicles and determine the appropriate
course of action.
Policy
5. The Council, as the Licensing Authority under the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, is responsible for the licensing of
Hackney carriage and private hire drivers, vehicles, and private hire
operators within its area.
6. As set out above the Council is permitted to develop a policy which sets
out how the Council will deal with the administration of each type of
licence. As a result of the DfT Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
Standards, and requests from the trade, amendments to the Council’s
existing policy are proposed. The Council will always determine each
application on its merits with public safety being the overriding concern.
7. The Council has a legal duty to ensure that all licensed drivers,
proprietors and operators are fit and proper persons to hold a licence.
This includes the power to refuse to grant a licence and suspend or
revoke a licence where an applicant, or licence holder, is not deemed,
or no longer deemed, to be ‘fit and proper’. This can occur where they
have been convicted of or cautioned for criminal and road traffic
offences or where offending behaviour is proved to the satisfaction of
the Council.
Context
8. The Hackney carriage and private hire trade are the only parts of the
public transport system that are operational 24 hours a day, 365 days a
year. It is therefore important that the Council regularly reviews its
policies to ensure it is effective and fit for purpose.
9. The statutory standards recommend that a cohesive policy document
brings together all Hackney carriage and private hire licensing

Page 11
3

procedures including the fitness and propriety test, licence conditions
and vehicle standards.
10.
The Council already has policies in place which cover many of the
recommendations within the standards. These have now been
amended where necessary and consolidated into one policy document.
A copy of the draft policy, entitled “Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Licensing Policy” is attached as Appendix A. Appendix B provides a
summary of the current policy and details of all proposed changes.
11.
As detailed above the DfT expects the statutory standards to be
implemented unless there is a compelling local reason not to do so.
When exercising any relevant functions section 177(4) of the Policing
and Crime Act 2017 provides that the Licensing Authority “must have
regard” to the standards.
12.
In January 2018 members of this committee established a working
group consisting of elected members and officers to consider the recent
national reviews of legislation and determine if any amendments to
Council’s policies were required. The working group also considered
the statutory standards and reviewed the Council’s policies relating to
the Hackney carriage and private hire trade that were not covered by
the statutory standards, including requests from the trade
13.
The working group’s proposals were presented to the members of
this committee on 20 January 2021. Approval was granted for a public
consultation on the proposed changes which took place between 16
February 2021 and 21 March 2021.
14.
Results of the consultation and analysis are available at
Appendix C. 596 responses were received to the consultation survey,
of those 368 responded to all questions. A number of written responses
were also received; these are also available at Appendix C.
15.
The introduction of a private hire operator policy and amendments
to conditions for private hire operators will introduce a number of
requirements for operators to enhance the safety of the public.
16.
The request to make instantaneous payment facilities/card
readers mandatory in Hackney carriages was submitted by trade
representatives. The proposal would enable members of the public to
use Hackney carriages without the need to carry cash. This will
increase public safety as members of the public will not have to ensure
they carry cash, or go to a cash point perhaps late at night. This may
particularly benefit disabled passengers. It will also assist the Hackney
carriage trade in competing with app based companies which have
become increasing popular in recent years.

Page 12
4

17.
The incorporation of all existing polices, guidelines and standards
into a single policy document entitled “Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire Licensing Policy” will comply with the requirement set out in the
statutory standards. Appendix B sets out the amendments to each
policy. Amendments have been recommended as a result of the
statutory standards, the removal of outdated requirements, or to
enhance the safety of the travelling public.
18.
The consultation sought feedback on a proposal to amend the
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles Inspection Standards (in
relation to private hire vehicles only) with regard to tints. Many vehicles
are fitted with tints in the rear side passenger windows as standard.
The current policy requires these to be replaced if they do not meet the
inspection standards (see below). This places a financial burden on the
trade. The proposal was to amend the inspection standards from:
“6.5 Window Glass or other transparent material…
…Rear side windows must allow at least 65% of light to be
transmitted through them…”
To:
“…Tinted glass windows are permissible to the rear side windows
provided that they are only those supplied as standard by the
original vehicle manufacturer and comply with current vehicle
Construction and Use Regulations or any subsequent
replacement.
Tinted films or glass applied retrospectively to the vehicle
windows are not permitted…”
19.
As detailed at Appendix C in general, there was a high level of
agreement with the proposed changes to the policy. There was often a
significant difference between the levels of agreement between the
public and members of the trade. In most cases the public were more
likely to agree or strongly agree with the proposal, except in the case of
tints, where the public were much more likely to disagree.
20.
With regard to tints 70% of members of the trade were supportive,
with only 15% disagreeing. Conversely, of the public only 40% agreed,
and 24% disagreed. There is a large portion of responses from
members of the public, 35%, who neither agreed nor disagreed.
21.
As with the question responses, there was a big split between
comments made by members of the trade and those made by nonmembers of the trade. The comments made by members of the trade
were, in general supportive ofPage
the change.
13 There was a difference in
5

opinion over whether tints should have to be put in place by the
manufacturer or whether to allow film tints. Conversely, there were
many comments that were against tints from members of the public, a
Councillor and one trade member. They argued against tints for the
reasons of public safety, especially with respect to females. One
respondent also mentioned the issues that partially sighted passengers
may have if they are unable to see out of the windows.
22.
Comments received as part of the consultation also suggested a
number of amendments to the policy including:
a. Trade request to permit tinted windows (manufactory fitted) on
Hackney carriages
b. Clarification that the proposed mandatory safeguarding training
should also cover the sexual exploitation of adults by recognising
that passengers may be vulnerable to opportunistic sexual
offences.
c. That Vaping and use of Heated Tobacco (IQOS and hybrid)
products be prohibited in Hackney carriages and private hire
vehicles way of the imposition of additional licence conditions.
Full details of all proposed changed can be found at Appendix B.
Comments can be viewed at Appendix C.
Consultation
23.

Internal
 Passenger Transport
 Neighbourhood Enforcement Team
 Legal Services

24.

External

External consultation took place between 16 February 2021 and 21
March 2021. The survey was published on the Council’s Consultation
and Engagement Hub, accessible to all members of the public, and
advertised via social media channels. In addition to this the follow
parties were also notified:






Hackney carriage and private hire licence holders,
Equalities groups,
Avon and Somerset Constabulary,
Bristol City Council Councillors
Partner agencies,

Page 14
6

Members of the trade were also invited to briefing sessions so the
proposals could be explained in further detail.
Proposal
25.
As detailed above the DfT recommends all licensing authorities
make publicly available a cohesive policy document that brings together
all their procedures on Hackney carriage and private hire licensing.
Members are recommended to approve the attached Hackney Carriage
and Private Hire Licensing Policy (Appendix A). The policy
incorporates the changes recommended by the Statutory Taxi and
Private Hire Vehicle Standards along with changes requested by the
trade in respect of mandatory card readers and other amendments as a
result of information received during the consultation process.
26.
Members are recommended to consider the consultation
comments and Equality Impact Assessment in relation to the proposal
to relax the private hire vehicle policy in respect of tints in private hire
vehicles (and request for Hackney carriages to benefit from the same
amendment) and determine the appropriate course of action.
Other Options Considered
27.
Make no changes to the existing policy. However as detailed
above the DfT expects the recommendations in the Statutory Taxi and
Private Hire Vehicle Standards to be implemented unless there is a
compelling local reason not to. With regard to the other proposals
members could decide to take no action. However the proposals are
aimed to improve public safety and, with the exception of the tint
relaxation (private hire and Hackney carriage), it is recommended they
are approved. Members are requested to consider the comments
received regarding tints and determine the appropriate course of action
in respect of both private hire vehicles and Hackney carriages.
Risk Assessment
The risks associated with the implementation of the recommendations of the report
No
.

RISK

INHERENT
RISK

Threat to achievement (Before
of the key objectives of controls)
the report
1

Any policy decision is
open to challenge

Impact

Probability

Low

Low

RISK CONTROL
MEASURES

CURRENT
RISK

(After
Mitigation (i.e. controls)
controls)
and Evaluation (i.e.
effectiveness of mitigation). Impact Probability
Officers have consulted
with key representatives of
the taxi trade and other
stakeholders.

Page 15
7

Low

Low

RISK
OWNER

The risks associated with not implementing the recommendations of the report
No.

RISK
INHERENT
RISK CONTROL
CURRENT
Threat to achievement
RISK
MEASURES
RISK
of the key objectives of (Before
Mitigation (i.e. controls) and (After
the report
controls)
Evaluation (i.e.
controls)
effectiveness
of
mitigation).
Impact Probability
Impact Probability

1

Failure to amend the
policy as
recommended could
lead to legal
challenges, costs to
the council and
adversely affect the
council’s reputation
and relationship with
the trade.

Med Mediu Determine and publish the
ium
m
revised policies

RISK
OWNER

Low Low

Equalities Impact Assessment
28.
An Equality Impact Assessment has been produced and is
attached as Appendix D.
Public Sector Equality Duties
29.
Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires
that each decision-maker considers the need to promote equality for
persons with the following “protected characteristics”: age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,
sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due
regard to the need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct prohibited under the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and those who do not share it. This
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to -- remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share
a relevant protected characteristic;
- take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of people
who do not share it (in relation to disabled people, this includes, in
particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities);
- Encourage persons whoPage
share16
a protected characteristic to
8

participate in public life or in any other activity in which
participation by such persons is disproportionately low.
iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves
having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
Legal and Resource Implications
Legal
The proposals set out in the report are lawful. As stated in the main
body of the report, the Department for Transport (DfT) standards are
statutory guidance meaning that the Council must have regard to and
adopt them unless there are compelling local reasons not to do so. The
DfT also expects the recommendations in the standards to be
implemented and incorporated in one policy document.
A consultation process has been undertaken and case law guides on
what constitutes lawful consultation and from this some key guiding
principles have been established, in summary that those being consulted
must:
a.
b.
c.
d.

be provided with material upon which a decision is likely to
be made;
be given enough time for intelligent consideration of that
material and to respond to it;
be given the opportunity to make considered
representations;
have their representations conscientiously considered.

It is therefore important that members are satisfied that the consultation
process has allowed sufficient time to enable any person or body
wishing to make representations to obtain relevant material, to consider
it and to put their representations to the Council.
Lynne Harvey & Kate Burnham-Davies
Regulatory Lawyers
Financial
There are no direct financial implications expected as a direct
consequence of approving the Taxi Policy, other than any costs of
publishing and communicating the details of the new policy, which will be

Page 17
9

met from existing Licensing Service budgets. Any increase in operational
demand from enforcing this policy will be managed from within existing
resources.
(Financial advice provided by
Kayode Olagundoye, Interim Finance Business Partner, Growth and
Regeneration, 15/07/2021)
Land
Not applicable
Personnel
There are no anticipated HR implications.
Comments provided by HR Business Partner, Growth and Regeneration.
Appendices
Appendix A
Appendix B
Appendix C
Appendix D

Draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy
2021-2026
Table of Proposed Changes to Taxi Policies
Consultation analysis
Equalities Impact Assessment

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
Disclosure & Barring Service ‘DBS update service Employer Guide’ (version
3.9):
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/dbs-update-service-employerguide
Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/928583/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehiclestandards-english.pdf

Page 18
10

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Introduction
Bristol City Council is the Licensing Authority under the Town Police Clauses Act
1847, as amended, and Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1976. It has the duty to carry out its licensing functions in respect of:
• Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences
• Hackney Carriage Drivers Licences
• Private Hire Vehicle Licences
• Private Hire Drivers Licences
• Private Hire Operator Licences
This information is intended to provide guidance on the licensing requirements and it
is not intended to be an exhaustive or definitive statement of the law and all drivers,
operators and proprietors should familiarise themselves with the provisions of the
relevant Acts, local byelaws and conditions.
Following consultation with trade, regulators and safety campaign groups, the
government has issued statutory taxi and private hire vehicle (PHV) standards to
licensing authorities, outlining how they should carry out their licensing function.
Whilst the focus of these standards is on protecting children and vulnerable adults,
all passengers will benefit from the recommendations, which aim to better regulate
the taxi and PHV sector, this policy has been updated to include these standards.
1.

Policy overview and objectives

This policy is intended to provide how the Council will deal with the licensing of
hackney carriage and private hire drivers and private hire vehicle operators. The
Council, will determine each application on its merits, but will place public safety
above all other considerations.
This Policy aims to:

Page 1 of 99

Page 19

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

• Set out the Council’s approach to regulation, enforcement and sanction of drivers,
vehicles and operators;
• Define and offer guidance on the legislation in relation to the provision of hackney
carriage and private hire vehicles services by drivers; and
• Set out the licensing conditions applicable to drivers, vehicles and operators.
The Council will aim to formally review this Policy at least every 5 years. However
the Policy and its appendices may also be changed in the interim period to
accommodate changes in law, corrections of errors and other triggers to policy
change. The Council reserves the right to alter this Policy to ensure compliance with
the law as a minor policy change without further consultation.
In exercising its discretion in carrying out its regulatory functions, the Council will
have regard to this Policy document and the aims set out above.
The Council will also take into account the Department for Transport (DfT) or other
recognised bodies Best Practice Guidance, relevant legislation and the Councils
enforcement policy.
2.

Departure from Policy

In exercising its discretion in carrying out its functions, the Licensing Authority will
have regard to this Policy and the objectives set out herein.
Where the individual circumstances of a case justify a departure from this policy,
clear reasons for doing so will be given.

Page 2 of 99

Page 20

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Contents
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Policy ............................................................................ 7
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Specification ............................................................................... 7
Age Limit Policy ................................................................................................................ 7
Wheelchair Accessibility ................................................................................................... 8
Vehicle testing ................................................................................................................... 8
Livery ................................................................................................................................. 8
Advertising ......................................................................................................................... 9
Write off ............................................................................................................................. 9
Seating................................................................................................................................ 9
Temporary Vehicles ........................................................................................................... 9
Electronic Payments........................................................................................................... 9
Fit and Proper ................................................................................................................... 10
Language proficiency....................................................................................................... 10
Appendix A – Hackney carriage Cab Accessible Design Standards Approved by Bristol
Physical Access Chain (BPAC) ....................................................................................... 11
Private Hire Vehicle Specification......................................................................... 12
Vehicle testing ...................................................................................................................... 13
Wheelchair Accessibility ...................................................................................................... 13
Vehicle Livery ...................................................................................................................... 13
Write offs .............................................................................................................................. 13
Alterations ............................................................................................................................ 14
Tints...................................................................................................................................... 14
Fit and Proper...................................................................................................................... 14
Language proficiency........................................................................................................... 15
Policy for Advertising on Hackney Carriage Vehicles ........................................ 16
Purpose ................................................................................................................................ 16
Where advertisements may be displayed ............................................................................. 16
Required content standards of advertising .......................................................................... 16
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles ....................................................... 18
Inspection Standards ............................................................................................. 18
Introduction ...................................................................................................................... 18
Purpose............................................................................................................................. 18
Equalities Statement......................................................................................................... 18
Specification Of Vehicle Types That May Be Licensed ................................................. 18
Fitness standard for vehicles. ........................................................................................... 19
Certificate of conformity.................................................................................................. 19
Presenting vehicle for testing. .......................................................................................... 20
Inspection Process ............................................................................................................ 21
The Inspection Of Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Vehicles ....................................... 23
Page 3 of 99

Page 21

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Trailer Inspection Sheet ................................................................................................... 43
Private Hire Vehicles -......................................................................................................... 45
Exemption from requirement to display Vehicle Identification Policy ................................ 45
1. Statement of intent ....................................................................................................... 45
2. Introduction .................................................................................................................. 45
Policy to address nuisance annoyance and obstruction of the highway by
hackney carriage and private hire vehicles ......................................................... 50
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver ........................................................... 51
Fit and Proper Person Policy ................................................................................ 51
DVLA (Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency) Licence check ............................................ 51
Enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS Update Service) ..................................... 51
Certificate of Good Character ............................................................................................. 52
Medical Fitness .................................................................................................................... 52
Skills Requirement ............................................................................................................... 53
Knowledge Test .................................................................................................................... 53
Gold Standard ...................................................................................................................... 53
Driving Test ......................................................................................................................... 53
Training for Existing Licensed Drivers ............................................................................... 54
Mandatory Safeguarding Training ...................................................................................... 54
Language Proficiency .......................................................................................................... 54
Expired Licences .................................................................................................................. 54
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles Licensing of individuals –
Guidelines relating to the relevance of criminal behaviour. ............................... 55
General policy ........................................................................................................ 55
General Matters ................................................................................................................... 55
Licensee Self Reporting........................................................................................................ 56
Offending Behaviour ............................................................................................................ 56
Crimes resulting in death ..................................................................................................... 56
Exploitation .......................................................................................................................... 57
Offences involving violence against the person/property .................................................... 57
Possession of a weapon ....................................................................................................... 58
Sexual offences and offences of Indecency .......................................................................... 58
Dishonesty ............................................................................................................................ 58
Drugs.................................................................................................................................... 58
Discrimination ..................................................................................................................... 59
Page 4 of 99

Page 22

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Motoring convictions ........................................................................................................... 59
Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs ............................................................. 59
Using a hand-held device whilst driving ............................................................................. 59
Miscellaneous Offences ....................................................................................................... 60
Policy for Exemption Requests from carrying Assistance Dogs ....................... 61
Statement of Intent ............................................................................................................... 61
Introduction.......................................................................................................................... 61
The Policy ............................................................................................................................ 61
Policy for Exemption Requests from carrying Passengers in Wheelchairs ..... 63
Statement of Intent ............................................................................................................... 63
Introduction.......................................................................................................................... 63
The Policy ............................................................................................................................ 63
Private Hire Operator Policy .................................................................................. 65
Criminality checks for private hire vehicle operators ......................................................... 65
Booking and dispatch staff ................................................................................................... 66
Fit and Proper Person policy in respect of booking and dispatch staff, individuals that
handle personal information relating to bookings or act as designated safeguarding lead67
Record keeping..................................................................................................................... 67
Use of passenger carrying vehicles (PCV) licensed drivers ................................................ 69
Trading name ....................................................................................................................... 69
Nominated individuals. ........................................................................................................ 70
Safeguarding Policy ............................................................................................................. 70
Language proficiency........................................................................................................... 70
Premises ............................................................................................................................... 70
Complaints and Customer Service ....................................................................................... 70
Training Policy .................................................................................................................... 71
Hackney carriage and private hire licence conditions ........................................ 73
Introduction.......................................................................................................................... 73
Reading the conditions ......................................................................................................... 74
Definitions governing all general conditions contained in the appendices to this document
.............................................................................................................................................. 74
Appendix A – Standard Conditions governing Private Hire Vehicle Licences ................... 77
Appendix B - Conditions governing Private Hire Operators .............................................. 82
Fit and Proper Person test ................................................................................................ 84
Appendix C – Conditions governing Private Hire Drivers .................................................. 90
Page 5 of 99

Page 23

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Appendix D – Conditions governing Hackney Carriage Vehicles....................................... 93
Tuk Tuks and Pedicabs ......................................................................................... 99

Page 6 of 99

Page 24

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Policy
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Specification
Vehicles will not generally be accepted for hackney carriage licensing unless they
comply with the following specification;
1. Any vehicle presented for licensing on the first occasion, that is not replacing
an existing licensed Hackney Carriage, must be an Ultra-Low Emission
Vehicle (ULEV) as well as meeting the specification set out in the remainder
of this policy. Vehicles presented for licensing on the first occasion, which are
replacing an existing licensed Hackney Carriage (that is not a ULEV), do not
have to be a ULEV. Replacements for existing licensed Hackney Carriages
that are a ULEV must also be a ULEV.
Note:

A ULEV is a vehicle with tailpipe CO2 emissions of 75 g/km or
less

Age Limit Policy
2. Vehicles presented for licensing on the first occasion shall be EURO 6 or
higher standard and less than three and a half years old from the date of
registration or, in respect of vehicles that have been imported other than as
new into the United Kingdom, less than three and a half years old from the
date of manufacture (In the remainder of this policy reference to date of first
registration with regard to vehicles which are imported should be construed as
date of manufacture).
3. Any licence granted shall be renewed annually until the vehicle has reached
eight years provided that the vehicle remains continuously licensed in that
period a vehicle will be deemed to have been continuously licensing
notwithstanding a delay in renewal following expiry provided that;
a. Any late renewal is made within 3 months of expiry and,
b. An additional fee levied by the Council has been paid.
4. Any vehicle first registered on or before 31st August 2015 can be relicensed
until 10 years from date of first registration.
5. Any vehicle first registered on or after 1st September 2015 can be licensed
until 12 years from the date of first registration.
6. Any Electric LEVC (London Electric Vehicle Company) produced purpose built
Hackney Carriage vehicle can be licensed until 15 years from the date of first
registration.

Page 7 of 99

Page 25

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Wheelchair Accessibility
7. On the grant of any new vehicle licence the vehicle shall be capable of
conveying a passenger using a wheelchair and benefit from ECWVTA
(European Community Whole Vehicle Type Approval) (i.e. constructed as a
purpose built taxi).
The applicant must produce the appropriate
documentation to evidence ECWVTA at time of application.
8. The vehicle should be both accessible and comfortable. In considering
whether the vehicle for which a licence is sought meets this requirement the
Council will have regard to the design and quality standards recommended by
the Bristol Physical Access Chain and as varied by the Licensing Manager in
consultation with the committee chair from time to time.

a. In considering whether the vehicle meets this expectation the Council
will have regard to the design and quality standards attached as
Appendix A.
Vehicle testing
9. All vehicles on initial application should be of such standard and condition so
as to have passed the vehicle safety cosmetic test including an MOT as
specified by the Council. Vehicles shall be maintained to such standard and
condition whilst the vehicle remains licensed.
10. On subsequent applications vehicles should be inspected every twelve
months at a place specified by the Council. This inspection will include the
vehicle safety cosmetic test including the MOT as set by the Council.
11. Vehicles over the age of 8 years from the date of first registration will undergo
the check every 6 months, and be issued with a 6 month licence.
12. All Vehicles should have a minimum of 4 doors and be right hand drive and be
so constructed and the doors open sufficiently wide as to allow easy access
and egress from the vehicle and cause no inconvenience to passengers.
13. Vehicles should be suitable for carrying passengers in safety and comfort
including the provision of adequate seating space, head and knee room.
Livery
14. Vehicles to display a uniform all over livery of Bristol Blue, defined by a paint
code (in this condition "Bristol Blue" means the colour identified by the British
Standard code BS 381C (108) (or any European Standard code which may
supersede or replace it) except on the areas where advertisements can be
displayed.

Page 8 of 99

Page 26

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Advertising
15. Advertising that complies with the Council’s Hackney Carriage Advertising
Policy may be displayed. Advertising on the exterior of the cab may cover all
or part of the complete exterior body shell and the full width and height of the
rear window, except for:
a. the front windscreen, side windows and any other glass areas;
b. the tyres and/or the rims and bumpers;
Save for any area where advertising is displayed all Exterior bodywork shall
be uniformly coloured Bristol Blue.
Write off
16. Any vehicle written off may be replaced with another vehicle provided it is not
older than the written off vehicle. The replacement vehicle may be of the
same fuel type as the written off vehicle, or if it is not must comply with the
policy in this respect. Applications for replacement vehicles shall be submitted
within 3 months from the date the write off was confirmed by the insurance
company
Seating

17. Any alteration to the seating configuration or capacity of a vehicle is not
permitted.
Temporary Vehicles
18. Any Hackney carriage being licensed as a temporary replacement vehicle
whilst repairs are being undertaken should comply with all aspects of the
current hackney carriage specification with the exception of the requirement of
being a ULEV (unless it is replacing an existing Hackney carriage that is a
ULEV)
Electronic Payments
19. All Hackney carriages must have an electronic payment facility to accept
debit/credit card and contactless payments.
20. The electronic payment device must be kept in the vehicle, be fully
operational and available for immediate use at all times the vehicle is being
used for public hire, or hire and reward (including whilst standing or plying for
hire).
21. All Hackney carriages must display signage that is prominently on view to
prospective passengers that states contactless card payments are accepted.
22. No additional costs as a result of card payments may be passed onto the
passenger.

Page 9 of 99

Page 27

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Fit and Proper

23. In respect of new applications a basic disclosure check for each
individual/company director/company secretary (as applicable) must be
provided. The disclosure must be dated no earlier than 2 months prior to the
date of the Council receiving the complete application. Vehicle proprietors that
also hold a current private hire or hackney carriage driver’s licence do not need
to provide a basic disclosure unless they cease to hold a drivers licence.
24. All individuals/company directors/company secretary (as applicable) must
supply a new basic disclosure to the Council annually, unless they are existing
drivers as above. The disclosure must be dated no earlier than 2 months prior to
the date of the Council receiving the complete application.
25. All applicants including individuals, company directors, company secretaries
shall generally be expected to provide a certificate of good character (or similar)
from each country if they have lived outside of the UK for a continuous period of
three months (or more) within the last five years of the date of their licence
application, save in exceptional circumstances. Where this Certificate has been
produced in a non-English language, the applicant will generally be required to
produce a translation of the Certificate from the Embassy or Consulate of that
country and provide the original document, save in exceptional circumstances.
An exception might be permitted where a refugee has been allowed to stay in
the UK and has been given asylum, and this exception will only apply to that
country. The cost of certificates of good character (or similar) are to be met by
the applicant in full.
Language proficiency
26. The Council will have the right to require applicants and licence holders to
complete a test of their language proficiency which will cover both oral and
written English language skills and be specified by the Council. Such a test
will be completed the licensees expense.

Page 10 of 99

Page 28

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Appendix A – Hackney carriage Cab Accessible Design Standards Approved by Bristol
Physical Access Chain (BPAC)
Hackney Cab Accessible Design Regulations
Requirement – minimum
unless otherwise stated
1
Clear opening width of nearside or rear Unobstructed width 850mm
passenger door
with 900mm preferred
2
3
4
5

6
7
8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15

Internal door height
Internal roof to floor height
External Floor (at interval level) to
ground height
Grab handles: Position and number
e.g. Door and post, height from floor

1300mm
Floor – door lintel 1320mm
540mm (maximum)

Grab handles contrasted in colour
Side and/or rear loading for wheelchair
passengers
Wheel chair passenger facing front or
rear
Wheelchair restraints fitted
Wheelchair passenger seat belt fitted
and type
Seat height from floor
Space for wheelchair measures – L x
W
Non slip floor surface
Sufficient additional luggage space

Above door lock at 830mm- 910mm above
floor level. Second handle must be on the
door opposite the other grab handle e.g.
attached to the bulkhead
Should be yellow or primary contrast colour
Can be either or both but must comply with
Design Regulations
Should always face to the rear of cab unless
using rear loading system
Must have tested restraint system fitted
3 point i.e. includes lap and diagonal restraint
belt
380mm
1200mm x 800mm

Taxi meter visible from rear passenger
seat

Rubberised or non-slip vinyl
Any removal of seating must still allow for
luggage storage
Display must be clearly visible facing forward

Page 11 of 99

Page 29

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Private Hire Vehicle Specification
Vehicles will not generally be accepted for private hire licensing unless they comply
with the following specification;
1. Vehicles presented for licensing on the first occasion shall be petrol, petrol
hybrid or an Ultra-Low Emission Vehicle (ULEV, excluding diesel ULEV
vehicles) and less than three and a half years old from the date of registration
or, in respect of vehicles that have been imported other than as new into the
United Kingdom, less than three and a half years old from the date of
manufacture (In the remainder of this policy reference to date of first
registration with regard to vehicles which are imported should be construed as
date of manufacture).
b. Exceptions to the requirement that vehicles will be petrol may be
granted by the Licensing Manager in respect of executive vehicles.
Note:

A ULEV is a vehicle with tailpipe CO2 emissions of 75 g/km or
less

2. Any licence granted shall be renewed annually until the vehicle has reached
eight years provided that the vehicle remains continuously licensed in that
period. A vehicle will be deemed to have been continuously licensing
notwithstanding a delay in renewal following expiry provided that;

a. Any late renewal is made within 3 months of expiry and,
b. An additional fee levied by the Council has been paid.
3. Any vehicle first registered on or before 31st August 2015 can be relicensed
until 10 years from date of first registration.
4. Any vehicle first registered on or after 1st September 2015 can be licensed
until 12 years from the date of first registration.
5. All vehicles should have a minimum of 4 doors, be right hand drive and must
be so constructed so that the doors open sufficiently wide as to allow easy
access and egress from the vehicle. No discomfort or inconvenience should
be caused to passengers. In order to ensure this the vehicle should comply
with the following dimensions:

a. From the top of the seat cushions to the roof at the lowest point directly above
the seat cushions should be a minimum of 865mm.

b. The measurement between the rear of the front seats and the backrest of the
rear seat should be a minimum of 750mm.

c. The measurement between the backrest of the front passenger seat and the
dashboard fascia should be a minimum of 750mm when measured
horizontally forward with the seat cushion.

Page 12 of 99

Page 30

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

d. The depth of the seat from the backrest to the front edge must be a minimum
of 405mm.

e. All passenger seats within the vehicle shall have a minimum of 405mm) width
per passenger.

f. In the case of vehicles licensed for 5 to 8 passengers, the measurement
between the rear of a front passenger seat and the backrest of the rear seat
should be a minimum of 650mm.
Vehicle testing
6.

All vehicles on initial application should be of such standard and condition so
as to have passed the vehicle safety cosmetic test including an MOT as
specified by the Council. Vehicles shall be maintained to such standard and
condition whilst the vehicle remains licensed.

7.

On subsequent applications vehicles should be inspected every twelve
months at a place specified by the Council. This inspection will include the
vehicle safety cosmetic tests including the MOT as set by the Council.

a. Vehicles over the age of 8 years from the date of first registration will
undergo the check every 6 months, and be issued with a 6 month
licence.
Wheelchair Accessibility
8.

Any vehicle presented for licensing for the first occasion as a private hire
vehicle with wheelchair accessibility shall only be licensed if the vehicle
benefits from European Community Whole Vehicle Type Approval
(ECWVTA). The applicant must produce the appropriate documentation to
evidence ECWVTA at time of application.

Vehicle Livery
9.

No new applications for a private hire vehicle licence should be granted in
respect of any vehicle carrying a livery on the blue spectrum.

Write offs
10.

Any vehicle written off may be replaced with another vehicle provided it is not
older than the written off vehicle. The replacement vehicle may be of the
same fuel type as the written off vehicle, or if it is not must comply with the
policy in this respect. Applications for replacement vehicles shall be submitted
within 3 months from the date the write off was confirmed by the insurance
company.

Page 13 of 99

Page 31

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Alterations
12. Any alteration to the seating configuration or capacity of a vehicle is not
permitted.
Tints
13. Tinted glass windows are permissible to the rear side windows provided that they
are only those supplied as standard by the original vehicle manufacturer and
comply with current vehicle Construction and Use Regulations or any
subsequent replacement.
14. Tinted films or glass applied retrospectively to the vehicle windows are not
permitted.
OR to remain as current Inspection Standard requirements i.e.:
The light transmitted through the windscreen must be at least 75%.
The front side windows must allow at least 70% of light to be transmitted through
them.
Rear side windows must allow at least 65% of light to be transmitted through
them.
The vehicles rear window is exempt from the light transmission test.

Fit and Proper
15. In respect of new applications a basic disclosure check for each
individual/company director/company secretary (as applicable) must be
provided. The disclosure must be dated no earlier than 2 months prior to the
date of the Council receiving the complete application. Vehicle proprietors that
also hold a current private hire or hackney carriage driver’s licence do not need
to provide a basic disclosure unless they cease to hold a drivers licence.
16. All individuals/company directors/company secretary (as applicable) must supply
a new basic disclosure to the Council annually, unless they are existing drivers
as above. The disclosure must be dated no earlier than 2 months prior to the
date of the Council receiving the complete application.
17. All applicants including individuals, company directors, company secretaries shall
generally be expected to provide a certificate of good character (or similar) from
each country if they have lived outside of the UK for a continuous period of three
months (or more) within the last five years of the date of their licence application,
save in exceptional circumstances. Where this Certificate has been produced in
a non-English language, the applicant will generally be required to produce a
translation of the Certificate from the Embassy or Consulate of that country and
Page 14 of 99

Page 32

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

provide the original document, save in exceptional circumstances. An exception
might be permitted where a refugee has been allowed to stay in the UK and has
been given asylum, and this exception will only apply to that country. The cost of
certificates of good character (or similar) are to be met by the applicant in full.
Language proficiency
18. The Council will have the right to require applicants and licence holders to
complete a mandatory test of their language proficiency which will cover both
oral and written English language skills and be specified by the Council. Such a
test will be completed the licensees expense.

Page 15 of 99

Page 33

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Policy for Advertising on Hackney Carriage Vehicles
Purpose
1. All advertisements appearing on Bristol City Council licensed Hackney
Carriages must be in accordance with this policy.
Where advertisements may be displayed
2. Any advertising must be displayed in accordance with the Council’s Hackney
Carriage Vehicle Policy.
Required content standards of advertising
3. Advertisements shall not be displayed where any of the following apply:
 The advertisement does not comply with the law or incites someone to break
the law.
 The advertisement promotes or endorses goods or services which may be
contrary to Council policies or strategies.
 The advertisement is inconsistent with the obligations of Bristol City
Council’s Hackney Carriage Vehicle Policy.
 The advertisement is likely to cause widespread or serious offence to
members of the public.
 No advertisement will be permitted that directly or indirectly promotes or
indirectly promotes discrimination against persons with protected
characteristics as defined in the Equalities Act 2010.
 The advertisement relates to or advertises alcohol, nudity, gambling, smoking
materials (including E cigarettes) or is of a political nature.
 The advertisement depicts or refers to indecency or obscenity or uses
obscene or distasteful language.
 The advertisement relates to lap-dancing, ‘gentlemen’s clubs’, escort
agencies or massage parlours.
 The advertisement depicts direct or immediate violence to anyone shown in
the advertisement.
 The advertisement condones or provokes anti-social behaviour.
 The advertisement could reasonably be seen as likely to cause pressure to
conform to an unrealistic or unhealthy body shape, or as likely to create body
confidence issues, particularly among young people.
 The advertisement contains negative references to Bristol City Council
services.
 Advertisements that become obsolete e.g. an event that has already passed
or become old/worn out presenting a negative image such as peeling edges
must be removed as soon as possible.
 Advertisements that promote or encourage positive aspects of Bristol will be
encouraged. This includes:
o Public Health messaging
o Tourism & Events
o Industry & Commerce
Page 16 of 99

Page 34

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

o Cultural awareness, diversity, inclusivity and positive relations.



The advertisement is inconsistent with the UK Code of Non-broadcast
Advertising, Sales Promotion and Direct Marketing (CAP) Code or any code
which may replace it.
The advertisement contravenes the Road Vehicles (Construction and Use)
Regulations 1986 as amended or any similar legislation.

4. The licensee remains responsible for the content of any advertisement displayed
on his/her vehicle. It remains the licensee’s responsibility to comply with the current
law and British Code of Advertising Practice referred to above, irrespective of any
consent to display the advertisement which may have been given by the Licensing
Authority.
5. It is the licence holder’s responsibility to ensure that none of the advertising
material obscures the driver’s vision, the vehicle’s licence plates, or constitutes a
danger to passengers or the public or other road users where they are displayed on
the vehicle.
6. Materials used for advertisements must be of a quality not easily defaced or
damaged. Advertisements must be affixed directly to the body of the vehicle or
initially attached to a magnetic panel which is then attached to the vehicle.
7. The holder of a vehicle licence shall not remove or obscure any warning signs,
safety messages or any other information or signage displayed on a licensed vehicle
that is present when it is supplied by the manufacturer and that is aimed at assisting
passengers to identify the type or features of the vehicle.
8. The Council shall have no responsibility to the organisation represented or the
vehicle owner, operator, proprietor, driver or any other person should any situation
occur whereby the display of the advertisement has a detrimental effect on that
person, or a that person’s good name or reputation.
9. The Council reserves the right to suspend the licence of any vehicle displaying
signs that breach the above policy.
10. If you have any queries regarding this policy, please contact the
Licensing Team.

Page 17 of 99

Page 35

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles Inspection Standards
A best practice guide which sets out the procedures and standards for those who
carry out inspections, proprietors and the travelling public.

Introduction
This document is intended to provide comprehensive information regarding the
licensing of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles. The information includes
issues relating to Bristol City Council policy, vehicle specification and testing
standards. It is primarily intended to set out the procedures and standards for those
who carry out inspections of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles, vehicle
proprietors, regulators and the travelling public who may find it useful as it details the
standards that vehicles are subjected to.
Purpose
The aim of a local licensing authority is to protect the public. Bristol City Council
believes that the public should have reasonable access to safe and well maintained
HC and PHVs and promoting the taxi trade as a professional public service provider
forming a vital part of the City’s transport infrastructure.
This standard is intended to be a working document and may therefore be subject to
regular review and amendment. Although detailed in its content it is not exhaustive.
Equalities Statement
Bristol is a city of increasing diversity, which brings positive benefits to us all. It is
crucial that the council reflects this diversity but also ensures that all our citizens
have equal access to and equal outcomes from the services that are provided by the
council. All staff must promote equal opportunities as part of their everyday work and
work in a positive way to include people from different backgrounds, to that end all
customers will be treated courteously and with respect. All types of harassment,
victimisation and bullying in the workplace and in the community are unacceptable
and as such members of staff are as entitled as customers to be protected. Abuse or
harassment of staff whether verbally or physically will not be tolerated. Applicants for
taxi licences should be aware that they have to be considered ‘fit and proper
persons’ to hold such licences. Incidents of abuse or harassment towards any
member of staff may jeopardise the licence, whilst complaints against staff will be
thoroughly investigated.
Specification of Vehicle Types That May Be Licensed
The legislation gives local authorities a wide range of discretion over the types of
vehicle that can be licensed as HC or PHVs. Normally, best practice is for local
Page 18 of 99

Page 36

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

licensing authorities to adopt the principle of specifying as many different types of
vehicles as possible. Bristol City Council does not specify particular types of vehicles
but allows for flexibility within certain constraints. The parameters for determining
whether a vehicle is suitable to be operated as a HC or PHV are set out below. The
intention being to keep it open where possible for the HC and PHV trades to put
forward vehicles of their own choice which can be shown to meet those criteria. In
that way, there can be flexibility for new vehicle types to be readily taken into
account.
Accessibility
Hackney carriages licensed by Bristol City Council must be wheelchair accessible.
Private Hire vehicles do not have to meet this requirement but may be wheelchair
accessible.
Fitness standard for vehicles
The Bristol City Council vehicle fitness standard is based on the National Inspection
Standard and has been the subject of full consultation with trade representatives.
The purpose being to assist those who inspect, maintain and prepare vehicles for
inspection prior to being issued with a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire licence. It is
intended that this document will ensure a consistent minimum vehicle inspection
standard.
To this end, this document details specific vehicle safety issues and requirements of
licensed vehicles. It seeks to embrace safety aspects of vehicle inspections using, as
a basic inspection standard, those laid down in the MOT Inspection Manual for Car &
Light Commercial Vehicle Testing issued by DVSA (Driver and Vehicle Standards
Agency). This guide provides additional testing requirements to those in the MOT
Inspection Manual and all HC and PHV must be maintained to no less than the
standards set out in the DVSA publication “MOT inspection manual: cars and
passenger vehicles. However, in assessing the mechanical safety of a vehicle, it is
more likely an item which would ordinarily pass an MOT test with an advisory note,
could fail the HC & PHV test. The guide also explains the reasons why a vehicle
presented for inspection, may not be considered suitable to be licensed.
As the term implies, Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles are vehicles used
for hire and reward purposes and as such are subject to much higher annual
mileages and more arduous driving than normal private vehicles. Therefore, in the
interests of passenger and other road user’s safety, a more stringent maintenance
and testing regime is required.
It is an offence under the road traffic regulations to use an un-roadworthy vehicle on
the public highway. HC & PHV proprietors who fail to maintain their vehicles in a safe
and roadworthy condition may have their licence suspended, curtailed or revoked by
the Local Licensing Authority.
Certificate of conformity
Once a vehicle has been tested and has been deemed to comply with the standards
as set out in this document it will be issued with a certificate of conformity by the
Page 19 of 99

Page 37

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

testing station. On production of that certificate at the licensing office the vehicle can
be licensed as a hackney carriage or private hire (subject to other factors such as
relevant insurance, proof of ownership etc.).
Incidental to the certificate of conformity the testing station will issue an MOT
certificate at no additional cost. The reason for issuing an MOT certificate is that the
base requirements of the standard are in fact those required for an MOT. There is no
additional cost incurred when being presented with an MOT certificate but it is a
recognition that the vehicle has passed those requirements as well as the standards
set out for licensed vehicles.
Presenting vehicle for testing
The vehicle must be presented for test in such a condition that if the vehicle passed
its test it could be used immediately (as soon as the licence is issued) as either a
hackney carriage or private hire vehicle. Vehicles presented for test should conform
to the following:
a) Exterior must be clean
b) Interior surfaces and upholstery must be clean
c) All windows and mirrors must be clean and free from marks, grease, etc.
d) All loose seat covers must be removed to allow for inspection of seat cushions.
(Professionally fitted/tailored seat covers will not be required to be removed).
e) Hub caps must be removed from the wheels prior to inspection but should be
available in the vehicle.
f) No smoking signs must be correctly fixed to side windows.
g) Hackney carriages and private hire vehicles with fitted meters, which are being
inspected for the purpose of renewal of licence, must display tariff sheets within the
vehicles in such a position that they can be clearly seen and read by passengers.
Please note it is a requirement of the licence that private hire vehicles fitted with
taximeters shall display tariffs.
h) Meters where fitted must be located in such a position that they can be easily
seen by passengers in the rear of the vehicle and must not be located behind any
fixture, fitting or equipment such as gear sticks, steering wheels, mobile phone
holders etc. The position of the meter, if in the wiper sweep area shall be clear of
zone A.
i) Meters where fitted must be secure, wired in such a manner that the wires are not
subject to chaffing, rubbing, breakage etc. and must be so secured that the wires
cannot be tampered with.
j) Top signs where fitted must be secure, wired in such a manner that the wires are
not subject to chaffing, rubbing, breakage etc. and must be so secured that the wires
cannot be tampered with.
k) The engine bay should be clean.
l) Where the test is in respect of a renewal of a licence the plates (including front,
rear and side) must be firmly fixed and displayed on the vehicle. If the expiry date of
the licence has past, the plates must be carried within the vehicle (but not is such a
position as to be visible to the public – preferably in the boot) and surrendered to the
garage prior to the test commencing.
m) In respect of hackney carriages all roof signs must be linked/wired to the meter in
such a manner that when the meter is engaged the roof sign is not illuminated.

Page 20 of 99

Page 38

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

The inspection standards are set out at Appendix A. Please note that licensed
vehicles may only tow trailers (associated with fee paying journeys such as
transporting passengers and luggage to airports, etc.) that have been checked and
tested. A model pass certificate for a trailer is attached at Appendix B below.
Inspection Process
This document clearly sets out the mechanism that will be followed by the inspectors
designated by Bristol City Council when a vehicle is presented for testing. The flow
chart attached at Appendix C clearly sets out the mechanism that will be followed by
the designated garage when you present your vehicle for testing.
The purpose of this procedure is to ensure consistency of approach and that
customers are fully aware of their rights and obligations in respect of vehicles being
tested. The procedure will be regularly reviewed and updated as necessary.
1. All appointments for testing of taxi vehicles must be booked directly with Fleet
Services. All applicants are advised to make appointments well in advance to
avoid disappointment or inconvenience.
2. Applicants must be clear when making an appointment as to whether or not
they require a full test or a retest. A retest is required where on initial testing
the vehicle has failed to pass the test. Failure certificates will be marked with
a 1, 2, or 3.
a) 1 indicates a 1 (one) hour appointment will be required for any
subsequent retest
b) 2 indicates a ½ (half) hour appointment will be required for any
subsequent retest
c) 3 indicates that re-test is free of charge.
3. If the vehicle is being presented for a retest every effort will be made to
ensure that retest is conducted by the same tester as conducted the initial
test. However it will be appreciated that this cannot be guaranteed due to a
range of factors such as service demands, absence, etc.
4. On day of appointment the person presenting vehicle for test must attend at
fleet services reception at least 10 minutes prior to the allotted appointment
time (the vehicle should also be available at this time).
5. Reception – customer pays for the test and will be issued with a receipt which
will show if the test is for a full test, retest or if it is free of charge (FOC). The
receipt will be handed to customer who must take it to the testing bay and
shown to the tester as proof of booking. Failure to produce receipt to the
tester will result in test NOT taking place.
6. Tester to conduct test and provide customer with a pass/fail certificate. If the
vehicle has failed the test, a further appointment will be required for a retest.
7. Where there may be some question mark / dispute regarding a failure the
matter will be assessed for final determination by a quality assessor based at

Page 21 of 99

Page 39

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

the testing station. Customers may also seek resolution of disputes regarding
only the MOT (Ministry of Transport) elements of the test with DVSA.
8. In very exceptional circumstances where a vehicle has failed the test, the
Licensing Office may still grant a licence. It must be stressed that these are
very exceptional circumstances only and would be for example; where the
vehicle is subject to an unresolved insurance claim and full documentary
evidence is provided to substantiate why minor repair works that do not
impact on customer safety or comfort have not been carried out. This will NOT
apply where there has been any damage that affected the mechanical safety
of the vehicle; it will ONLY apply to cosmetic issues.

Page 22 of 99

Page 40

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

APPENDIX A
The Inspection of Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Vehicles
This document sets out the procedures and standards for those who carry out
inspections of Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Vehicles. Proprietors, operators and
drivers of Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Vehicles may find it useful as it details
the standards that vehicles are subject to which are over and above the MOT
requirements. The guide also explains the reasons why, a vehicle presented for
inspection, has not been issued with a pass certificate.
The purpose of the HC & PHV test is to confirm vehicles meet these more stringent
standards. Vehicles must be submitted fully prepared for the test. It is not intended
that the test be used in lieu of a regular preventative maintenance programme.
If in the opinion of the vehicle examiner the vehicle is not in a safe condition or is
potentially contaminated (for example if it has been used to transport asbestos), the
test may be terminated and a further test could be required when the vehicle is in a
suitable condition.
Note: Where a licensed vehicle is presented for inspection the driver must produce
their valid Bristol City Council private hire or Hackney carriage driver licence at the
time of the appointment. Failure to produce a valid licence will result in the
inspection being cancelled. The inspection fee will be forfeit.
Section
1

Subject
Lighting and Signalling Equipment:
1.3 Stop Lamps – High Level Stop Lamps
1.8 Electrical Wiring and Equipment
1.9 Additional Lamps

2

Steering:
2.1 Steering Control – Steering Wheel
2.1 Steering Control – Steering Column
2.4 Suspension Spring Units & Linkage

3

Tyres & Road wheels:
3.1 Tyres – Condition

4

Body & Structure:
4.1 Vehicle Body and Condition – (Exterior)
4.1 Vehicle Body, Security and Condition – (Interior)
4.2 Doors and Seats
4.5 Bumper Bars

5

Fuel & Emissions:
5.1 Exhaust System
5.2 Fuel System – Pipes & Tanks

Page 23 of 99

Page 41

Page Number

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

6

Drivers View of the Road:
6.1 Mirrors
6.3 Windscreen – View top the Front
6.5 Window Glass or Other Transparent Material

7

Additional Requirements:
7.1 Speedometer
7.2 Transmission
7.3 Engine & Transmission Mountings
7.4 Oil & Water Leaks
7.5 Luggage/Load Space
7.6 Trailers & Towbars
7.7 Warning lights
7.8 Vehicle Registration Marks

8

Ancillary Equipment:
8.1 Wheelchair Restraint & Access Equipment
8.2 Meters
8.3 Electronic Payment Facility

All HC and PHV must be maintained to no less than the standards set out in the
DVSA publication “MOT inspection manual: cars and passenger vehicles.”
Section 1 – Lighting and Signalling Equipment
Section Contents:
Sub-section Subject
1.3
1.8
1.9

Stop Lamps – High Level Stop Lamps
Electrical Wiring and Equipment
Additional Lamps
 Reversing Lamps
 Front Fog/ Driving Lamps
 For Hire and Roof Signs

1.3 Stop Lamps – High Level Stop Lamps
Method Of Inspection
Reason For Rejection
Any additional stop lamps fitted
must be tested.
Check the high level stop lamp
where fitted:
a. Is not obscured, and is not
obviously incorrectly positioned.
High Level Stop Lamp

Page 24 of 99

Page 42

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

b. At least 50% of the lamp must be
visible from the rear.
a. Obscured or obviously incorrectly positioned.

b. More than 50% of the lamp not working or
obscured.

1.8 Electrical Wiring and Equipment
Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

This examination is limited to that
part of the electrical system that can
be readily seen without dismantling
any part of the vehicle
a. Check all electrical wiring for:
 Condition
 Security
 Position
 Signs of Overheating
 Heavy Oil Contamination

a. Wiring
 Not adequately insulated
 Not adequately secured
 Position so that it is chafing or clipped to
a fuel line or likely to be damaged by
heat so that insulation will become
ineffective
 With clear evidence of overheating
 Heavily contaminated with oil

b. Battery and Carrier for:
 Security
 Battery for Leaks

b. Battery and Carrier
 A battery and / or carrier not secure and
likely to become displaced
 Battery leaking

c. Check all switches controlling all c. Insecurity or malfunction of a switch controlling
obligatory lights
an obligatory light.

1.9 Additional Lamps
Method Of Inspection
With the ignition switched on check:
Reversing Lamps:
a. The Reversing Lamps emit a
diffused white light when reverse
gear is selected.

Reason For Rejection
Reversing Lamp:
a. That fails to operate or does not emit a white
diffused light.

b. The lamps extinguish when b. Fails to extinguish when neutral or forward gear
neutral gear is selected
is selected
c. The lamps are in good working c. Are not in good working order or insecure
order and are secure

Page 25 of 99

Page 43

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

d. The lamps do not flicker when d. Lamps flicker when tapped lightly by hand
lightly tapped by hand
Front Fog / Driving Lamps
Front Fog / Driving Lamps
Check that:
e. A single front fog lamp emitting a e. Lamp inoperative or operates other than in
white or yellow diffused light dipped beam mode
illuminates only when dipped beam
is selected
f. A pair of matched of lamps both f. Lamps operate incorrectly
emitting a white or yellow diffused
light should illuminate together
g. A pair of matched, long-range g. Lamps operate incorrectly
driving lamps, both emitting a white
diffused light should illuminate
together.
‘For Hire’ and Roof Signs
‘For Hire’ and Roof Signs
h. Ensure the sign is securely h. Insecure sign
fastened to the vehicle
i. Check condition and security of i. Wiring is not in good condition and is loose or
wiring
chaffed
j. Functional test of signs for j. Illumination not consistent across the sign, i.e. all
illumination
light bulb(s) LED(s) illuminated when switched on.
k. Top light remains illuminated when meter is
k. Hackney Carriages top light to engaged.
be linked / wired to/through meter.
Section 2 – Steering
Section Contents:
Sub-section

Subject

2.1
2.1
2.4

Steering Control – Steering Wheel
Steering Control – Steering Column
Suspension Spring Units and Linkages

2.1 Steering Control – Steering Wheel
Method Of Inspection
Reason For Rejection
With both hands rock the steering
wheel from side to side at right
angles to the steering column and
apply slight downward and upward
pressure to the steering wheel rim
Page 26 of 99

Page 44

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

(in line with column). Note:
a. Fractures in steering wheel hub.

a. Steering wheel hub fractured

b. Fractures in steering wheel rim.

b. Steering wheel rim fractured.

c. Steering wheel spokes loose or c. A steering wheel spoke loose or fractured.
fractured.
d. Jagged edges on steering wheel d. Jagged edges on steering wheel rim likely to
rim.
injure the driver
e. If possible, check the retaining e. A steering wheel hub-retaining device is not
device on the steering wheel is fitted.
fitted.
2.1 Steering Control – Steering Column
Method Of Inspection
Reason For Rejection
a. Try to lift the steering in line with
the steering column and not the
movement at the centre of the
steering wheel.

a. Excessive movement of centre of steering wheel
in line with steering column (end float).
Note: Certain types of steering column might show
some movement not due to excessive wear, e.g.
those fitted with universal joints or flexible
couplings.

b. Push steering wheel away and b. Excessive side play indicating worn top bearings
then pull it towards you. Note any or insecure top mounting bracket.
side play.
c. While steering wheel is rotated, c. A flexible coupling or universal joint deteriorated,
check for deterioration in any worn or insecure.
flexible coupling or universal joint of
steering column.
d. Where practical, check any d. A coupling clamp bolt or locking device loose or
clamp bolts for presence and missing.
security of locking devices. (These
may be located in the engine
compartment or under chassis).

2.4 Suspension Spring Units and Linkages
Method Of Inspection
Reason For Rejection
Coil Springs
Coil Springs
a. Welding Repairs
a. Repaired By Welding

Page 27 of 99

Page 45

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Section 3 – Tyres & Road wheels
Section Contents:
Sub-section
Subject
3.1

Tyres – Condition

3.1 Tyres
Method Of Inspection
Wheels
All hub caps must be removed prior
to inspection, to allow for inspection
of wheel nuts.

Reason For Rejection

Failure to remove hub caps (even on request) prior
to inspection thereby preventing the checking of
wheel nuts. Wheel nuts must be checked to ensure
that all required are present and are properly
Advisory: Where hub caps are secured.
available / used they should be a
matched set and be in good
condition
Condition Of Tyres
On all the tyres, including the spare In accordance with MOT Inspection Manual for Car
wheel (in all vehicles except those & Light Commercial Vehicles (ISBN 0-9549239-0-1)
where the vehicle is fitted with an
alternative such as tyre weld, or
limited mileage emergency use
only tyres), examine each tyre
meets all the requirements laid
down in the MOT Inspection
Manual for Car & Light Commercial
Vehicles (ISBN 0-9549239-0-1)
Advisory: Tyres should be replaced
where the tyre depth is below two
millimetres.
Tools for changing wheels / tyres
No tools in the vehicles to enable a spare wheel
It is a requirement of the licence for and tyre to be changed.
hackney carriages and private hire
vehicles that they must have the
tools for the changing of a spare
wheel and tyre.
Note 2
Note 1
Space saver tyres should only be approved with the
Where a doughnut tank is fitted in support of a method statement highlighting driver
the boot for LPG, the spare wheel if responsibilities with regard to the maximum
still carried in the boot must be permitted speed and that space savers are a
properly secured. Alternatively, a temporary ‘get-you-home-tyre’.
spare wheel cage installed to
manufacturers
and
British
Standards may be fitted to the
underside of the vehicle.

Page 28 of 99

Page 46

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Section 4 – Body and Structure
Section Contents:
Sub-section
Subject
4.1
4.1
4.2
4.4

Vehicle Body and Condition – (Exterior)
Vehicle Body, Security and Condition – (Interior)
Doors and Seats
Bumper Bars

4.1 Vehicle Body and Condition – (Exterior)
Method Of Inspection
Reason For Rejection
Body Condition (Exterior)
Examine the body thoroughly for
security, corrosion, damage, poor
repair/paint match or sharp edges
that are likely to cause injury.

Body Condition (Exterior)
a. An insecure or missing body panel, trim step or
accessory.
b. Any sharp edge whatsoever which may cause
injury
c. Heavy scuffing, abrasions or deformation to front
and rear bumper.
d. More than 8 stone chips visible on a bonnet/grill
that has not penetrated to the metal or more than 4
stone chips that have penetrated to the metal.
e. More than 8 stone chips on any panel including
door edges, provided the base coat has not been
penetrated.
f. More than 4 stone chips on any panel where the
base coat has been penetrated to the metal and
has not been treated.
g. A single dent of more than 80mm in diameter, or
more than 3 dents of not more than 20mm in
diameter in any one panel.
h. More than 4 scratches and or abrasions of more
than 50mm in length in any one panel provided that
the base coat has not been penetrated.
i. Dull, faded paintwork which has lost its gloss
finish or paint miss match to a panel(s) to such an
extent that it detracts from the overall appearance
of the vehicle.
j. Evidence of poor repairs and or paint finish to a
repaired panel(s) including runs and overspray to
adjoining panels/trim that detracts from the overall
appearance of the vehicle.
k. Obvious signs of rust/corrosion of any size
particularly those that are covered by advertising
signs, or where damaged areas
have the
appearance of being ‘filled’ so as to disguise the
extent of any damage.
l. Exterior so dirty as to obscure condition of
paintwork
Page 29 of 99

Page 47

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

m. Lack of clearly displayed or omission of ‘No
Smoking’ signs a minimum of 70mm x 70mm in
size.

4.1 Vehicle Body, Security and Condition – (Interior)
Method Of Inspection
Reasons For Rejection
Body Condition (Interior)
a. Examine thoroughly the interior a. Insecure and loose
for damaged, insecure or loose accessories.
fixtures, fittings or accessories.

fixtures,

fittings

or

b. Dirty, missing and worn trim, b. Missing, dirty, soiled, stained, worn or insecure
carpets,
seat
belts,
mats, trim, carpets, headlining, surfaces and mats.
headlining, boot area and inclusion
of prescribed items. Remove mats
to inspect carpets underneath for
cleanliness and wear.
c. Examine interior lights, motion c. An inoperative interior light (all lights must
door locks and warning lights.
illuminate if they are part of the manufacturers
standard equipment). Missing or defective motion
switch/lock or warning lamp not illuminated.

d. Examine heating, demisting and d. A system(s), which does not function correctly, or
air condition systems for correct any part is missing including vents, controls and
operation, including passenger switches.
compartment controls where fitted
(includes electric front and rear
screen demisters)
e. Examine all windows ensuring e. An opening window that is inoperative or difficult
they allow lowering and rising to open and or close mechanism broken/missing.
easily.
f. Missing, defective or loose door locks, child locks,
protective covers, grab handles and rails. Grab
f. Examine interior door locks, grab handles/rails, which are rigid and aid the blind and
handles/ rails and safety covers.
partially sighted are worn to excess.

g. Examine grills/partitions
security and condition.

g. A grill/ partition which is insecure or has sharp
edge(s) which may cause injury to passengers or
for the driver.

h. Frayed, chaffing wiring, non-shielded terminals
and cables so routed that they cause a trip hazard,
h. Examine electrical wiring for cables that can be easily disconnected. Intercom
Page 30 of 99

Page 48

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

condition and security, including system defective, warning light inoperative and
meters (where fitted), intercom signs illegible/missing.
systems, etc.
i. unable to open, close and or lock boot lid, failure
of boot lid support mechanism, defective seals/
i. Examine the boot for access, evidence of water ingress, dirty boot and or carpets,
contents, cleanliness and water loose items stored in boot (i.e. spare wheel tools
ingress.
and equipment etc.)

Additional items to be inspected in
limousines and novelty vehicles:
j. No maximum seating capacity sign or signs
displayed. A sign or signs not clearly visible to all
j. A notice identifying the maximum passengers.
seating capacity to be displayed in
the passenger compartment and
clearly visible to all passengers. It
may be necessary to display more
than one sign indicating the
maximum seating capacity.

4.2 Doors and Seats
Method Of Inspection
Doors And Emergency Exits

Reason For Rejection
Doors And Emergency Exits

Examine the condition of all doors
and emergency exits. Check door
locks, striker plates handles and
hinges for security, wear and
missing and damaged trim/cover
plates.

a. A door or emergency exit does not latch securely
in the closed position.

Check markings describing the
presence and method of opening
emergency exit(s) are readily
visible on or adjacent to the exit
and are legible.

c. Missing, loose or worn handles, lock or striker
plate.

Check that seats are secure, clean
and not unduly worn. All loose seat
covers must be removed prior to
inspection (except that purpose
fitted covers may be left in situ)

e. Missing loose or damaged trim/cover plate.

b. A door or emergency exit cannot be opened
from both the inside and outside from the relevant
control in each case.

d. Markings describing the presence and method of
opening an emergency exit missing, illegible or
incorrect.

f. Seat cushion(s) stained, torn, holed, worn or
insecure. A seat that does not provide adequate
support at base or backrest. Torn, slashed or badly
stained seats are not acceptable.

Accessibility: Wheelchair Vehicles
Accessibility: Wheelchair Vehicles
Page 31 of 99

Page 49

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Door Configurations for wheelchair
accessible vehicles:
a. Door does not open to a full 90 degrees and
a. Single rear door – must open to cannot be secured in the open position.
a minimum of 90 degrees and be
capable of locking in place.
b. Twin doors do not open to a full 180 degrees
b. Twin rear doors – both must and cannot be secured in the open position.
open to a minimum of 180 degrees
and be capable of being locked in
place. This is to enable an
attendant (driver or guide) to assist
the
wheelchair
passenger
if
required.
4.4 Bumper Bars
Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

Examine the bumper bars and
check:
a. A loose bumper bar or mounting. A weakened
a. They are secure to the vehicle.
bumper bar and/or mounting is insecure because of
poor repairs
b. A fractured mounting bracket. Mounting bolts so
b. The mountings are secure to the worn or elongated that the bumper bar is likely to
vehicle.
detach partially or completely from the vehicle when
in use. A bumper bar secured by wire or other
temporary means is regarded as insecure and must
be rejected.

c. There is no evidence of damage.

c. Bumper bars which have jagged edges, cracks
splits or projections, which may cause injury to
persons near the vehicle. Paint miss match or
fading which is significantly different to that of the
rest of the paintwork.

Section 5 – Fuel &Emissions
Section Contents:
Sub-section
Subject
5.1
5.2

Exhaust System
Fuel System – Pipes & Tanks

5.1 Exhaust System
Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

Where applicable, check for A heat shield is missing, insecure or inadequate.
presence, security and adequacy of
Page 32 of 99

Page 50

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

grease shields to hot exhausts.

5.2 Fuel System – Pipes & Tanks
Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

a. Examine fuel tank(s) for security a. Fuel tank insecure or leaking.
and leaks
b. Check that fuel tank filler caps
are:
 Present
 Of the correct type
 Secure and seated properly
to ensure correct function of
sealing.

b. A filler cap missing or unsuitable or in such
condition that it would not prevent fuel leaking or
spilling.
Note: Temporary/ emergency fuel caps are not
permitted.

c. Damaged, chafed, insecure pipes or pipes so
c. Examine pipes to see they are positioned that there is a danger of them fouling
securely clipped to prevent damage moving parts.
by chafing and cracking, and are
not in a position where they will be
fouled by moving parts.
d. A fuel pipe immediately to or in direct contact
d. Check that no fuel pipe runs with electrical wiring or exhaust system.
immediately adjacent to or in direct
contact with electrical wiring or the
exhaust system.
Section 6 – Drivers View of the Road
Section Contents:
Sub-section
Subject
6.1
6.3
6.5

Mirrors
Windscreen – View To The Front
Window Glass Or Other Transparent Material

6.1 Mirrors

Page 33 of 99

Page 51

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

The number and position of all Note: A defective additional external mirror is not
obligatory
mirrors
must
be reason for rejection. All licensed vehicles must
checked:
be fitted with an internal rear view mirror.

a. Check the condition of each
mirror reflecting surface and
whether a person sitting in the
driver’s seat can see clearly to the
rear.

6.3 Windscreen – View to the Front
Method Of Inspection

a. Mirror Condition
 A mirror reflecting surface deteriorated or
broken.
 In such a position that a person sitting in the
driver’s seat cannot see clearly to the rear.

Reason For Rejection

Sit in the driver’s seat and check The position or size of any object restricts the
that there is a reasonable view of drivers view of the road ahead, bearing in mind the
the road ahead, bearing in mind the original design of the vehicle.
original design of the vehicle.
a. For all air operated wipers a. Air operated wipers
examine:
 Pipes inadequately clipped or supported
 The condition of any visible
 Incorrect function of the wipers or leaking
piping
components
 The function of the operating
 Incorrect operation of protection valves.
mechanism, and
 The function of necessary
valves to protect the braking
system
Note: Equipment or objects not
originally fitted to the vehicle as
part of the original design must not
obstruct the designed forward view
of the driver. In particular, objects
such as (but not limited to)
pennants, cab decorations and
external stone guards/visors should
not interrupt the view through the
swept area by the windscreen
wipers.
6.5 Window Glass or Other Transparent Material
Method Of Inspection
Reason For Rejection
a. Visually Check the condition of a. A crack, surface damage or discolouration in
all windscreens, internal screens, glass or other transparent material that:
Page 34 of 99

Page 52

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

partitions side, read, roof, and door
windows for cracks, surface
damage and discolouration.






Impairs the drivers front, side or rear view of
the road, or;
Presents a danger to any person in the
vehicle.
Dirty, smeared or marked glass or other
transparent material.
Films placed over the surface of the window
such as to darken or make opaque

b. Check presence and security of b. A windscreen or any other outside window
all windscreens, side, roof, or rear missing, or any windscreen, window, internal
windows, or internal screens or screen or partition insecure.
partitions.
c. Check for evidence of obvious c. Any external window or windscreen is obviously
leaks from all windscreens and leaking.
side, rear, roof or door windows.
d. Check for presence, security and d. A guard-rail or barrier at a window, internal
condition of guard rails or barriers screen or partition missing, insecure or damaged.
at windows, internal screens or
partitions.
e. For all vehicles first used before
1 January 1959. As far as is
practicable, check that glass fitted
to
windscreens and
outside
windows facing to the front is safety
glass.

e. The windscreen and/or any outside window
facing to the front of a vehicle obviously not safety
glass fitted to a vehicle first used before 1 January
1959

f. Glass used for a windscreen or an outside
f. For all vehicles used on or after 1 window is obviously not safety glass.
January1959, as far as is
practicable, check that glass used
for windscreens and all outside
windows is safety glass or safety
glazing.
g. For vehicles first used on or after 1 June 1978,
that windscreens and/or other windows wholly or
g. Vehicles first used on or after 1 partly on either side of the drivers seat that are not
June 1978, check that windscreens made from safety glass display an acceptable
and other windows, wholly or safety mark.
partly, on either side of the drivers’
seat are made from safety glass
displaying an acceptable safety
mark.
h. Tinted glass windows are h. The required percentage of light is
permissible to the rear side transmitted through the window.
windows provided that they are
only those supplied as standard by
the original vehicle manufacturer
Page 35 of 99

Page 53

not

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

and comply with current vehicle
Construction and Use Regulations
or any subsequent replacement.
Tinted films or glass applied
retrospectively to the vehicle
windows are not permitted.
OR as per existing Inspection
Standards i.e.
h. The light transmitted through the
windscreen must be at least 75%.
The front side windows must allow
at least 70% of light to be
transmitted through them.
Rear side windows must allow at
least 65% of light to be transmitted
through them.
The vehicles rear window is
exempt from the light transmission
test.

Note: Marking is not required for
safety glass used on vehicles first
used before1 June 1978.
Section 7 – Additional Requirements
Section Contents:
Sub-section
Subject
7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6
7.7
7.8

Speedometer
Transmission
Engine & Transmission Mountings
Oil & Water Leaks
Luggage/ Load Space
Trailers & Towbars
Warning lights
Vehicle Registration Marks

7.1 Speedometer
Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

a. Check that a speedometer is a. Speedometer not fitted
fitted.
Page 36 of 99

Page 54

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

b. Speedometer not complete or clearly
b. Check the condition of the inoperative, or dial glass broken or missing.
speedometer.
c. The speedometer cannot be illuminated.
c. Check that the speedometer can
be illuminated.
7.2 Transmission
Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

Examine transmission, check for:
a. Missing or loose flange bolts

a. A flange loose or missing flange bolt(s)

b. Cracked or insecure flanges

b. A flange cracked, or loose on the transmission
shaft
c. Wear in shaft and/or wheel c. Excessive wear in shaft bearing
bearings
d. Security of bearing housings
d. A bearing housing insecure to its fixing
e. Cracks or fractures in bearing e. A cracked or fractured bearing housing
housings
f. Wear in universal joints
f. Excessive wear in a universal joint
g. Deterioration of flexible couplings g. Deterioration of a transmission shaft flexible
coupling
h. Distorted, damaged shafts
h. A damaged, cracked or bent shaft.
i. Deterioration of bearing housing i. Deterioration of a flexible mounting of a bearing
flexible mountings
housing
j. Clearance between transmission j. Evidence of fouling between any transmission
shafts and adjacent components
shaft and an adjacent component

Front Wheel Drive
a. Check the drive shaft inner and
outer universal joint couplings and
constant velocity joints for:
 Wear and Security



Drive shaft constant velocity or universal
joint coupling worn or insecure
A flexible rubber or fabric universal coupling
unit damaged by severe cracking or
breaking up
A flexible rubber or fabric universal coupling
unit
excessively
softened
by
oil
contamination or insecure
A drive shaft constant velocity joint gaiter
split, missing or insecurely mounted.



Damage to flexible rubber or
fabric universal joints





Security
and
oil
contamination of flexible
rubber or fabric universal
joints
Condition, presence and
security of constant velocity
joint gaiters.







Page 37 of 99

Page 55

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

7.3 Engine And Transmission Mountings
Method Of Inspection
Reason For Rejection
a. Engine bay must be clean

b. Examine condition of:
 Mountings
 Sub-frames
And

Very dirty or heavily contaminated engine bays can
obscure sources of leaks or other problems.
Failure to present vehicle with a clean engine bay
will result in the test not being completed.
Any Mounting Or Sub-frame
-Loose
-Fractured
-Deteriorated
-Inappropriate repair

c. The security to chassis and check
for:
 Fractures
 Looseness
 Deterioration

7.4 Oil And Water Leaks
Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

a. Check vehicle for oil and water a. An oil or water leak, from any assembly, which
leaks from any assembly or deposits fluids underneath the vehicle whilst
component to the ground.
stationary.
b. And/or which could be deposited b. Leaks which, when the vehicle is moving, could
on the surrounding bodywork or be deposited upon the surrounding bodywork,
onto the exhaust system.
exhaust and brake system so that it would:
 Contaminate areas
 Could potentially cause a health, safety or
fire risk.
Note: If necessary, the engine can
be run at idle speed to confirm the
existence of an oil leak.

7.5 Luggage/Load Space
Method Of Inspection
Physical separation is not so much
an issue as is the safety of
passengers in the event of an
accident. The luggage should
therefore be secure and prevented
from becoming dislodged in an

Reason For Rejection



Load restraint system, if required, not
present at time of test.
Load
restraint
system
faulty
or
unserviceable.

Page 38 of 99

Page 56

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

accident in such a manner as may
cause injury. Such security can be
by means of a sheet or net, which
could be anchored to the floor of
the luggage area. Clearly if the
luggage compartment is not
physically separated from the
passenger compartment then care
will need to be taken so as not to
carry any hazardous items such as
fuel cans, detergents or other loose
items that could leak if they
become damaged.
7.6 Trailers & Towbars
Method Of Inspection
Reason For Rejection
Trailers
a. Where a local licensing authority a. Rejections as indicated on the trailer inspection
permits the use of trailers for the sheet shown at Appendix ‘B’
carriage of luggage, then the trailer
needs to be presented for test
along with the vehicle that will be
authorised to tow it. The trailer will
also need to display the appropriate
registration plate.
Note: Trailers presented for
inspection should be built by an
approved or recognised trailer
manufacturer.
An example of a typical trailer
inspection sheet can be found at
Appendix ‘B’
Tow-bars
b. Where tow bars are fitted checks b. Rejections as indicated on the trailer inspection
must be made on the condition and sheet shown at appendix ‘B’
security to the towing vehicle

7.7 Warning lights or alarms
Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

Dashboard fascia warning lights
are illuminated, and/or alarms are
activated it shall be at the
discretion of the testing station as
to whether or not the test is
completed.
Page 39 of 99

Page 57

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

7.8 Vehicle Registration Marks
Method Of Inspection

Reason For Rejection

Vehicle Registration Marks must Vehicle registration does not comply
conform
to
the
Regulations
applicable to that vehicle
Section 8 – Ancillary Equipment
Section Contents:
Sub-section
Subject
8.1
8.2
8.3

Wheelchair Restraint & Access Equipment
Meter
Electronic Payment Facility

8.1 Wheelchair Restraint & Access Equipment
Method Of Inspection
Wheelchair Restraint
a. Where applicable check condition a. A wheelchair restraint is defective, worn or
and operation of wheelchair restraint. missing.
b. A system for the effective b. Wheelchair anchorage systems and devices
anchoring of wheelchairs shall be does not conform to European Directive 76/115
provided within the vehicle in all EEC (as amended by 90/629 EEC).
spaces designated as wheelchair
spaces.

Wheelchair Access & Equipment
A vehicle shall be fitted with either of
the following forms of wheelchair
access equipment:
Ramps
c. Check that appropriate ramps fitted c. Ramps missing, insecurely stored, damaged/
are securely installed in the deformed, anti-slip covering in poor condition or
designated storage area. Examine for missing.
damage, deformity, sharp edges etc.
and provision of anti-slip covering.
Wheelchair Lift
d. A purpose designed wheelchair lift d. Vehicle not presented with a valid or current
shall conform to the LOLER 98 LOLER certificate.
Regulations. A report, confirming that
the lifting equipment is safe to use,
shall be presented at the time of the
vehicle
inspection.
Vehicles
presented for inspection with a
Page 40 of 99

Page 58

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

wheelchair lift will require a LOLER
certificate that is valid for a period of
six months from the date of issue.
Note:
Passenger lifting equipment will need
to be thoroughly examined by a
competent person, in use, at least
once every six months.
e. Any purpose designed wheelchair e. The installed ramp does not have any visible
access ramp is carried must be reference to a maximum safe working load or
lightweight and easy to deploy. The certification BS 6109.
installed ramp shall have visible
reference to safe working load of 250
kgs and certified to BS 6109.
f. Wheelchair access equipment shall f. Wheelchair access equipment is fitted to the offbe fitted either into the rear or side
side access door of the vehicle.
access door of the vehicle. Where it is
fitted to a side door this shall be the
door situated on the near side of the
vehicle, i.e. kerbside when stopped in
a normal road.
g. The aperture of the door into which g. There is not clear headroom in the aperture
the access equipment is fitted shall within the central third 1,220 mm
have minimum clear headroom in its
central third 1,220 mm. The
measurement shall be taken from the
upper centre of the fully raised
platform, or the upper face of the
ramp fully deployed on level ground.
h. A locking mechanism shall be fitted h. No evidence of a suitable locking mechanism to
that holds the access door in the hold the door open.
open position whilst in use.
i. All wheelchair tracking must be fit i. Damaged or insecure tracking or detritus
for purpose and structurally sound.
deposits within the tracking rails.
Further information on Disabled
peoples transport is available from
the Disabled Persons Transport
Advisory
(DPTAC) Website Below.
www.dptac.gov.uk

Page 41 of 99

Page 59

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

8.2 Meters
a. Check wiring of meter is sound a. Wiring is damaged, frayed, loose or not properly
and secure
secured

b. Check top light works when b. Top light not operative
activated by meter.
8.3 Electronic Payment Facility
Method of Inspection
a.

Reason for rejection

a. Check that the electronic payment
a.
a. Signage not displayed which states that
signage is affixed
contactless card payments are accepted.
Signage must be displayed in such a position
that it is prominently on view to prospective
passengers i.e. visible from the exterior of the
vehicle.

Page 42 of 99

Page 60

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

APPENDIX B
Trailer Inspection Sheet
Name of owner of trailer:
Address of owner of trailer:
Contact number of owner:
Manufacturers plate showing
chassis number:
Manufacturers plate showing
maximum weight:
Inspection Area
Trailer couplings
Tow bar mounting
brackets
Trailer body
Trailer chassis
Suspension
Wheel bearings
Tonneau cover and
fittings
Wheels and tyres
Braking system
Lighting
Indicators
Reflective triangle
Number plate
Speed restriction
notice

Description
Check condition and operation and
presence of a safety breakaway cable
Check condition and security

Pass (tick)

Fail (X)

Check condition of side and rear
tailboards
Check condition
Check condition and operation
Check for excessive free play or
roughness in bearings
Check for condition
Check security, condition and wear
Operates satisfactorily
All obligatory lights work
All indicators work
Check presence and condition
Check condition, security of fitting and
displayed clearly
Check condition and displayed clearly

I hereby certify that the above trailer has been inspected and *has/ has not been
found to be roadworthy and suitable to be used as a hackney carriage or private hire
trailer at the time of inspection. (*Delete as appropriate)
Examined by (name)
Position
Signature

Page 43 of 99

Page 61

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

APPENDIX C

Page 44 of 99

Page 62

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Private Hire Vehicles - Exemption from requirement to display Vehicle
Identification Policy
1. Statement of intent
1.1 The aim of this policy is to ensure public safety whilst taking a balanced
approach to licensing requirements. Its objective is the provision of an exemption to
allow ‘executive vehicles’ to operate without displaying external identification plates.
2. Introduction
2.1 The displaying of the external identification plate on a licensed vehicle and a
driver’s badge is important in terms of public safety and reassurance. They indicate
to the travelling public that prior to being licensed both the vehicle and the driver
have been subjected to checks to ensure their (the public’s) safety. The visible
licence number of the vehicle and driver affords members of the public and other
persons such as the Police traceability via the local licensing authority.
2.2 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 requires that private
hire vehicles display an identification plate and drivers of those vehicles wear a
driver’s badge. The same legislation also allows Bristol City Council to exempt
vehicles from the need to display an identification plate and, where that exemption
applies, the requirement to wear a Private Hire Driver badge.
3. Policy requirements
3.1 Exemptions from displaying identification plates may be in respect of individual
vehicles only based upon demonstrable evidenced based need. Applications for
exemptions relating to a fleet of vehicles will not be allowed.
3.2 Each application will be assessed on its own merit.
3.3 Applications for exemption from the requirement to display identification plates
may be considered where the following requirements are met;
a) Vehicles must be of a standard of comfort and equipped to a level higher
than that of a ‘standard’ Private Hire Vehicle. It is not intended to form a
prescriptive list of acceptable vehicles because this may be subjective and
require frequent update.
However as a guide vehicles equal to or above luxury brands of vehicles such
as ‘S’ and ‘E’ Class Mercedes Benz, 7 Series BMW, Lexus ‘GS’ or ‘LS’
models, Audi A8, series, Jaguar, Tesla, Rolls Royce and Bentley saloons may
be acceptable (The highest specification executive type cars from other
manufacturers may also be considered). Equally large high specification
MPVs such as the Volkswagen Caravelle or Mercedes Vito which enable
meetings on the move may be considered. Relevant considerations as to
whether a vehicle meets this standard include but are not limited to cost,
reputation, specification, appearance, perception, superior comfort levels and
Page 45 of 99

Page 63

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

seating specification i.e. whether the vehicle offers additional space per
passenger opposed to standard vehicles.
b) The vehicle will be in pristine condition with no visible defects, dents or
blemishes to the external bodywork or internal trim and seating. Interior
seating will usually be leather and the cabin air conditioned to maintain
passenger comfort.
c) The type of work undertaken is ‘executive’ in nature. There must be a
demonstrable need for an exemption to apply rather than a one off contract.
The type of work that may be considered ‘executive’ may include:
i) Corporate bookings to transport employees and clients on business
related journeys
ii) Other journeys where the client specifically requires a vehicle without
any private hire plates or signage on it at the time of booking
iii) Bookings for clients (for example politicians and celebrities) who for
security or personal safety reasons would not want the vehicle to be
identifiable as a private hire vehicle
The fact that the hirer pays a higher fee for hiring what may be referred to as
an Executive Hire Car (compared to what the hirer may pay for a non-exempt
Private Hire Vehicle displaying private hire plates and signage) may be
indicative (but not conclusive) that the nature of the business is Executive Hire
and that the exemption may be appropriate.
d) The percentage of ‘executive’ work undertaken by the vehicle must
constitute at least 75% of the total work carried out by the vehicle. An
application to renew an exemption from the display of identity plates must be
accompanied by a copy (preferable electronic) of the relevant Private Hire
Operator records to evidence the nature of the work carried out over the
previous licence period. Operator records must also detail evidence of
contracts with clients which require vehicles supplied to be exempt from the
display of identity plates.
e) In certain circumstances passengers or businesses may request vehicles
with tinted windows. Applicants must provide evidence of such a demand in
order for the Council’s to depart from its standard requirements prohibiting
tinted windows.
The proprietor must at all times ensure that all windows of the vehicle comply
with current Road Traffic or Construction and Use Regulations
f) A dress code commensurate with executive work is required. Applicants to
provide details of the dress code (suit/jacket or equivalent) which the
operator(s) for whom they work require them to adhere to. Dress code must
be followed at all times the vehicle is being used to undertake a booking
relating to executive work.

3.4 Where a proprietor wishes to make an application for a vehicle to be exempt
from displaying identification plates they will be required to complete the appropriate
Page 46 of 99

Page 64

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

application form. The application form will be accompanied by documentation that
supports the application and the application fee; which will be non-refundable.
3.5 A notice of exemption from displaying identification plates will be granted at the
Council’s discretion. The applicant must provide sufficient documentary evidence to
support their application. Such evidence may include:
a) A letter from each customer indicating:
i) Why they require a vehicle which does not display an identity plate,
ii) Whether they require privacy glass, and why privacy glass is
required.
iii) The type of vehicle they require.
b) A letter from the Private Hire Operator for who work is undertaken stating
the vehicle registration number of the vehicle to which this application relates
and detailing the work that will be carried out and the percentage of the work
to be carried out.
c) Copies of written contracts with customers.
d) Copies of invoices
3.6 The Council may require applicants to provide any additional documentation as
reasonably necessary to allow the Council to make an informed decision. Where
such documentation is not provided to the satisfaction of the Council the application
will be refused.
3.7 Where an application is granted and a vehicle is exempted from displaying its
external identification plate an exemption notice will issued as soon as practical after
the decision is made.
3.8 Where a vehicle is exempted from the requirement to display an external
identification plate the vehicle will also be exempted from the need to display the two
internal plates.
3.9 Irrespective of when an exemption notice is granted the initial exemption notice
will expire on the same day as the expiration of the vehicles current private hire
licence, unless it is otherwise surrendered or revoked. Thereafter any renewed
exemption notice will last for a period of time that is coterminous with that vehicle’s
private hire licence unless either the licence or notice is otherwise surrendered or
revoked.
3.10 Exemption notices may be renewed annually. An application to renew the
exemption must be accompanied by the renewal fee which is non-refundable.
3.11 The authority to determine any application for an exemption notice is by virtue
of this policy delegated to the Licensing & Trading Standards Manager and Licensing
Team Leader.

Page 47 of 99

Page 65

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

3.12 Other than where to do so would conflict with the requirements of this policy, all
vehicles granted an exemption notice must, in addition to the requirements of this
policy, comply with the requirements for private hire vehicles contained within the
Private Hire Vehicle licence conditions.
3.13 The below conditions apply to all Private Hire Vehicles granted an exemption
from displaying identification plates and are in addition to the criteria and general
conditions applicable to all Private Hire Vehicles;
a. The valid Private Hire Vehicle plates issued to the licence holder shall be
kept within the vehicle at all times and shall be produced for inspection by an
authorised officer of Bristol City Council or a Police Officer upon request.
b. The exemption notice shall be retained within the vehicle at all material
times and shall be produced for inspection by an authorised officer of Bristol
City Council or a Police Officer upon request.
c. In the event of loss or damage rendering such plate or notice unserviceable
the proprietor shall make immediate application for a replacement for which a
fee is payable.
d. The proprietor will not display in, on or from the vehicle any advertisement,
signage, logos or insignia advertising the operating company or the vehicle’s
status as a private hire vehicle.
e. During the period of the exemption notice, the driver shall not be required to
wear a Private Hire Driver’s identification badge but will have it available for
immediate inspection by an authorised officer of the Council or any Police
Officer on request.
f. The second Private Hire Driver’s identification badge must at all times be
displayed in a prominent position in the vehicle.
g. Failure to comply with the above terms will invalidate the exemption granted
with immediate effect.
h. These terms shall remain valid for the term of the notification unless
replaced by a different scheme or system of identification.
i. When the vehicle is being used for non-executive private hire work the
licence plates must be displayed.
j. The exemption will cease to have effect on selling or transferring the vehicle
to another party. The exemption notice must be returned to the Council along
with the private hire vehicle identification plates unless being sold to for use as
a Private Hire Vehicle in Bristol; in which case, only the exemption notice has
to be returned.
k. A taximeter will not be installed in the vehicle.

Page 48 of 99

Page 66

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

l. During the period of exemption the driver is required to comply with the
dress code previously supplied to the Council.
m. The proprietor shall notify the Council of any change in the use of the
vehicle by the end of the following working day.
3.14 The below conditions apply to all Private Hire Operators who operate vehicles
to which an exemption from display of plates has been granted. These conditions are
in addition to the general conditions applicable to all Private Hire Operators;
a. Bookings taken in respect of clients who require vehicles exempt from the
display of plates must be paid for on account. No payment can be made to the
driver of the vehicle at time of hiring.
b. Bookings in respect of clients who on occasion require vehicles exempt
from the display of plates must be subdivided into to those which;
i) Require vehicle to be exempt from display of plates
ii) Do not require vehicles exempt from the display of plates
Copies of records detailing the division of work to be kept for 12 months from
period of hire and must be provided to the Council on request.
c. Copies of contracts with clients who require vehicles exempt from the
display of plates must be kept for 12 months from date of commencement and
provided to the Council on request.
d. Dress code commensurate with executive work (suit/jacket or equivalent) to
be in place in relation to bookings taken for vehicles exempt from the display
of plates. Drivers of such vehicles to be required by the operator to comply
with the dress code during the hire period.

Page 49 of 99

Page 67

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Policy to address nuisance annoyance and obstruction of the highway by
hackney carriage and private hire vehicles
This policy is not limited to behaviour that is alleged to contravene the criminal law,
although inappropriate parking can result in the commission of offences this is not
necessarily so in every case.
In the event that proprietors of vehicles are observed as standing in an unauthorised
location they will receive a letter asking for the identity of the driver of the vehicle at
the time and warning that the driver is at risk of having their licence suspended or
revoked. The driver will be asked to promise in writing not to repeat the problem in
the future.
If the proprietor fails to provide the information, or if the promise is not forthcoming,
or if any promise given is alleged to have been broken, then a hearing will be
arranged.
At the hearing the driver will be afforded the opportunity to make representations as
to why the policy guideline (one month suspension for a first and isolated incident)
should not be applied in his/her case. It is proposed that a failure of the proprietor to
identify the driver should be treated in the same way as if the proprietor were
themselves the driver.
As with all licensing decisions there would be a right of appeal to the Magistrates
Court against any decision to suspend.
Hearings should be convened to take place before a delegated officer, thereby
enabling a quick response by the council.
The Licensing Manager (or his nominated deputy in his absence) have delegated
powers to consider suspension or revocation of licences which are extended to
considering allegations that fall within this policy.

Page 50 of 99

Page 68

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver
Fit and Proper Person Policy
All applicants and licence holders shall satisfy the Council that they are a fit and
proper person to hold such a licence. The Medical Fitness Policy and Training Policy
shall form part of the fit and proper person test.
Fit & Proper Person is the statutory test set out in the relevant legislation and is a
pre-requisite before an applicant can be granted a licence. There is no statutory
definition of Fit & Proper Person but there is case law that aides the Council’s
understanding of its meaning. In simple terms, it means the applicants suitability to
hold a licence by complying with the minimum expected standards as detailed in the
Policy.
Drivers must at all times remain fit & proper persons whilst licensed. In the event of
complaint or reported incident the driver’s fitness will be considered in the context of
the fit & proper person policy, with reference to the guidelines relating to the
relevance of criminal behavior, and appropriate action taken.
DVLA (Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency) Licence check
1. All new applicants for Hackney carriage and private hire drivers’ licences and all
existing licensees on their next application for renewal shall be required on
application (and on renewal every three years thereafter) to provide information in
the form of a DVLA history check;
Applicants who hold a;
a. community licence,
b. exchangeable licence or
c. Northern Ireland driving licence
may still be granted a Hackney carriage or private hire driver licence. Such
applicants will be required to exchange their driving licence to a Full DVLA
Driving Licence before the renewal of their first private hire or Hackney
carriage driver licence.
Enhanced Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS Update Service)
2. All applicants and drivers shall be required to undertake the following steps:
a. An enhanced DBS certificate or future equivalent must be provided to the
satisfaction of the Licensing Team.
b. The applicant must subscribe to the DBS Update Service , or future
equivalent and maintain subscription to the service and at all times whilst
they hold a hackney carriage or private hire drivers licence
c. Information relating to the applicants DBS Update Service Details and a
Consent Form shall be provided to the satisfaction of the Licensing Team

Page 51 of 99

Page 69

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

d. The Council will have the right to require a further DBS check to be
completed at the licensees expense at any time during the currency of the
licence should the Council have reason to doubt the fitness of the licence
holder to hold the licence.
e. In the event of a delay of 6 weeks or more for a DBS application to be
returned the Licensing Team may inform the Chair of the Public Safety
and Protection Committee of the delay.
f. If an applicant or licence holder does not continuously subscribe to the
DBS Update service or the status of a DBS certificate changes the
applicant will be required to;
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Provide a new enhanced DBS Certificate or future
equivalent;
Subscribe to the DBS Update Service , or future
equivalent;
Provide information relating to the applicants DBS
Update Service Details and a Consent Form shall be
provided to the satisfaction of the Licensing Team

Any pending applications may not be determined and existing licences may be
revoked or suspended until these steps are completed to the satisfaction of the
Licensing Team.
Certificate of Good Character
3. Where any applicant has been resident abroad at any time up to 5 years prior to
an application they must generally provide a Certificate of Good Character or
similar document from each and every country within which they have been
resident, save in exceptional circumstances. Residency for these purposes is
considered by this Licensing Authority as where the person has lived in a country
for longer than 6 months in a given calendar year. Where this Certificate has
been produced in a non-English language, the applicant will generally be required
to produce a translation of the Certificate from the Embassy or Consulate of that
country and provide the original document, save in exceptional circumstances.
An exception might be permitted where a refugee has been allowed to stay in the
UK and has been given asylum, and this exception will only apply to that country.
The cost of any DBS checks undertaken, subscription to the DBS Update Service
and Certificates of Good Character are to be met by the applicant in full.
Medical Fitness
4. The Council’s current medical requirement is summarised as follows;
a. Applicants shall demonstrate that they have satisfied the medical standard
as specified by the Council.
Page 52 of 99

Page 70

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

b. Applicants shall supply a Council medical examination report completed by
their own GP, or other doctor who works at the applicant’s own registered
medical practice. This will be a Group 2 medical as specified by the
(DVLA) for PCV/HGV drivers.
c. A completed medical examination report must be provided by new
applicants.
d. Existing drivers must supply a medical examination report as follows:
i. Every five year period from the age of 45,
ii. Annually from the age of 65
e. The Council will also have the right to recall the licence holder at any time
during the lifespan of the licence for a medical examination should the
Council have reason to doubt the fitness of the licence holder to hold the
licence.
Skills Requirement
5. The Council can require applicants or licence holders to pass certain tests and
undertake training in order to hold or continue to hold a licence. The Council can
also require existing drivers to undertake mandatory training so that their skills
and knowledge are refreshed. This training may be a condition of the renewal of
the licence. The current requirements are set out below
Knowledge Test
6. All new applicants must pass a knowledge test as specified by the Council
relevant to the licence type applied for, i.e. Hackney carriage or private hire driver
licences. The test will include a requirement that the applicant demonstrates a
sufficient level of communication skills to be a licence holder.
Current private hire driver licence holders applying for a Hackney carriage driver
licence must pass the knowledge test at the Hackney carriage standard.
Gold Standard
7. All new applicants for a Hackney carriage or private hire driver licence must
provide information to the Council to show they have completed the Bristol Gold
Standard training programme.
Applicants who already hold a current Hackney carriage or private hire driver
licence do not have to undertake the Bristol Gold Standard training if applying for
the alternative licence.
Driving Test
8. All new applicants must pass a further driving test as specified by the Licensing
Manager in consultation with the Chair of the Public Safety & Protection
Committee.

Page 53 of 99

Page 71

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Training for Existing Licensed Drivers
9. All existing Hackney carriage and private hire drivers will be required from time to
time to attend mandatory training as set by the Council. Completion of any
training may be a requirement of licence renewal
Mandatory Safeguarding Training
10. All new applicants for a Hackney carriage or private hire driver licence must
complete mandatory safeguarding training as specified by the Council.
11. All licensed Hackney carriage or private hire drivers must complete mandatory
safeguarding training as specified by the Council within 6 months of the policy
being implemented.
Language Proficiency
12. All new applicants must complete a mandatory test of their language proficiency,
which will cover both oral and written English language skills and be specified by
the Council. The Council may require existing Hackney carriage and private hire
drivers to conduct this test. Such a test will be completed the licensees expense.
Expired Licences
13. In the event a private hire or Hackney carriage driver licence expires the
following applies:
a. For applications submitted less than 12 months from expiry of the previous
licence the applicant will not be required to complete the Gold Standard or
Knowledge Test if they have previously completed this requirement. If the
applicant has not yet completed the Gold Standard training they shall be required
to complete this by their next renewal or grant application;
14. Applicants who already hold a current Hackney carriage or private hire driver
licence do not have to undertake the Bristol Gold Standard training if applying for
the alternative licence.

Page 54 of 99

Page 72

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles Licensing of individuals –
Guidelines relating to the relevance of criminal behaviour.
General policy
General Matters
1.

Each case will be decided on its own merits.

2.

The overriding consideration is the safety of the public. The Council should
ensure so far as possible that those licensed to drive hackney carriage and
private hire vehicles are suitable persons to do so, that they are safe drivers
with good driving records and adequate experience, sober, courteous,
mentally and physically fit, honest and not persons who would take advantage
of their employment to abuse, assault or otherwise mistreat passengers.
Members of the public entrust themselves to the care of drivers both for their
own safety and for fair dealing. Passengers may be especially vulnerable
people; the widespread use of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles by
Council departments and voluntary agencies working with children and adults
with special needs is indicative of the trust those bodies place in drivers. The
widespread practice of delivering unaccompanied property is indicative of the
trust that business people place in drivers. Moreover, it is comparatively easy
for a dishonest driver to defraud the public by demanding more than the legal
fare etc. Overseas visitors can be confused by the change in currency and
become "fair game" for an unscrupulous driver.

3.

A person with a current conviction for a serious crime need not be
permanently barred from obtaining a licence but should be expected to (a)
remain free of conviction for an appropriate period and (b) show adequate
evidence of good character from the time of the conviction. Simply remaining
free of conviction will not generally be regarded as sufficient evidence of good
character.

4.

Some discretion may be appropriate if the offence is isolated and there are
mitigating circumstances. Similarly, multiple offences or a series of offences
over a period of time are likely to give greater cause for concern and may
demonstrate a pattern of inappropriate behaviour which should be taken into
account. A particularly serious view may be taken where the victim of the
offence is especially vulnerable.

5.

Any changes in legislation will be dealt with as appropriate.

6.

Applicants or licence holders who had attended police training schemes would
have such attendance taken into account.

Page 55 of 99

Page 73

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Licensee Self Reporting
Licence holders are required to notify the Council in writing by close of business on
the following working day of the happening of any of the following events:
1. Receiving a simple or conditional caution or being convicted of any criminal
offence
2. Being arrested, interviewed, charged, reported for summons or receiving a
postal requisition in connection with any motoring or criminal offence.
3. Receiving any out of court disposal including formal warnings, community
resolutions, restorative justice education and awareness courses, community
protection warnings and notices or fixed penalty notices.
Any failure to notify the Council of the happening of any of the above events may
result in a review by the Council as to whether the licence holder is a fit and proper
person.
Importantly, a failure by a licence holder to disclose any of the above events that the
Council is subsequently advised of might be seen as behaviour that questions
honesty and therefore the suitability of the licence holder regardless of the outcome
of the initial allegation.
A licensee shall not be entitled to benefit from a failure to disclose such relevant
information to the Council where any period of time specified in this policy has
expired.

Offending Behaviour

The following examples afford a general guide on the action which might be taken
where convictions, cautions or alternative methods of disposal and endorsable fixed
penalties are disclosed, or where offending behaviour is proved to the satisfaction of
the Council and reference to conviction should be construed accordingly.
Crimes resulting in death
Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime which resulted in the
death of another person or was intended to cause the death or serious injury of
another person they will not be licensed.
This will include:
Murder
Manslaughter
Manslaughter or culpable homicide while driving
Arson with intent to endanger life
Grievous Bodily Harm with intent
Malicious Wounding

Page 56 of 99

Page 74

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

This is not intended to be an exhaustive list
Exploitation
Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime involving, related to,
or has any connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another individual
irrespective of whether the victim or victims were adults or children, they will not be
licensed.
This will include:
Slavery
Child sexual abuse
Exploitation
Trafficking
Grooming
Psychological
Emotional or financial abuse
This is not intended to be an exhaustive list
Offences involving violence against the person/property
As hackney carriage and private hire drivers have close contact with the public, in
general where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence against the
person, or connected with any offence of violence, a licence will not be granted, in
general, until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence
imposed.
This will include:
Grievous Bodily Harm
Robbery
S 4 or S4A Public Order Offences
S2 or S4 Protection from Harassment Act 1997 offences
S4 Protection from Harassment Act 1997 offences
Actual bodily harm
Violent Disorder
Common Assault
Assault Emergency Worker
Affray
Riot
Criminal Damage
Arson
This is not intended to be an exhaustive list

Page 57 of 99

Page 75

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Possession of a weapon
Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any other
weapon related offence, a licence will not be granted, in general, until at least seven
years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.
Sexual offences and offences of Indecency
Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or connected with
illegal sexual activity, a licence will not be granted.
In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence to any
applicant who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register or on any barred list.
Dishonesty
Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence where dishonesty is an element
of the offence, a licence will not be granted, in general, until at least seven years
have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.
This will include:
Theft
Burglary
Fraud including Benefit Fraud
Handling/Receiving stolen goods
Supply of Counterfeit or illicit goods (for example tobacco or alcohol)
Forgery
Conspiracy to defraud
Obtaining by deception
Bribery
Perjury
Perverting the Course of Justice
This is not intended to be an exhaustive list
Drugs
Where an applicant has any conviction for, or related to, the supply of drugs, or
possession with intent to supply or connected with possession with intent to supply,
a licence will not be granted, in general, until at least 10 years have elapsed since
the completion of any sentence imposed.
Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to the
possession of drugs, a licence will not be granted, in general, until at least five have
elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. In these circumstances, any
applicant may also have to undergo drugs testing for a period at their own expense
to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs.

Page 58 of 99

Page 76

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Discrimination
Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with discrimination in
any form, a licence will not be granted, in general, until at least seven years have
elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.
Motoring convictions
Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged with the
responsibility of carrying the public. It is accepted that offences can be committed
unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic offence would not prohibit
the granting of a licence. However, applicants with multiple motoring convictions may
indicate that an applicant does not exhibit the behaviours of a safe road user and
one that is suitable to drive professionally.
Any motoring conviction while a licensed driver demonstrates that the licensee may
not take their professional responsibilities seriously. However, it is accepted that
offences can be committed unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic
offence may not necessitate the revocation of a taxi or private hire vehicle driver
licence providing the authority considers that the licensee remains a fit and proper
person to retain a licence.
Consideration will be given to the nature of the offence and the penalty including
points and fines.
Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs
Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving, driving under the influence of
drugs or being in charge of a vehicle whilst under the influence of drink or drugs, in
general a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since
the completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed.
In the case of driving under the influence of drugs, any applicant may also have to
undergo drugs testing at their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using
controlled drugs.
In addition, applicants will normally be required to show that a period of at least 5
years has elapsed after completion of detoxification treatment if (s)he was an
alcoholic.

Using a hand-held device whilst driving
Where an applicant has a conviction for using a held‐hand mobile telephone or a
hand‐held device whilst driving, a licence will not be granted until at least five years
have elapsed since the conviction or completion of any sentence or driving ban
imposed, whichever is the later.

Page 59 of 99

Page 77

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Miscellaneous Offences
The above categories of offences are not intended to capture every type of offending
behaviour. Any other offences of a like kind shall be construed accordingly. Those
that plainly fall outside of the above categories shall be considered on a case by
case basis taking into consideration the nature and seriousness of the offending
conduct.
Examples of identified offending behaviour not falling within the above categories but
to be construed accordingly are:
Resisting Arrest
Obstructing an Officer
S5 Public Order Act offence
Drunk & Disorderly
This is not intended to be an exhaustive list

Page 60 of 99

Page 78

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Policy for Exemption Requests from carrying Assistance Dogs
Statement of Intent
1. The aim of this policy is to provide a process for drivers who have a certifiable
medical condition which is aggravated by exposure to dogs to apply for an
exemption from their duties to carry assistance dogs on medical grounds.
Introduction
2. Section 168 of the Equality Act 2010 places duties on private hire and
hackney carriage drivers to carry assistance dogs in their vehicles, and not
charge extra for doing so.
3. An assistance dog, as prescribed under Section 173 of the Equality Act 2010,
is:






a dog which has been trained to guide a blind person
a dog which has been trained to assist a deaf person
a dog which has been trained by a prescribed charity to assist a
disabled person who has a disability that consist of epilepsy or
otherwise affects the persons mobility, manual dexterity, physical coordination or ability to lift, carry or otherwise move everyday objects
a dog of a prescribed category which has been trained to assist a
disabled person who has a disability

4. The Council must issue a driver with an exemption certificate if satisfied it is
appropriate to do so on medical grounds.
The Policy
5. Exemptions from carrying assistance dogs may be made in respect of
individual drivers only.
6. Each application will be based on its own merit.
7. Applications for exemption from the requirements to carry an assistance dog
may be considered where the following requirements are met;
7.1

A request for exemption is made in writing, using the Council’s
Application for Exemption form
Sufficient evidence supporting the request is presented to the
Licensing Team from a medical professional, usually their
general practitioner, or other Doctor who works at the applicant’s
own registered medical practice

Page 61 of 99

Page 79

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Sufficient evidence may include allergen testing results, clinical
history, details of any ongoing investigations, or a full diagnosis
(for example severe allergy or cynophobia), including if the
allergy is time limited. A simple statement from a medical
professional will not be considered sufficient for the purpose of
an exemption request
7.2

The evidence presented proves that the driver cannot carry an
assistance dog in their vehicle, as this would be detrimental to
the drivers health

8. On receipt of an exemption request, the Licensing Manager will consider the
request taking into account the supporting medical evidence.
9. For Hackney Carriage drivers, further consideration will be made taking into
account the type of Hackney Carriage vehicle that will be driven. Particular
consideration will be given to the interior of the vehicle, and whether the
vehicle has a partition separating the driver from the assistance dog and
passenger.
10. The Licensing Manager reserves the right to consider advice from the
Council’s Occupational Health service. Any costs incurred will be borne by the
applicant.
11. If an exemption from carrying assistance dogs is granted, an exemption
certificate and badge as prescribed by law will be issued to the driver.
12. An exemption will be granted for a specified period of time as determined by
the Licensing Manager.
13. The prescribed exemption badge must be clearly displayed at all times in any
Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle that the exempt driver will be driving,
and made available to an Authorised Officer on request.
14. The exemption badge and certificate remain the property of the Council, and
must be returned at the request of the Licensing Team.
15. If you have any queries regarding this policy, please contact the Licensing
Team.

Page 62 of 99

Page 80

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Policy for Exemption Requests from carrying Passengers in Wheelchairs
Statement of Intent
1. The aim of this policy is to ensure public safety and the safety of licensed
drivers, whilst taking a balanced approach to licensing requirements. Its
objective is the provision of a process to exempt drivers from carrying
passengers in wheelchairs on medical grounds, where the act of transferring
or assisting the passenger could cause harm to the driver, passenger, or both.
Introduction
2. Section 165 of the Equality Act 2010 places duties on Private Hire and
Hackney Carriage Drivers who operate a Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle to
carry passengers in a wheelchair, and provide assistance to ensure safety
and reasonable comfort.
3. Certain medical grounds may exist meaning the driver cannot provide
assistance, for example where a person’s physical condition makes it
impossible, or reasonably difficult, to assist passengers in a particular type of
wheelchair.
4. Where this is the case, an exemption may be granted to the driver, exempting
them from the requirement to provide assistance to a passenger with a
wheelchair.
The Policy
5. Exemptions from carrying passengers in wheelchairs can be made in respect
of individual drivers only.
6. Each application will be based on its own merit.
7. Applications for exemption from the requirements to carry a wheelchair
passenger may be considered where the following requirements are met;
7.1

A request for exemption is made in writing, using the Council’s
Application for Exemption application form
Sufficient evidence supporting the request is presented to the
Licensing Team from a medical professional, usually their
General Practitioner, or other Doctor who works at the
applicant’s own registered medical practice.
Sufficient evidence may include clinical history, details of any
ongoing investigations, or a full diagnosis. A simple statement
from a medical professional will not be considered sufficient for
the purpose of an exemption request

Page 63 of 99

Page 81

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

The evidence presented proves that the driver cannot physically
carry out the duty of carrying passengers with wheelchairs, and
that this would cause a hazard for both the driver and passenger
8. On receipt of an exemption request, the Licensing Manager will consider the
request taking into account the supporting medical evidence provided.
9. The Licensing Manager will reserve the right to consider advice from the
Council’s Occupational Health service. Any costs incurred will be borne by the
applicant.
10. If an exemption from carrying passengers in wheelchairs is granted, an
exemption certificate and badge will be issued to the driver.
11. An exemption will be granted for a specified period of time as determined by
the Licensing Manager.
12. The exemption badge must be clearly displayed at all times in any Hackney
Carriage or Private Hire vehicle that the exempt driver will be driving, and
made available to an Authorised Officer on request.
13. The exemption badge and certificate remain the property of the Council, and
must be returned at the request of the Licensing Team.
If you have any queries regarding this policy, please contact the Licensing
Team

Page 64 of 99

Page 82

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Private Hire Operator Policy
1. As with driver licensing, the objective in licensing private hire vehicle operators is
to protect the public, who may be using operators’ premises and trusting that the
drivers and vehicles dispatched are above all else safe. It is important therefore
that the Council are assured that those that are granted a private hire vehicle
operator also pose no threat to the public and have no links to serious criminal
activity. Although private hire vehicle operators may not have direct contact with
passengers, they are still entrusted to ensure that the vehicles and drivers used
to carry passengers are appropriately licensed and so maintain the safety
benefits of the driver licensing regime.
Criminality checks for private hire vehicle operators
2. Enhanced DBS and barred list checks are not available for private hire vehicle
operator licensing. A basic disclosure from the DBS is required annually. Any
individual may apply for a basic check and the certificate will disclose any
unspent convictions recorded on the Police National Computer (PNC). The
Council will consider whether an applicant or licence holder with a conviction for
offences other than those relating to driving, meet the ‘fit and proper’ threshold
with reference to the guidelines relating to the relevance of criminal behavior and
appropriate action taken.
3. In many cases individuals that licence as a private hire vehicle operator may
already be licensed as a driver. If this is the case the applicant a basic DBS
check is not required. Should the individual cease to hold a driver licence a basic
certificate shall be required immediately.
4. Refusal to licence an individual as a driver or to suspend or revoke a driver
licence does not automatically mean that the individual cannot be issued with or
continue to hold a PHV operator’s licence. The Council’s decision will be
independent of a driver licence refusal/suspension/revocation and based on
appropriate information. The Council will generally only consider information that
would be available via a basic DBS check. If however the Council has in its
possession information regarding an individual that was disclosed via an
enhanced DBS check which casts doubt over whether that individual is a fit and
proper person to hold a PHV Operator’s licence, the Council may take it into
account if considered relevant.
5. A private hire operator licence may be applied for by a company or partnership.
The ‘fit and proper’ test shall be applied to each of the directors or partners in
that company or partnership. Private hire vehicle operators are required to
advise the Council of any change in directors or partners within 7 working days.
6. All applicants and existing licence holders who have lived in another country for
a continuous period of three months (or more) within the last five years of the
date of their licence application are required to submit a certificate of good
character‟ (or similar) from each country. This document will either confirm good
character‟ or list any convictions recorded against an applicant. Where this
Certificate has been produced in a non-English language, the applicant will
Page 65 of 99

Page 83

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

generally be required to produce a translation of the Certificate from the
Embassy or Consulate of that country and provide the original document, save in
exceptional circumstances. An exception might be permitted where a refugee
has been allowed to stay in the UK and has been given asylum, and this
exception will only apply to that country. The cost of certificates of good
character (or similar) are to be met by the applicant in full.
7. The Operator shall, due to handling and processing personal information,
register with the Information Commissioners Office as per the Data Protection
Act 2018. Further information can be found at https://ico.org.uk/fororganisations/register/. Evidence of registration must be provided to the Council.
8. The Operator shall ensure personal information taken at the time of booking is
stored in accordance with General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
regulations.
Booking and dispatch staff
9. Private hire vehicle drivers are not the only direct contact that private hire vehicle
users have with private hire vehicle operators’ staff, for example a person taking
bookings (be it by phone or in person). A vehicle dispatcher decides which driver
to send to a user, a position that could be exploited by those seeking to exploit
children and vulnerable adults. It is therefore appropriate that all staff that have
contact with private hire vehicle users and the dispatching of vehicles should not
present an undue risk to the public or the safeguarding of children and
vulnerable adults.
10. The Council needs be satisfied that private hire vehicle operators can
demonstrate that all staff that have contact with the public and/or oversee the
dispatching of vehicles do not pose a risk to the public. Private hire operators are
required to keep a register of all staff that will take bookings or dispatch vehicles
is kept.
11. Operators are required to evidence that they have had sight of a Basic DBS
check on all individuals listed on their register of booking and dispatch staff and
to ensure that Basic DBS checks are conducted on any individuals added to the
register and that this is compatible with their policy on employing ex-offenders.
DBS certificates provided by the individual should be recently issued when
viewed, alternatively the operator could use a ‘responsible organisation’ to
request the check on their behalf. When individuals start taking bookings and
dispatching vehicles for an operator they shall be required, as part of their
employment contract, to advise the operator of any convictions while they are
employed in this role.
12. The register of all staff that will take bookings or dispatch vehicles shall be a
‘living document’ that maintains records of all those in these roles for the same
duration as booking records are required to be kept, this will enable crossreferencing between the two records. A record that the operator has had sight of
a basic DBS check certificate (although the certificate itself should not be
retained) shall be retained for the duration that the individual remains on the
Page 66 of 99

Page 84

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

register. Should an employee cease to be on the register and later re-entered, a
new basic DBS certificate should be requested and sight of this recorded.
13. The register of all staff that will take bookings or dispatch vehicles shall be made
available to authorised officers on request.
14. Operators may outsource booking and dispatch functions but they cannot pass
on the obligation to protect children and vulnerable adults. Operators shall be
required to evidence that comparable protections are applied by the company to
which they outsource these functions.
15. Operators or applicants for a licence shall provide the Council with their policy on
employing ex-offenders in roles that would be on the register of all staff that will
take bookings or dispatch vehicles. Those with a conviction for offences provided
in the Councils guidelines relating to the relevance of criminal behavior other
than those relating to driving, may not be suitable to decide who is sent to carry
a child or vulnerable adult unaccompanied in a car.

Fit and Proper Person policy in respect of booking and dispatch staff,
individuals that handle personal information relating to bookings or act as
designated safeguarding lead
16. The Operator shall have in place a Fit and Proper Person policy for all
individuals that take bookings and dispatching vehicles, handle personal
information in respect of bookings or act as designated safeguarding lead on
behalf of the Operator. The Policy shall include how checks including basic
disclosures will be documented, the frequency of checks, the decision making
process in respect of unspent convictions and the frequency of policy reviews.
Records relating to the checks and policy shall be made available to Authorised
Officers on request.
Record keeping
17. Section 56 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
requires private hire vehicle operators to keep records of the particulars of every
booking invited or accepted, whether it is from the passenger or at the request of
another operator. The Council require as a minimum private hire vehicle
operators to record the following information for each booking:

a. The name of any individual that responded to the booking request
b.
c.
d.
e.

The date and time on which the booking is made and if different, the
date of the proposed journey;
The name of the hirer, and their contact details such as an address,
phone number or e-mail and the name of the lead passenger if different
from the hirer;
The agreed time and place of pick-up point, or, if more than one, the
agreed time and place of the first pick-up-point;
The destination(s);
Page 67 of 99

Page 85

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

f.
g.
h.
i.
j.
k.
l.

The drivers badge and licence number and vehicle plate and
registration number allocated the booking;
The fare agreed for the journey (where appropriate);
Any particular needs of the customer for example disability
requirements (where appropriate);
If appropriate, the name of the other operator for whom a booking was
received and / or to whom the booking was subcontracted and any
relevant notes;
How the booking was made (i.e. in person, telephone, online);
The name of any individual that dispatched the vehicle
Whether the booking was fulfilled and if not the reasons why it was not
fulfilled.

18. Booking registers will enable the passenger to be traced if this becomes
necessary and should improve driver security and facilitate enforcement.
Booking records should be retained for a minimum of twelve months.
19. Private hire vehicle operators have a duty under data protection legislation to
protect the information they record. The Information Commissioner’s Office
provides comprehensive on-line guidance on registering as a data controller and
how to meet their obligations.
20. Operators are required to maintain and keep an up-to-date a register containing
the following information:
a.
Name, date of birth and home address of every Private Hire Driver
operated by them;
b.
Details including date of expiry of the Council Private Hire Driver licence,
badge number and licence number of every Private Hire Driver licence
holder operated by the Operator;
c.
Any call sign/codes allocated to each Private Hire Driver;
d.
The date the driver commenced and ceased carrying out bookings on
behalf of the Operator ( if applicable);
e.
Name and home address of the proprietor of every Private Hire Vehicle
working on behalf of the Operator;
f.
Details including The Council licence plate number, licence number,
expiry date, vehicle make and vehicle registration number of every Private
Hire Vehicle used to carry out bookings.
g.
The date the Private Hire Vehicle commenced and ceased being used for
carrying out bookings on behalf of the Operator;
h.
The name of the individual who responded to the booking request
i.
The name of the individual who dispatched the vehicle
This register must be made immediately available for inspection on
demand by any authorised Officer or Police Officer.
21. Operators are required to keep and maintain the following for every Private Hire
Driver and Private Hire Vehicle working on behalf of the Operator;
a. A copy of the drivers current Private Hire Drivers licence ;
Page 68 of 99

Page 86

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

A copy of the drivers current Private Hire Drivers badge;
A copy of photographic proof of identification ;
A copy of the current Private Hire Vehicle licence;
A copy of the Private Hire Vehicles current MOT certificate;
A copy of the Private Hire Vehicles current vehicle safety cosmetic test;
A copy of the Private Hire Vehicles current insurance certificate or cover
note in respect of the driver using the Private Hire Vehicle;
h. A copy of the Taximeter calibration certificate, where appropriate;
22. Where the licensed Private Hire Vehicle register is paper based it shall be in the
form of a bound book
23. Where the licensed Private Hire Vehicle register is computerised the register
shall be capable of being readily printed and produced on demand to an
Authorised Officer or Police Officer. Computerised records shall be properly
backed up so as to ensure compliance with the provision of governing retention.
24. Operators shall forward an electronic copy of the current register of Private Hire
Drivers and Private Hire Vehicles to the Council on the first working day of each
month.

Use of passenger carrying vehicles (PCV) licensed drivers
25. PCV licensed drivers are subject to different checks from taxi and private hire
vehicle licensed drivers as the work normally undertaken, i.e. driving a bus, does
not present the same risk to passengers. Members of the public are entitled to
expect when making a booking with a private hire vehicle operator that they will
receive a private hire vehicle licensed vehicle and driver. The use of a driver who
holds a PCV licence and the use of a public service vehicle (PSV) such as a
minibus to undertake a private hire vehicle booking should not be permitted as a
condition of the private hire vehicle operator’s licence without the informed
consent of the booker. Where a private hire vehicle is unsuitable, for example
where a larger vehicle is needed because more than eight passenger seats
required or to accommodate luggage, the booker should be informed that a PSV
is necessary, and that a PCV licensed driver will be used who is subject to
different checks and not required to have an enhanced DBS check.

Trading name
26. Operators shall ensure that any trading name is approved by the Council,
including any change of name. Where a trading name is of a similar nature to an
existing operator, or deemed offensive in nature, the trading name will normally
be refused.

Page 69 of 99

Page 87

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

27. The Operator shall notify the Council, in writing, of any proposed change of
name of the Operator and shall await approval in writing from the Council prior to
using any new name.
Nominated individuals.
28. The Operator shall ensure that the Council are notified in writing of the name and
the details of any individual nominated as a Responsible Person for managing
the business in the absence of the Operator.
29. The Operator shall have a designated safeguarding lead which shall be detailed
in the Operators Safeguarding Policy. Any changes to the contact details or
name of this lead shall be provided to the Council at least 7working days prior to
taking effect
Note: Further guidance is available for operators in respect of the content of policies
Safeguarding Policy
30. The Operator shall have in place a Safeguarding Policy which includes - how
reports of safeguarding issues will be reported and managed by the Operator,
the name and contact details of the Safeguarding Lead acting on behalf of the
Operator, how safeguarding reports may be escalated and determined and how
frequently the policy will be reviewed . The policy shall be provided on
application and any policy changes will be forwarded to the Council at least 7
working days prior to taking effect.
Note: Guidance is available for operators in respect of the content of policies
Language proficiency
31. The Council will have the right to require applicants and licence holders to
complete a mandatory test of their language proficiency which will cover both
oral and written English language skills and be specified by the Council. Such a
test will be completed the licensees expense.

Premises
32. Should the premises where the Private Hire Operator licence is held include a
public waiting area, the operator shall ensure adequate public liability insurance
is in a place for a minimum of £5,000,000.
33. The Council shall not grant a Private Hire Operators licence to any person who
does not have a physical address located within the Bristol City Council district.
Complaints and Customer Service

Page 70 of 99

Page 88

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

34. The Operator shall comply with GDPR compliant requests for information from the
Council in respect of complaints, conduct or offences relating to drivers or
vehicles.
35. The Operator shall disclose any information they consider may impact on a driver
or a vehicle proprietors suitability to hold a licence to the Council, in respect of
complaints, conduct or offences including any suspicion of offences.
36. The Operator shall have in place a Customer Service and Complaints Policy
which includes in detail the level of customer service to be provided, how
complaints are dealt with by the Operator and how the needs of customers will be
addressed. This shall be provided on application and any changes to its
Complaint Policy will be provided to the Council at least 7 working days prior to
the change taking effect.
37. The Operator shall inform the Council of any drivers or vehicles which are
removed from the operator’s registers, as detailed in the Private Hire Operator
Conditions.
Note: Further guidance notes are available in respect of the content of policies
38. The Operator shall as far as reasonably practical provide a prompt, efficient and
reliable service and shall do everything necessary to ensure that Private Hire
Vehicles attend punctually at the time, at the place agreed with the Passenger and
that the needs of the passenger are met.
39. The Operator shall inform the Licensing Team of any best practice schemes that
are proposed. Such as safe taxi schemes for students.

Training Policy
40. Operators must put in place their own Training Policy which details the training
provided for all individuals working on behalf of the Operator. The Training Policy
shall include :
- Training in respect of the Operators Complaints Policy for all drivers, vehicle
proprietors, booking handlers, individuals dispatching vehicles, individuals,
handling information regarding bookings and the Safeguarding Lead;
- Safeguarding and vulnerable adults training for individuals taking bookings,
handling information regarding bookings and the Safeguarding Lead;
- Training in respect of the Operators Safeguarding Policy for all drivers,
vehicle proprietors, individuals taking bookings, handling information
regarding bookings and the Safeguarding Lead;
- Equalities training including accessibility, assistance dog requirements,
mobility assistance and how to be Dementia Friendly to individuals taking
bookings, handling information regarding bookings and the Safeguarding
Lead

Page 71 of 99

Page 89

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

- Data protection/GDPR training to all drivers, vehicle proprietors, individuals
taking bookings, handling information regarding bookings and the
Safeguarding Lead.
41. The training policy and evidence of training detailed in the policy shall be made
available to an Authorised Officer when requested, and provided on application,
including renewals.
42. The Operator shall provide any changes to their Training Policy to the Council at
least 7 working days prior to the change taking effect.
Further information on the above is available through guidance on our website.
Template policies will be made available.
Conditions
Operators must at all times comply with the Council’s Private Hire Operator
conditions.

Page 72 of 99

Page 90

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licence Conditions

Introduction
The following conditions are those which the Council will generally attach to the
licence of the relevant type issued pursuant to the provisions of the Relevant
Legislation.
Any departure from these conditions which may be agreed in an individual case will
be specified in writing at the time of issue or renewal of the Licence. The council
reserves the right to impose additional conditions where appropriate in a particular
case. Any additional condition applying will be specified in writing at the time of issue
of the licence.
Licence holders should therefore scrutinise the documentation issued on grant or
subsequent renewal to ensure they are aware of their obligations under the licence
and to obtain any necessary clarification in advance of undertaking any activity which
depends upon the licence.
These conditions are in addition to and do not override the provisions of the
legislation governing private hire and Hackney carriage vehicle and driver licensing.
Licensees should therefore familiarise themselves with the requirements of the
legislation governing such vehicles. Licensees should also be aware of the need to
comply at all times with the relevant road traffic legislation applicable to the licensed
vehicle.
IMPORTANT NOTE
Applicants and licensees should scrutinise the conditions applying to the particular
licence(s) they hold or are applying for. Applicants should also be aware of the law
which governs and the general licence conditions which attach to other activities
within their field of operation. For example, individuals who hold a private hire driver
licence should be aware of the law and rules which relate to private hire vehicles and
operators as well as that relating to hackney carriages and in particular the criminal
offence relating to plying for hire.
Licensees should note that once a vehicle is licensed as a Hackney carriage or a
private hire vehicle that vehicle remains a “licensed vehicle” throughout the period of
the licence irrespective of the activity the vehicle is being used for. To clarify all
licence conditions apply at all times, even if the vehicle is used for social and
domestic use, and only a licensed driver can drive the vehicle at any time.
The appendices contained in this package are important documents which are
intended to have legal force. As such, they are, of necessity, fairly technical,
although the Council has tried as far as possible to set down the conditions in a style
which can be understood by licensees. From time to time, where it is considered it
will aid their understanding, some guidance notes have been included. All guidance
notes (such as those contained here) are printed in italics. Guidance notes DO NOT
form part of the conditions and nor should they be relied upon as being an
Page 73 of 99

Page 91

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

interpretation of the law or of the conditions. They are simply included in a spirit of
helpfulness. Licensing officers will generally assist where they can but they are not
authorised to provide formal advice. Any Licensee who is unsure of the effect of the
law or the conditions upon their licensed activity is strongly advised to obtain
independent advice from a solicitor or other advisor of their choice.
Reading the conditions
Throughout the conditions there are phrases which are used on a number of
occasions. If the full meaning of each phrase were spelt out on every occasion then
the document would be cumbersome and difficult to follow. For that reason many key
phrases have been defined. The definitions section sets out all of the phrases which
have been defined. Wherever a phrase which has been defined is included in the
document it has been written in bold type. Therefore whenever you see a phrase or
word which is in bold type, you should cross reference with the definitions section of
the document in order to see its full meaning. For example, where the phrase The
Council appears in bold type, if you refer to the conditions section you will find that
The Council means ‘the City Council of Bristol’. From time to time, extracts from or
summaries of relevant Council policies are included in the guidance. Where this
appears, it will be contained within quotation marks and will appear in bold to help
you to refer to it. It is not possible to include all relevant Council policy within this
document and of course from time to time the policy may be added to or amended
so you should not rely upon this guidance as being definitive or up to date.
Information about relevant Council policy can be obtained from the Licensing team
and much of it can be viewed via the Council’s intranet site which can be accessed
through the internet and from council libraries and other council venues.
Definitions governing all general conditions contained in the appendices to this
document
In all conditions contained in this document the words and phrases set out in the first
column below shall, unless the context requires otherwise have the meaning set out
in the second column:
“The Council” means the City Council of Bristol.
“The 1976 Act” means the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976
“The 1847 Act” means the Town Police Clauses Act 1847
“Private Hire Vehicle Licence” means a Licence issued in pursuant to s.48(1) of
The 1976 Act
“Private Hire Operators Licence” means a Licence issued in pursuant to s.55 of
The 1976 Act
“Private Hire Drivers Licence” means a Licence issued pursuant to s.51 of The
1976 Act

Page 74 of 99

Page 92

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

“Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence” means a Licence issued pursuant to, among
other things, The 1976 Act
“Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence” means a Licence issued pursuant to, among
other things, s. 37 of the 1847 Act
“Licence” means, unless the context requires otherwise, the Licence which is
governed by the conditions set out in the appendix in which it appears. (For the
avoidance of doubt, without prejudice to the generality of the forgoing, in Appendix A
Licence means a Private Hire Vehicle Licence: in Appendix B Licence means a
Private Hire Operators Licence and in Appendix C Licence means a Private Hire
Drivers Licence)
“The Licensee” means the person named as such in The Licence
“The Licensed Vehicle” means a vehicle specified in The Licence
“Vehicle” means, unless the context otherwise requires, any vehicle owned,
controlled or driven by the Licensee in the course of employment, trade or business
relating to the Licence
“Passenger” means any person hiring the Vehicle and where the context permits
includes any person entitled to be conveyed in the vehicle pursuant to the hire of it
“The Relevant Legislation” means any legislation governing the issue and conduct
of the Licence and in particular means The 1976 Act and/or The 1847 Act
“Authorised Officer” means any person authorised in writing by the Council for the
purposes of the Relevant Legislation.
“Licence Plates” means the plates issued by the Council for the purposes of
identifying the vehicle as a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle licensed with
this Council.
“The Relevant Date” means, in respect of an application for a Private Hire or
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence, the date of first registration as a new vehicle in
the United Kingdom or, in respect of a vehicle imported other than as new into the
United Kingdom, means three years from the date of manufacture
“The Licensee” means the person named as such in the Licence
“The Vehicle” means the Private Hire or Hackney carriage Vehicle specified in the
Licence
“The Licensed Driver” means a person licensed by the Council to drive vehicles of
the particular type for the purpose of hire or reward
The terms “Operator”, }
“controlled district”, }
“driver’s badge”, }

Each shall have the

Page 75 of 99

Page 93

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

“the district”, }
“Hackney carriage”, }
“hackney carriage byelaws”,
“operate”, }
“Operator’s Licence”, }
“private hire vehicle”
} “proprietor”, }

meaning that is
contained in the
Relevant Legislation

“Vehicle Specification” shall mean the minimum standards laid down from time to
time by The Council in respect of Vehicles licensed for a particular activity
“vehicle safety cosmetic test” shall be the test carried out to the standard as
specified by The Council
“Police Officer” means a constable of any rank, and a Police Community Support
Officer in Uniform

Page 76 of 99

Page 94

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Appendix A – Standard Conditions governing Private Hire Vehicle Licences
1.

The definitions and common conditions contained in the definitions section pages
5 to 7 of this document including this appendix are incorporated into these
conditions.

2.

Insofar as is necessary to give effect to these conditions, the Vehicle
Specification are incorporated into the conditions.

3.

The Licensee shall not be less than 18 years of age.

4.

The Licensed Vehicle is licensed on condition that it accords with the Vehicle
Specification.

5.

Licensed Vehicles shall be inspected (for both MOT and vehicle safety
cosmetic testing as specified by the Council) at least once a year at a place
specified by the Council. Where more than eight years has elapsed from the
Relevant Date such inspection shall occur every twice yearly.

6.

The Licensee shall ensure that the Licensed Vehicle is not used for the
conveyance of more Passengers than the number specified in The Licence.

7.

The Licensee shall ensure that at all times during the currency of the Licence
7.1. there is force a policy of insurance covering the use of that vehicle as a
private hire vehicle / Hackney carriage complying with the relevant legislation,
and the driver and Proprietor of the vehicle shall produce for inspection proof
that such insurance is currently held immediately on request of an
Authorised Officer or Police Officer
7.1.1. the excise duty for the Licensed Vehicle is current;
7.1.2. there is in force where required by law a current MOT certificate in
respect of the Licensed Vehicle and shall ensure that the original such
certificate is produced immediately upon the request of an Authorised
Officer or Police Officer;(Please note that the condition requires
production of the original certificate. Photocopies or faxed copies are not
acceptable.)
7.2. the Licence Plates are firmly affixed to the exterior of the Licensed Vehicle
(positioned to its front offside and rear offside) and kept clean and in such
condition as to be easily legible and the interior plate is maintained in a
position so as to enable passengers to readily view the plate number written
thereon;
7.3. The Licensee shall cause to be displayed any customer information notices
as may be specified by the Council from time to time and such notices shall
be sited in a position so as to enable them to be readily viewed by
passengers;

Page 77 of 99

Page 95

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

7.4. The Licensed Vehicle neither displays nor carries any roof signs or
additional fittings or articles for the roof other than an aerial or displays any
other markings or signage without the written consent of The Council;
7.5. Except with the prior written consent of The Council, The Licensed Vehicle
shall not be used for the purposes of advertising. If written consent is sought
by The Licensee the form and content of the proposed advertisement must
be provided with any request;
Where written consent is given by The Council, advertising will generally be
permitted only on the rear passenger doors in the case of vehicles licensed to
carry less than five passengers or on the rear facing doors in the case of
vehicles licensed to carry five or more passengers;
7.6. If a taximeter is fitted to the vehicle then:
7.6.1.

only the tariff(s) notified to The Council is displayed so as to be visible to
passengers at all times and shall be in a format approved by The
Council;

7.6.2.

a copy of the tariff(s) is provided to The Council;

7.6.3.

the taximeter is fixed in such a position within the vehicle that the
display is visible to passengers;

7.6.4.

the taximeter is sealed with a manufacturers or Council approved seal;

7.6.5.

The taximeter is calibrated by persons approved to do so by The
Council and a certificate shall be produced to The Council as to that
calibration;

7.7. Any radio transceiving equipment except cellular telephones, fitted to or
being used within The Licensed Vehicle shall be type approved mobile radio
equipment as licensed by the Radio Communications Agency under the
Wireless Telegraphy Act 1949.
7.8. Radio scanners are neither installed nor used within The Licensed Vehicle.
7.9. No CCTV system is to be used within The Licensed Vehicle unless all
Information Commissioner’s Office requirements are adhered to;
7.9.1. No audio recording must take place and
7.9.2. A sign must be affixed within The Licensed Vehicle so as to be readily
visible to Passengers informing them that video recording is or may be
taking place.
7.10.No dash camera system may be used within The Licensed Vehicle unless
all Information Commissioner’s Office requirements are adhered to and;

Page 78 of 99

Page 96

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

7.10.1. No audio recording must take place
7.10.2. The dash camera system must be outward facing only.
7.11. The Licensed Vehicle shall:
7.11.1. be kept in good and clean condition both on the interior and exterior;
7.11.2. have seats that are properly cushioned and without any tears or holes
in the coverings;
7.11.3. have sufficient space for luggage;
7.11.4. have in proper working order an interior light for the use of
passengers;
7.11.5. at all times comply with any legislation applying to it and in particular
shall comply with the requirements of the Relevant Legislation and the
Road Traffic Acts and Construction and Use Regulations in respect of
tyres, lights, reflectors, windscreen wipers / washers, exhaust systems,
brakes and seat belts;
7.11.6. have a spare wheel and tyre which must be maintained in such a
condition as to render it suitable for lawful use on a road and have the
tools for the changing of such a spare wheel and tyre;
7.11.6.1. Where a vehicle was supplied by the manufacturer with a limited
mileage emergency use only tyre condition 7.11.6 does not apply.
In this instance the emergency use must be maintained in such a
condition as to render it suitable for lawful use on a road and have
the tools for the changing of such a spare wheel and tyre
7.11.6.2. Where a vehicle was supplied by the manufacturer with an
emergency tyre inflation kit then condition 7.11.6 does not apply. In
this instance an emergency tyre inflation kit must be kept in the
vehicle at all times in a usable condition.
8. Any alteration to the seating configuration or capacity of a Licensed Vehicle is
not permitted.
9. Tinted films or glass applied retrospectively to the Licensed Vehicle windows
are not permitted
10.

Licence Plates remain the property of The Council and The Licensee shall
return the Licence Plates to The Council within seven days of the revocation,
suspension or expiry of The Licence.

11. Employment
11.1.On or before the grant of a licence (and prior to receipt of Licence Plates )
the Licensee shall state the Operator(s) with whom he/she will work (where
Page 79 of 99

Page 97

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

work includes that work arising from the relationship of employer/employee
and/or from any other arrangement under which The Licensee secures work
or obtains or is entitled to receive any income in consequence of any
bookings made through the Operator or his operating business);
11.2.The Licensee shall report any change in the details provided pursuant to
condition 11.1 above by notifying The Council by close of business on the
next working day following any change;
11.3.The Licensee shall ensure that The Licence or a certified copy of it is
provided forthwith to any Operator required to be notified to The Council
pursuant to the provisions of condition 11.1 and 11.2 and The Licensee shall
not retrieve any document so provided whilst any arrangements to work with
that Operator remains current.
12. The Licensed Vehicle shall be made available for inspection by an Authorised
Officer or Police Officer at any reasonable time and further shall if required by
written notification from any Authorised Officer or Police Officer be presented
for inspection at such time or place within the Controlled District as has been
specified in the written notification.

Change of circumstances
13. The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is notified in writing by the next
working day of the happening of any of the following events;
13.1.
The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional caution, being convicted
of any criminal or motoring offence, or receiving any out of court disposal
including formal warnings, community resolutions, restorative justice
education and awareness courses, community protection warnings and
notices or fixed penalty notices;
13.1.2
being bound over by any court;
13.2.3
being arrested or interviewed in connection with investigations
into allegations for any offence
13.2.
any material change in the circumstances of The Licensee where a
material change is one that would require The Licensee to provide different
information on application to The Council than has been provided in
connection with the most recent application for a Private Hire Vehicle
Licence made by The Licensee, including, by way of example, a change of
address, change of name, or change of employer or business;
13.3.
any accident or incident resulting in damage to the Licensed Vehicle,
or by the use of that Licensed Vehicle any damage caused to another
vehicle, or of any injury caused to any person by the use of the Licensed
Vehicle
13.4.
any alteration to the vehicle (including mechanical or bodywork
alterations). For the avoidance of doubt, unless it is with the prior written
consent of The Council, no alteration may be made to the vehicle which
would result in a contravention of any of the conditions attaching to The

Page 80 of 99

Page 98

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Licence. Where alterations are made then the Council shall be entitled to
require the vehicle to undergo a further inspection.
13.5.
the sale or acquisition of a Licensed Vehicle.
14. The vehicle shall only be licensed by Bristol City Council. If the Licensing
Authority becomes aware of other vehicle licences (hackney carriage or private
hire) running concurrently with this licence, then this licence will be revoked

Page 81 of 99

Page 99

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Appendix B - Conditions governing Private Hire Operators
1.

The Licensee shall be not less than 18 years of age.

Private Hire Operator records
2. The Licensee shall ensure that an entry is made in a register either a record book
or computerised booking and dispatch system for each booking which shall include:
2.1 The name of any individual that responded to the booking request
2.2 The date and time on which the booking is made and if different, the date of
the proposed journey;
2.3 The name of the hirer, and their contact details such as an address, phone
number or e-mail and the name of the lead passenger if different from the
Hirer;
2.4 The agreed time and place of pick-up point, or, if more than one, the agreed
time and place of the first pick-up-point;
2.5 The destination(s);
2.6 The drivers badge and licence number and vehicle plate and registration
number allocated the booking;
2.7 The fare agreed for the journey (where appropriate);
2.8 Any particular needs of the customer for example disability requirements
(where appropriate);
2.9 If appropriate, the name of the other operator for whom a booking was
received and / or to whom the booking was subcontracted and any relevant
notes;
2.10
How the booking was made (i.e. in person, telephone, online);
2.11
The name of any individual that dispatched the vehicle
2.12
Whether the booking was fulfilled and if not the reasons why it was not
fulfilled.
3. The register of bookings shall be retained at the Premises for at least 12 months
from the date of last entry.
Note: The register must be updated contemporaneously and in writing before the
commencement of each journey. The practice of copying up at a later stage from
dockets or some other ad hoc system is contravention of these conditions.
Contravention renders the Licensee
liable to enforcement action, which in
appropriate circumstances could result in the suspension or revocation of the
Licence.
This guidance note also applies to other registers required to be kept in
accordance with the conditions governing this Licence.
Where the booking register is a record book it shall be a suitable hardback book
which has consecutive page numbers. All entries shall be clearly and easily
legible, with no line spaces or blank pages.
4.
Where the register is a computerised booking system the records shall be
capable of being readily printed and produced on demand to an Authorised Officer
Page 82 of 99

Page 100

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

or Police Officer. Computerised records shall be properly backed up so as to
ensure compliance with the provision of governing retention.
5.
The Licensee shall ensure that any staff responsible for making booking
records are competent to do so and are capable of using the system used for the
keeping of records including providing records on request to an authorised officer
or the police.
6.
The Licensee shall maintain and keep an up-to-date a register containing the
following information:
6.1 Name, date of birth and home address of every Private Hire Driver
operated by them;
6.2 Details including date of expiry of the Council Private Hire Driver
licence, badge number and licence number of every Private Hire
Driver licence holder operated by the Licensee;
6.3 Any call sign/codes allocated to each Private Hire Driver;
6.4 The date the driver commenced and ceased carrying out bookings on
behalf of the Licensee ( if applicable);
6.5 Name and home address of the proprietor of every Private Hire
Vehicle working on behalf of the Licensee;
6.6 Details including The Council licence plate number, licence number,
expiry date, vehicle make and vehicle registration number of every
Private Hire Vehicle used to carry out bookings.
6.7 The date the Private Hire Vehicle commenced and ceased being used
for carrying out bookings on behalf of the Licensee;
This register must be made immediately available for inspection on
demand by any authorised Officer or Police Officer.
7.

For every Private Hire Driver and Private Hire Vehicle working on behalf of the
Licensee the following shall be kept and maintained;
7.1 A copy of the drivers current Private Hire Drivers licence ;
7.2 A copy of the drivers current Private Hire Drivers badge;
7.3 A copy of photographic proof of identification ;
7.4 A copy of the current Private Hire Vehicle licence;
7.5 A copy of the Private Hire Vehicles current MOT certificate;
7.6 A copy of the Private Hire Vehicles current vehicle safety cosmetic
test;
7.7 A copy of the Private Hire Vehicles current insurance certificate or
cover note in respect of the driver using the Private Hire Vehicle;
7.8 A copy of the Taximeter calibration certificate, where appropriate;

8.

Where the licensed Private Hire Vehicle register is paper based it shall be in the
form of a bound book.

9.

Where the licensed Private Hire Vehicle register is computerised the register
shall be capable of being readily printed and produced on demand to an
Page 83 of 99

Page 101

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Authorised Officer or Police Officer. Computerised records shall be properly
backed up so as to ensure compliance with the provision of governing retention.
11. The Licensee shall maintain a register of all staff that will take bookings or
dispatch vehicles. The register shall be a ‘living document’ that maintains
records of all those in these roles for the same duration as booking records are
required to be kept.
12. The Licensee shall maintain a record that they have had sight of a basic DBS
check certificate for all staff that will take bookings or dispatch vehicles for the
duration that the individual remains on the register. Should an employee cease
to be on the register and later re-entered, the Licensee shall require a new
basic DBS certificate and sight of this shall be recorded.
13. Any register or records kept by the Licensee shall be immediately made
available for inspection by any Authorised Officer or Police Officer upon request
at any reasonable time (and at all times whilst the Licensee is Operating) and
shall forthwith provide to any such Authorised Officer or Police Officer
photocopies or electronic copies of any such records and associated
documentation as may be required following inspection or, where the Licensee
is unable to provide copies s/he shall permit the Authorised Officer or Police
Officer to remove the register for such period as is reasonable in the
circumstances to secure the copying of the required documentation.

14. The register of Private Hire Drivers and Private Hire Vehicles including
documentation shall be retained at the Premises for at least 12 months from the
date of last entry.
15. The Licensee shall take all necessary steps to ensure that all Private Hire
Vehicles and Private Hire Drivers working on behalf of them within the
Controlled District are properly licensed by the Council and shall not Operate in
respect of any Private Hire Vehicle unless satisfied that both the Private Hire
Driver and Private Hire Vehicle have been and remain so licensed.
16. The Licensee shall take all necessary steps to ensure that all Private Hire
Vehicles and Private Hire Drivers working on behalf of them within the
Controlled District are properly licensed by the Council and shall not Operate in
respect of any Private Hire Vehicle unless satisfied that both the Private Hire
Driver and Private Hire Vehicle have been and remain so licensed.

Fit and Proper Person test
17. The Licensee must ensure that they use appropriate people to take bookings,
handle personal information in respect of bookings on behalf of the Licensee
and as the designated safeguarding lead. A Fit and Proper Person test, similar
to the one the Council uses to determine an operator’s licence, shall be in place
and used by the Licensee for all individuals taking bookings, that handle
personal information in respect of bookings or who carry out the role of
Page 84 of 99

Page 102

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

designated safeguarding lead on behalf of the Licensee. This test shall be
detailed in a policy which the Licensee shall provide on application. Any
changes to this policy shall be forwarded to the Council at least 7 working days
prior to taking effect.
18. The Licensee shall not employ or have any person involved in taking bookings,
handling booking information or as designated safeguarding lead that does not
meet their Fit and Proper Person policy.
19. Evidence of the checks carried out by the Licensee in accordance with their Fit
and Proper Person policy for any individual taking bookings on behalf of the
Licensee, that handle information relating to bookings or act as designated
safeguarding lead shall be held at the Premises for 3 years from the date of the
checks. These checks shall include a basic disclosure
Safeguarding Policy
20. The Licensee shall have in place a Safeguarding Policy which shall be
provided to the satisfaction of the Council and include the name and contact
details of the Safeguarding Lead acting on behalf of the Licensee. A copy of
this policy shall be provided on application and any changes to this policy shall
be forwarded to the Council at least 7 working days prior to taking effect
Service to passengers
21. The Licensee shall so far as is reasonably practicable provide a prompt,
efficient and reliable service and shall in particular do everything necessary to
ensure that Private Hire Vehicles attend punctually at the time and place
agreed with the Passengers and that the needs of the passengers are met.
22. The Licensee shall not permit any Private Hire Vehicle to be used to fulfil
bookings that they know or ought to know does not comply with the conditions
imposed under its Private Hire Vehicle licence and in particular shall not
conduct business in respect of a Private Hire Vehicle unless it is fitted with the
approved signage.

Premises
23. The Licensee shall ensure that any Premises to which the public have access
for booking or waiting is kept clean, has sufficient seating and is adequately
heated, ventilated and lit.

Page 85 of 99

Page 103

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

24. The possession or use of radio scanner equipment is prohibited in the
Premises from which the Licensee operates.
Bookings
25. Private Hire Operators are not permitted to accept telephone bookings made on
behalf of a potential passenger by a Private Hire Driver.
Information to be provided to the Council
26. The Licensee shall notify the Council, in writing, of any proposed change of
name of the Licensee and shall await approval in writing from the Council prior
to using any new name.
27. The Licensee shall ensure that the Council is notified in writing by close of
business on the following working day full details of the happening of any of the
following events in respect of the Licensee, any individual, company , director
or secretary named on the application form or a currently appointed
Responsible Person:
27.1 receiving a simple or conditional caution, being convicted of any
criminal or motoring offence, or receiving any out of court disposal
including formal warnings, community resolutions, restorative justice
education and awareness courses, community protection warnings and
notices or fixed penalty notices;
27.2 being bound over by any court;
27.3 being arrested or interviewed in connection with investigations into
allegations for any offence
27.4any offence arising out of the use or keeping of any motor vehicle;
27.5 is refused any type of licence by any other regulatory authority or any
such licence is suspended, revoked or refused;
27.6any material change in the circumstances of The Licensee where a
material change is one that would require The Licensee to provide
different information on application to The Council than has been
provided in connection with the more recent application for an
Operator’s Licence made by The Licensee, including, by way of
example–
27.6.1 any change in the address from which The Licensee
operates;
27.6.2 any change in the style or title of The Licensee or his
business or its trading status;

Page 86 of 99

Page 104

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

27.6.3 any irregularity that The Licensee believes may exist in
respect of the licensing of any Private Hire Vehicle or
Private Hire Driver in respect of which they Operate;
28 The Licensee shall forward a copy of the current register of Private Hire Drivers
and Private Hire Vehicles to the Council on the first working day of each month.
29 The Licensee shall check any information provided by the Council concerning
suspended or revoked licences within 24 hours of receipt.
30 The Licensee shall inform the Council of any drivers or vehicles which are
removed from the Licensee’s Private Hire Driver or Private Hire Vehicle register
including the reasons for removal and any relevant information to the Council
within 72 hours of the decision to remove the driver or vehicle.
31 The Licensee shall notify the Council, in writing, of the name and details of any
individuals nominated as a Responsible Person for managing the business on
behalf of the Operator at least 7 working days prior to their commencement in that
role.
32 The Licensee shall ensure that at the time of passing a booking to a driver the
following details are provided:
32.1
32.2
32.3
32.4
32.5
32.6

the name of the passenger;
the pick-up time and location;
any special requirement of the passenger;
any price agreed for the journey;
the destination specified by the passenger.
any needs of the passengers

33

The Licensee shall comply with requests for information from the Council in
respect of complaints, conduct or offences relating to the Licensee, Private Hire
Vehicles and Private Hire Drivers licensed by the Council.

34

The Licensee shall establish a Customer Service and Complaints policy and
shall take all reasonable steps to record and fully investigate any complaints,
ensuring a record is kept of the following information;
34.1 The name, contact details of complainant and date complaint received
34.2 The date, time and details/nature of the complaint
34.3 The name of the driver (and Badge number) or member of staff, to which
the complaint relates
34.4 Details of the investigation carried out
34.5 All records shall be retained for 12 months
Page 87 of 99

Page 105

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

34.6 The format of the complaints register shall be maintained in a manner
prescribed by the Council;
34.7 Details of when and how complaint forwarded to the Council (if applicable)
34.8 Any action taken as a result of the complaint
35

The Customer Service and Complaints policy and complaint records shall be
made available on request to an Authorised Officer or police.

36

Any records relating to complaints shall be kept in hard copy or on computer. If
kept in hard copy they must be in a bound book with consecutively numbered
pages.

37

The Licensee shall ensure that they notify any complainant of their right to
forward their complaint to the Council.

38

If the Licensee receives a complaint concerning any of the below matters the
Operator must inform the Council in writing upon within 72 hours of receiving the
complaint, including the name and contact details of the complainant, the nature
of the complaint, the name and badge number of a driver, the vehicle details:
Sexual misconduct, sexual harassment or inappropriate sexual
attention;
-

Racist behaviour;

-

Violence;

-

Dishonesty;

-

Theft;

-

Breaches of equality;

-

A driver’s behaviour or conduct towards a vulnerable passenger;

-

Report of poor and/or dangerous driving;

-

A driver being under the influence of alcohol and/or any other
drug (illegal or medicinal);

- A refusal of a passenger with a wheelchair or an assistance dog.
39

The Licensee shall ensure that customers can speak to a person in the event of
a complaint or problem with the journey.

40

The Licensee shall forward any changes to its Customer Service and Complaint
Policy to the Council in writing at least 7 working days prior to the change taking
effect.

41

The Licensee shall disclose any information they consider could impact on a
driver or vehicle proprietor’s suitability to hold a licence to the Council, in respect
of complaints, conduct or offences within one working day of the Licensee being
in receipt of this information.

Page 88 of 99

Page 106

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

42

The Licensee shall have in place a Training Policy for all people working on
behalf of the Operator which includes details of the training provided for all
employees or those working on behalf of the Licensee.

43

The Training policy and evidence of training shall be made available to an
Authorised Officer when requested, and provided on application, including
renewals. The Licensee shall forward any changes to the Training Policy to the
Council at least 7 days prior to the change taking effect.

44

The Licensee shall not cause or allow to be caused any nuisance or annoyance
to the owners or occupiers of nearby premises, by the conduct of the business
to which this Licence relates. This includes, but is not limited to multiple vehicles
being parked in residential areas, vehicle engines being left running for long
periods of time, vehicles leaving and returning to premises at unsociable hours
and vehicles being maintained or serviced.

45

The use of a driver who holds a PCV licence and the use of a public service
vehicle (PSV) such as a minibus to undertake a private hire vehicle booking
should not be permitted without the informed consent of the booker.

Page 89 of 99

Page 107

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Appendix C – Conditions governing Private Hire Drivers
1.

The definitions and common conditions contained at the general conditions section
pages 5 to 7 including this appendix are incorporated into these conditions.

2.

Insofar as is necessary to give effect to these conditions, the Vehicle Specification,
The Training Policy and The Medical Fitness Policy are incorporated into these
conditions.

3.

The Licensee shall ensure that at all times s/he is clean and respectable in dress
and in person.

4.

The Licensee shall conduct herself/himself in an orderly and proper manner to the
general public including towards ever Passenger hiring or being conveyed in the
Licensed Vehicle and shall comply with every reasonable requirement of any such
person.

5.

The Licensee shall when requested by any Passenger –
5.1. convey a reasonable amount of luggage;
5.2. afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading;
5.3. afford reasonable assistance in removing luggage to and / or from the
entrance of any building, station or place at which the driver may take up or
set down such person;
5.4. take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of Passengers when entering
or alighting from the vehicle

6.

The Licensee shall ensure that no luggage is carried on the roof of the licensed
vehicle.

7.

The Licensee shall, so far as is reasonably practicable, attend to convey the
Passengers at the appointed time and place

8.

The Licensee shall not demand from any Passenger a fare in excess of that
previously agreed between the hirer and the operator, or if the vehicle is fitted with a
taximeter and there has been no previous agreement as to the fare, the amount
shown on the face of the taximeter.

9.

The Licensee shall proceed to the destination by the most expedient route, unless
otherwise agreed with or requested by the Passenger.

10. The Licensee shall on request of the Passenger provide to him/her a written receipt
for the fare paid. The receipt shall bear the name and address of the Operator
and/or his/her business.
11. The Licensee shall immediately after the termination of a hiring, or as soon as
practicable thereafter, carefully inspect the vehicle for any property that may have
been left therein.

Page 90 of 99

Page 108

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Property found following such inspection shall be dealt with according to the
Operator policy on lost property. (For the avoidance of doubt this condition does not
apply to any suspicious package, the existence of which must be immediately
notified to the Police).
12. The Licensee shall whilst working for hire and reward:
i)

wear the badge in such a position to be plainly and distinctly visible on the upper
torso at all times when outside of the vehicle;

ii)

and display in the vehicle the second badge so as to be distinctly visible and clearly
seen by any passengers in the vehicle.
12.1 When not engaged in hire and reward work, one badge must always be carried
by The Licensee and immediate produced for inspection of request of an Authorised
Officer or Police Officer or any other person reasonably requiring it.
12.2 The Licensee shall not lend the Identification Badges to any other person or
otherwise part with possession of them nor shall s/he cause or permit any other
person to use them.

13. The Driver’s Badges referred to in Condition 12 shall remain the property of the City
Council and shall be returned, within three working days, to the Council Licensing
Office by The Licensee forthwith upon the happening of any of the following events13.1

the expiry of The Licence;

13.2

the revocation or the suspension of The Licence;

13.3

The Licensee being disqualified from driving.

14. The Licensee shall carry free of any charge guide dogs, hearing dogs or service
dogs for the disabled.
(Licensees may be exempted from this condition for medical reasons subject to such
agreement being given in writing by the Licensing Office)
15. The Licensee shall not park at or within 20 metres of any Hackney Carriage rank.
The Licensee may stop near a Hackney Carriage rank only for the purpose of
setting down a passenger.
16. Following The Licence being granted (and prior to any work being undertaken
pursuant to it) The Licensee shall inform The Council of The Operator with whom
s/he will work and secure written confirmation of that information from The Operator.
The Council reserves the right to withhold Identification badges until this condition is
complied with in full.
17. The Licensee shall ensure that The Licence or a certified copy of it is provided to
the aforesaid Operator for whom they are working, to be retained by the Operator
throughout the period in which The Licensee secures work through that Operator.
Page 91 of 99

Page 109

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

18. The Licensee shall comply with any provision of The Councils Training Policy
applying to him/her.
19. The Licensee must make him/herself aware of Bristol City Council Private Hire
Vehicle Licence conditions and ensure that the vehicle s/he is using for hire and
reward complies with all the conditions contained therein.
20. The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is notified in writing by the next
working day of the happening of any of the following events;
20.1.

The Licensee being arrested or interviewed in connection with investigations
for any offence;

20.2

The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional caution, being convicted of any
criminal or motoring offence, or receiving any out of court disposal including
formal warnings, community resolutions, restorative justice education and
awareness courses, community protection warnings and notices or fixed
penalty notices;

20.3The Licensee being bound over by any court;
20.4any material change in the circumstances of The Licensee where a material
change is one that would require The Licensee to provide different information
on application to The Council than has been provided in connection with the
most recent application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s Licence made by
The Licensee, including, by way of example, a change of address, change of
name, change of employer or business, and diagnosis of a medical condition.
20.5 The imposition of any penalty points upon the DVLA Licence held by The
Licensee.

Page 92 of 99

Page 110

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Appendix D – Conditions governing Hackney Carriage Vehicles

1. The definitions and common conditions contained at General conditions section
pages 5 to 7 including this appendix are incorporated into these conditions.
2. Insofar as is necessary to give effect to these conditions, the Vehicle
Specification shall be incorporated into these conditions.
3. The Licensee shall be not less than 181 years of age.
4. The Vehicle is licensed on condition that it accords with the Vehicle
Specification.
5. Licensed Vehicles shall on initial application be of such standard and condition
so as to have passed the vehicle safety cosmetic test including an MOT as
specified by the Council. Vehicles shall be maintained to such standard and
condition whilst the vehicle remains licensed. s. Where more than eight years has
elapsed from the Relevant Date such inspection shall occur every six months.
6. On subsequent applications vehicles should be inspected every twelve months
as a placed specified by the Council. This inspection will include the vehicle
safety cosmetic test including the MOT as set by the Council.
7. The Licensed Vehicle shall be made available for inspection by an Authorised
Officer or Police Officer at any reasonable time and further shall if required by
written notification from any Authorised Officer or Police Officer be presented
for inspection at such time or place within the Controlled District as has been
specified in the written notification.
8. The Licensee shall ensure that at all times during the currency of The Licence –
8.1.1. there is force a policy of insurance covering the use of that vehicle as a
private hire vehicle / Hackney carriage complying with the relevant
legislation, and the driver and Proprietor of the vehicle shall produce for
inspection proof that such insurance is currently held immediately on
request of an Authorised Officer or Police Officer
8.1.2. the excise duty for the Licensed Vehicle is current
8.1.3. there is in force where required by law a current MOT certificate in
respect of the Licensed Vehicle and shall ensure that the original such
certificate is produced immediately upon the request of an Authorised
Officer or Police Officer(Please note that the condition requires
production of the original certificate. Photocopies or faxed copies are not
acceptable.)

1

29/7/8 Policy revision implication of employment equality regulations
Page 93 of 99

Page 111

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

8.2.

the Licence Plates are firmly affixed to the exterior of the Licensed Vehicle
(positioned to its front offside and rear offside, save where a particular fixing
is included in the vehicle design) and kept clean and in such condition as to
be easily legible and the interior plate is maintained in a position so as to
enable passengers to readily view the plate number written thereon. Plates
must be affixed securely but in such a manner as to facilitate ease of removal
by an Authorised Officer or Police Officer;

8.3.

the Licensed Vehicle is not used for the conveyance of more passengers
than the number specified in The Licence;

8.4.

The Licensed Vehicle displays a sign on its roof bearing the legend ‘TAXI’
which sign must be visible to the general public from the front of the Vehicle
and which must be illuminated at all times when the vehicle is plying for hire
but must not be illuminated at any other time

8.5.

The following documents shall be affixed within the Licensed Vehicle so as
to be readily visible to Passengers8.5.1. any customer information notices as may be specified by The Council
from time to time;
8.5.2. the current tariff of fare as set by The Council;

8.6.

the taximeter is operated so that –
8.6.1. the tariff is displayed so as to be visible to Passengers at all times;
8.6.2. it is fixed in such a position within the vehicle that the display is visible
to passengers
8.6.3. it otherwise accords in all respects with the relevant provisions of the
vehicle specification;
8.6.4. it is used for all journeys which commence and terminate within the
Controlled District; for those journeys which commence within the
controlled district but which terminate outside of it, the taximeter must be
used except where the level of fare has been agreed with the Passenger
prior to the commencement of the journey;

8.7.

any radio transceiving equipment except cellular telephones, fitted to or being
used with The Licensed Vehicle shall be type approved mobile radio
equipment as licensed by the Radio Communications Agency under the
Wireless Telegraphy Act 1949;

8.8.

no CCTV system is to be used within The Licensed Vehicle unless all
Information Commissioner’s Office requirements are adhered to and;
8.8.1. no audio recording must take place and
Page 94 of 99

Page 112

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

8.8.2. a sign must be affixed within The Licensed Vehicle so as to be readily
visible to Passengers informing them that video recording is or may be
taking place;
8.9. No dash camera system may be used within The Licensed Vehicle unless
all Information Commissioner’s Office requirements are adhered to and;
8.9.1. No audio recording must take place
8.9.2. The dash camera system must be outward facing only.
8.10.

radio scanners are neither installed nor used within The Licensed Vehicle;

8.11.

The Licensed Vehicle is used only by persons who are properly licensed
and insured to use it pursuant to The Relevant Legislation.

9. The Licensed Vehicle shall:
9.1. be kept in good and clean condition both on the interior and exterior;
9.2. have seats which are properly cushioned and without any tears or holes in
the coverings;
9.3. have sufficient space for luggage;
9.4. have in proper working order an interior light for the use of passengers;
9.5. at all times comply with the any legislation applying to it and in particular shall
comply with the requirements of the Relevant Legislation and the Road
Traffic Acts and Construction and Use Regulations in respect of tyres, lights,
reflectors, windscreen wipers/washers, exhaust systems, brakes and seat
belts;
9.6. have a spare wheel and tyre which must be maintained in such a condition as
to render it suitable for lawful use on a road and have tools for the changing
of such a spare wheel and tyre;
9.6.1. Where a vehicle was supplied by the manufacturer with a limited
mileage emergency use only tyre condition 9.6 does not apply. In this
instance the emergency use must be maintained in such a condition as
to render it suitable for lawful use on a road and have the tools for the
changing of such a spare wheel and tyre.
9.6.2. Where a vehicle was supplied by the manufacturer with an emergency
tyre inflation kit then condition 9.6 does not apply. In this instance an
emergency tyre inflation kit must be kept in the vehicle at all times in a
usable condition.

Page 95 of 99

Page 113

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

9.7. carry and maintain in good condition securing straps, ramps and steps and
any other relevant equipment complying with current British Standards to
enable a person in a wheelchair to gain entry to and egress from the vehicle
and to be properly secured when traveling. (Wheelchair accessible vehicles
only).
9.8. Display signage that is prominently on view to prospective passengers that
states contactless card payments are accepted.
9.8.1. Have an electronic payment facility to accept debit/credit card and
contactless payments.
9.8.2. The electronic payment device must be kept in the vehicle, be fully
operational and available for immediate use at all times the vehicle is
being used for public hire, or hire and reward (including whilst standing or
plying for hire).
10. Licence plates remain the property of the Council and The Licensee shall return
the Licence Plates to the Council within seven days of the revocation
suspension or expiry of The Licence.
11. Taximeters
All vehicles shall be fitted with a taximeter as approved by the Council.
11.1 The meter shall at all times be in such a position within the vehicle so as to
be fully visible by any passenger within the vehicle.
11.2 Every meter shall be capable of displaying the current tariff and any extras
incurred within the current Council tariff of fares.
11.3 Only meters approved and calibrated in accordance with Council
procedure shall be used.
11.4 All meters must be calibrated with the current Council tariff of fares, or be
changed to the current tariff within 14 days of any change within the
Council tariffs.
11.5 All meters must be sealed with a manufacturer’s seal or seal approved by
the Council and seals must be in good condition and intact at all times.
11.6 Meters must only be calibrated and sealed by persons authorised to do so
by The Council. The Licensee shall obtain from the authorised person a
meter certificate which must be produced to The Council when requested.
11.7 All meters fitted to new vehicles shall be of BSI standard and approved by
the Public Carriage Office according to their current list at that time.
11.8 All vehicles shall be fitted with BSI standard meters and approved by the
Public Carriage Office according to their list at the time by (date to be
fixed).
Page 96 of 99

Page 114

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

11.9 The power source for the roof sign light shall be provided by the meter so
that when the meter is engaged the roof sign will not be illuminated.
For the avoidance of doubt the fitting of an isolating switch to allow the meter to be
turned off without the roof sign being illuminated will be permitted.
Changes of circumstances
12. The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is notified in writing by the next
working day of the happening of any of the following events;
12.1 The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is notified in writing by the next
working day of the happening of any of the following events;
12.2 The Licensee being arrested or interviewed in connection with investigations
for any offence;
12.3 The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional caution, being convicted of any
criminal or motoring offence, or receiving any out of court disposal including formal
warnings, community resolutions, restorative justice, education and awareness
courses, community protection warnings and notices or fixed penalty notices;
12.4 The Licensee being bound over by any court;
12.5 any material change in the circumstances of The Licensee where a material
change is one that would require The Licensee to provide different information on
application to The Council than has been provided in connection with the most
recent application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s Licence made by The Licensee,
including, by way of example, a change of address, change of name, change of
employer or business, and diagnosis of a medical condition.
12.6 The imposition of any penalty points upon the DVLA Licence held by The
Licensee.
12.7any accident or incident resulting in damage to the Licensed Vehicle, or by the
use of that Licensed Vehicle any damage caused to another vehicle, or of any
injury caused to any person by the use of the Licensed Vehicle;
12.8 any alteration to the vehicle (including mechanical or bodywork alterations). For
the avoidance of doubt, unless it is with the prior written consent of the Council,
no alteration may be made to the vehicle which would result in a contravention
of any of the conditions attaching to The Licence. Where alterations are made
then the Council shall be entitled to require the vehicle to undergo a further
inspection;
12.9

The sale or acquisition of any Licensed Vehicle.

Page 97 of 99

Page 115

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Condition imposed in respect of certain licensed vehicles that are not coloured
Bristol blue (or other approved similar shade) at the date of grant of the licence
In this condition "Bristol Blue" means the colour identified by the British Standard
code BS 381C (108) (or any European Standard code which may supersede or
replace it); and "Exterior Paintwork" means those parts of the visible exterior
bodywork of the licensed vehicle to which colour was applied by the manufacturer as
standard for vehicles of the same year, make and model as the licensed vehicle.
13 The Licensed Vehicle may not be used in standing or plying for hire in any street
within the administrative area of the City of Bristol unless its exterior appearance
accords with the vehicle specification policy that was effective from 16 August
2017, that is to say that:
Advertising on the exterior of the cab may cover all or part of the complete exterior
body shell and the full width and height of the rear window, except for:
a. the front windscreen, side windows and any other glass areas;
b. the tyres and/or the rims and bumpers;
Save for any area where advertising is displayed all Exterior bodywork shall be
uniformly coloured Bristol Blue.

Page 98 of 99

Page 116

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Tuk Tuks and Pedicabs

Over recent years the licensing service has received a number of enquiries
concerning the licensing of tuk tuks and pedicabs as private hire vehicles or hackney
carriages. The legislation and the council’s policies relating to private hire vehicles
and hackney carriages do not specifically concern itself with tuk tuks and pedicabs
as means of transport.
However it is clear in the legislation that non-motorised vehicles cannot be licensed
as private hire vehicles (Section 48 (1) (a) Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions Act 1976)). The council has a policy relating specifically to hackney
carriages which can be motorised or non-motorised. In order for hackney carriage
applications to be determined applicants need to demonstrate how they propose to
comply with the councils Hackney Carriage Vehicle Policy (as far as practicable),
including being Bristol blue and an illuminated sign being displayed on the roof.
There are a number of issues in respect of hackney carriages that need to be
considered including wheelchair accessibility and the refusal of fares which is
particularly relevant for non-motorised transport.
If an applicant wishes to apply for a private hire vehicle licence for a tuk tuk all work
must be pre-booked with a licensed operator, which could be through telephone
bookings.
The drivers of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles need to hold an
appropriate drivers licence issued by the council. Applicants for such licences need
to satisfy the councils Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Fit and Proper Persons
policy, which includes a knowledge test, mandatory safeguarding training,
check and medical test.
Currently the council do not have a policy that specifically relates to the licensing of
tuk tuks or pedicabs in Bristol. Therefore applicants are required to consider the
existing policies in respect of private hire and hackney carriages and to demonstrate
to the Public Safety and Protection Committee how they propose to comply with the
relevant policies. If the committee were minded to depart from existing policies and
grant licences for tuk tuks or pedicabs appropriate conditions would need to be
attached.
For further information please contact the Licensing Team

Page 99 of 99

Page 117

Appendix B – Table of Proposed Changes to Taxi Policies

Page 118

Bristol City Council current policy

Proposed policy

Page
number in
Statutory
Taxi
standards
document
n/a
2

Page
number
in policy
docume
nt

Introduction
Policy
overview &
objectives
Departure
from policy

n/a
n/a

New section
New section including timescales for policy reviews.

n/a

2

n/a

‘Where the individual circumstances of a case justify a
departure from the policy, clear reasons for doing so will be
given.’
New section

Table of
contents
Hackney
Carriage
Vehicle
Policy

n/a

3-6

Age Limit Policy

Removed due to these sections being out of date.

n/a

n/a

1
1-2

Other vehicles e.g. a petrol driven Euro 5 emission
standard vehicle may be acceptable provided it complies
with all aspects of the policy.
Any vehicle first registered before 1st January 2006 will not
be licensed beyond 31 March 2018.
Any vehicle that does not comply with European
Community Whole Vehicle Type Approval (ECWVTA) will
not be licensed past 31 March 2018.

Hackney

Any vehicle first registered between 1st January 2006 and
31st December 2010 will not be licensed after 10 years
from the date of first registration. Any vehicle over 10 years
of age on or before 31st March 2018 will not be licensed
past 31st March 2018.
Age Limit Policy

Proposed policy – reworded to be clearer – no change to age

7

Carriage
Vehicle
Policy

limit:
Current policy:
4.
Any vehicle first registered between 1st January
2011 and 31st August 2015 can be relicensed until 10
years from date of first registration.
5.
Any vehicle first registered after 1st September
2015 can be licensed until 12 years from the date of first
registration.

Page 119

Hackney
Carriage
Vehicle
Policy
Hackney
Carriage
Vehicle
Policy

Hackney
Carriage
Vehicle
Policy

6.
Any Electric LEVC (London Electric Vehicle
Company) produced purpose built Hackney Carriage
vehicle can be licensed until 15 years from the date of first
registration.
Fire extinguisher –
All vehicles should be equipped with a fire extinguisher of
British Standard No BSEN3 of at least 1 kilogram of powder
capacity and shall bear the manufacturers expiry date.
Vehicle Testing –

4.
Any vehicle first registered on or before 31st August
2015 can be relicensed until 10 years from date of first
registration.
5.
Any vehicle first registered on or after 1st September
2015 can be licensed until 12 years from the date of first
registration.
6.
Any Electric LEVC (London Electric Vehicle
Company) produced purpose built Hackney Carriage vehicle
can be licensed until 15 years from the date of first
registration.
Fire extinguisher - Removed as advice is now for drivers to
vacate their vehicle

n/a

n/a

Vehicle Testing - wording of the test amended to make the
requirement clearer and added vehicles to be maintained. to:

n/a

8

n/a

9

All vehicles on initial application should be of such standard
and condition so as to have passed the MOT and
safety/cosmetic test as specified by the Council.

All vehicles on initial application should be of such standard
and condition so as to have passed the vehicle safety
cosmetic test including an MOT as specified by the Council.
Vehicles shall be maintained to such standard and condition
whilst the vehicle remains licensed.

On subsequent applications vehicles should be inspected
every twelve months at a place specified by the Council.
This inspection will include the MOT and safety/cosmetic
check as set by the Council.
Write off –

On subsequent applications vehicles should be inspected
every twelve months at a place specified by the Council. This
inspection will include the vehicle safety cosmetic tests
including the MOT as set by the Council.
Write off – expanded to include existing requirement “
Any vehicle written off may be replaced with another vehicle
provided it is not older than the written off vehicle. The
replacement vehicle may be of the same fuel type as the
written off vehicle, or if it is not must comply with the policy in
this respect. Applications for replacement vehicles shall be
submitted within 3 months from the date the write off was

Any vehicle written off may be replaced with another
vehicle provided it is not older than the written off vehicle.

Hackney
Carriage
Vehicle
Policy

n/a

Hackney
Carriage
Vehicle
Policy

n/a

confirmed by the insurance company.”
Seating - New requirement stating no alterations:

n/a

9

n/a

9

23 and 29
and

10

Any alteration to the seating configuration or capacity of a
vehicle is not permitted.
New requirement relating to electronic payments:
Electronic Payments
19. All Hackney carriages must have an electronic payment
facility to accept debit/credit card and contactless payments.
20. The electronic payment device must be kept in the
vehicle, be fully operational and available for immediate use
at all times the vehicle is being used for public hire, or hire
and reward (including whilst standing or plying for hire).

Page 120

21. All Hackney carriages must display signage that is
prominently on view to prospective passengers that states
contactless card payments are accepted.
22. No additional costs as a result of card payments may be
passed onto the passenger.
Hackney
Carriage
Vehicle
Policy

n/a

New requirements relating to basic disclosures for all vehicle
proprietors and certificates of good character.

1. In respect of new applications a basic disclosure
check for each individual/company director/company
secretary (as applicable) must be provided. The
disclosure must be dated no earlier than 2 months prior
to the date of the Council receiving the complete
application. Vehicle proprietors that also hold a current
private hire or Hackney carriage drivers licence do not
need to provide a basic disclosure unless they cease to
hold a drivers licence.

2. All individuals/company directors/company secretary
(as applicable) must supply a new basic disclosure to
the Council annually, unless they are existing drivers as
above. The disclosure must be dated no earlier than 2
months prior to the date of the Council receiving the
complete application.

3. All

Page 121

applicants including individuals, company
directors, company secretaries shall generally be
expected to provide a certificate of good character (or
similar) from each country if they have lived outside of
the UK for a continuous period of three months (or more)
within the last five years of the date of their licence
application, save in exceptional circumstances. Where
this Certificate has been produced in a language other
than English, the applicant will generally be required to
produce a translation of the Certificate from the
Embassy or Consulate of that country and provide the
original document, save in exceptional circumstances.
An exception might be permitted where a refugee has
been allowed to stay in the UK and has been given
asylum, and this exception will only apply to that country.
The cost of certificates of good character (or similar) are
to be met by the applicant in full.

Hackney
Carriage
Vehicle
Policy

n/a

New requirement – English proficiency –
The Council will have the right to require applicants and
licence holders to undertake and pass a test of their
language proficiency which will cover both oral and written
English language skills and be specified by the Council. Such
a test will be completed the licensees/applicants expense.

Hackney
Carriage
Vehicle
Policy

Appendix A – Hackney carriage Cab Accessible Design
Standards Approved by Bristol Physical Access Chain
(BPAC)

Proposal – to remove all information in italics (other
requirements to remain)

Review status Column – Currently states:

Suitability of vehicles, and appropriate dimensions, will
continue to be reviewed at each policy review and if any

28

10

11

concerns are raised.
Internal roof to floor height - Floor – door lintel 1320mm
Must be reviewed at least biannually to achieve
recommended target of 1625mm
External Floor (at interval level) to ground height 540mm
(maximum)
Must be reviewed at least biannually to achieve
recommended target of 380mm maximum
Seat height from floor 380mm
Must be reviewed at least biannually to achieve
recommended target of 450
Space for wheelchair measures – L x W 1200mm x 800mm
Must be reviewed at least biannually to achieve
recommended target of 1300mm x 1340mm

Page 122

Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

Taxi meter visible from rear passenger seat
Display
must be clearly visible facing forward
Future consideration must be given to additional display for
passengers facing to the rear and to audible
(Provision 1 to 1c are in force until 31 March 2018)
1. At the date of the first application (which means the first
application for a Private Hire Vehicle Licence made in
respect of a particular vehicle and any subsequent
application in respect of the same vehicle made more than
three months following expiry of a Private Hire Vehicle
Licence) no more than three and a half years shall have
elapsed from The Relevant Date. (The Relevant Date has
the same meaning as in the Licensing Conditions). An out
of time replacement application made in respect of a
previously licensed vehicle within three months of expiry of
the last licence will be accepted notwithstanding more than
three years has elapsed from The Relevant Date
PROVIDED THAT;
a. No licence should generally be issued so as to expire
more than ten years after the Relevant Date and;

Removal as no longer applicable

n/a

n/a

b. where more than eight years has elapsed from the
Relevant Date when an out of time replacement application
is made any Licence issued shall endure for no more than
six months and;

Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

c. where an out of time replacement application is received
more than seven days after expiry of The Licence an
additional fee may be levied by The Council;
Age limits:
Current policy:
3.
Any vehicle first registered between 31st March
2008 and 31st December 2010 will not be licensed after 10
years from the date of first registration.

Page 123

4.
Any vehicle first registered between 1st January
2011 and 31st August 2015 can be relicensed until 10
years from date of first registration.

Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

5.
Any vehicle first registered after 1st September
2015 can be licensed until 12 years from the date of first
registration.
Vehicle Measurements:
a. From the top of the seat cushions to the roof at the
lowest point directly above the seat cushions
should be a minimum of 865mm (approximately 34
inches).
b. The measurement between the rear of the front seats
and the backrest of the rear seat should be a minimum of
750mm (approximately 30 inches).
c. The measurement between the backrest of the front
passenger seat and the dashboard fascia should be a
minimum of 750mm (approximately 30 inches) when
measured horizontally forward with the seat cushion.

Reworded to make clearer – no change to age limits:

12

4.
Any vehicle first registered on or before 31st August
2015 can be relicensed until 10 years from date of first
registration.
5.
Any vehicle first registered on or after 1st September
2015 can be licensed until 12 years from the date of first
registration.

Vehicle measurements - All references to inches removed in
respect of measurements and mm kept in.

a.

From the top of the seat cushions to the roof at the
lowest point directly above the seat cushions should
be a minimum of 865mm

b.

The measurement between the rear of the front seats
and the backrest of the rear seat should be a
minimum of 750mm

c.

The measurement between the backrest of the front
passenger seat and the dashboard fascia should be
a minimum of 750mm when measured horizontally
forward with the seat cushion.

n/a

12-13

d. The depth of the seat from the backrest to the front edge
must be a minimum of 405mm (approximately 16 inches).

d.

The depth of the seat from the backrest to the front
edge must be a minimum of 405mm.

e. All passenger seats within the vehicle shall have a
minimum of 405mm (approximately 16 inches) width per
passenger.

e.

All passenger seats within the vehicle shall have a
minimum of 405mm) width per passenger.

f. In the case of vehicles licensed for 5 to 8 passengers, the
measurement between the rear of a front passenger seat
and the backrest of the rear seat should be a minimum of
650mm (approximately 26 inches).

f.

In the case of vehicles licensed for 5 to 8
passengers, the measurement between the rear of a
front passenger seat and the backrest of the rear
seat should be a minimum of 650mm.

Page 124

Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

Fire extinguisher

Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

Removed as advice is now for drivers to vacate their vehicle

n/a

n/a

Vehicle testing

Amendment to make the requirement clearer and that vehicle
is maintained as this standard whilst licensed.

n/a

13

All vehicles on initial application should be of such standard
and condition so as to have passed the MOT and
safety/cosmetic test as specified by the Council.

All vehicles on initial application should be of such standard
and condition so as to have passed the vehicle safety
cosmetic test including an MOT as specified by the Council.
Vehicles shall be maintained to such standard and condition
whilst the vehicle remains licensed.

On subsequent applications vehicles should be inspected
every twelve months at a place specified by the Council.
This inspection will include the MOT and safety/cosmetic
check as set by the Council.

On subsequent applications vehicles should be inspected
every twelve months at a place specified by the Council. This
inspection will include the vehicle safety cosmetic tests
including the MOT as set by the Council.

Write offs

Expanded to include existing arrangements:

n/a

13

Any vehicle written off may be replaced with another vehicle

Any vehicle written off may be replaced with another vehicle

All vehicles should be equipped with a fire extinguisher of
British Standard No BSEN3 of at least 1 kilogramme of
powder capacity and shall bear the manufacturers expiry
date.

Page 125

provided it is not older than the written off vehicle

provided it is not older than the written off vehicle. The
replacement vehicle may be of the same fuel type as the
written off vehicle, or if it is not must comply with the policy in
this respect. Applications for replacement vehicles shall be
submitted within 3 months from the date the write off was
confirmed by the insurance company

Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

Alterations

Amended to:

Any alteration to the seating configuration or capacity of a
vehicle is not permitted without prior written consent from
the Council. Consent will not be given unless written
confirmation from the vehicle’s manufacturer is provided
stating that such alterations are safe.

Any alteration to the seating configuration or capacity of a
vehicle is not permitted.

Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

n/a

If considering the evidence members determine it appropriate
to relax the tint requirements amended wording suggested as
follows:

n/a

14

n/a

14

23 and 29

14-15

Tints – Amendment to existing requirements for tints which
are in Inspection Standards.
Tinted glass windows are permissible to the rear side
windows provided that they are only those supplied as
standard by the original vehicle manufacturer and comply
with current vehicle Construction and Use Regulations or any
subsequent replacement.

Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

n/a

14.Tinted films or glass applied retrospectively to the vehicle
windows are not permitted.
Fit and Proper - New requirement relating to basic
disclosures and certificate of good character
In respect of new applications a basic disclosure check for
each individual/company director/company secretary (as
applicable) must be provided. The disclosure must be dated
no earlier than 2 months prior to the date of the Council
receiving the complete application. Vehicle proprietors that
also hold a current private hire or hackney carriage drivers

licence do not need to provide a basic disclosure unless they
cease to hold a drivers licence.
16. All individuals/company directors/company secretary (as
applicable) must supply a new basic disclosure to the Council
annually, unless they are existing drivers as above. The
disclosure must be dated no earlier than 2 months prior to the
date of the Council receiving the complete application.

Page 126
Private Hire
Vehicle
Specification

n/a

Inspection
Standards
Inspection
Standards

Fitness standard for vehicles

All applicants including individuals, company directors,
company secretaries shall generally be expected to provide a
certificate of good character (or similar) from each country if
they have lived outside of the UK for a continuous period of
three months (or more) within the last five years of the date of
their licence application, save in exceptional circumstances.
Where this Certificate has been produced in a non-English
language, the applicant will generally be required to produce
a translation of the Certificate from the Embassy or
Consulate of that country and provide the original document,
save in exceptional circumstances. An exception might be
permitted where a refugee has been allowed to stay in the
UK and has been given asylum, and this exception will only
apply to that country. The cost of certificates of good
character (or similar) are to be met by the applicant in full.
Language proficiency introduction of requirement:

28

15

Removal of reference to the VOSA. Replaced with DVSA

n/a

19

Fitness standard for vehicles

Amended to reflect change in title of DVSA document

n/a

19

Current wording

This guide provides additional testing requirements to those
in the MOT Inspection Manual and all HC and PHV must be

The Council will have the right to require applicants and
licence holders to undertake and pass a mandatory test of
their language proficiency which will cover both oral and
written English language skills and be specified by the
Council. Such a test will be completed the
licensees/applicants expense.

Inspection
Standards

Inspection
Standards
Inspection
Standards

This guide provides additional testing requirements to those
in the MOT Inspection Manual and all HC and PHV must be
maintained to no less than the standards set out in the
DVSA publication “MOT Inspection Manual – Car and Light
Commercial”, ISBN 0-9549239-0-1
Section 4 – Body and Structure
4.1 Vehicle Body and Condition – (Exterior

Inspection Process
Contents page

maintained to no less than the standards set out in the DVSA
publication “MOT inspection manual: cars and passenger
vehicles

Addition of the requirement for no smoking signs to be a
minimum of 70mm x 70mm in size to ensure visibility.
Amendment to read:
m. Lack of clearly displayed or omission of ‘No Smoking’
signs a minimum of 70mm x 70mm in size.
Removal of reference to the VOSA. Replaced with DVSA
New provision to ensure only licensed drivers drive licensed
vehicles.

n/a

20

n/a

22

n/a

23

n/a

24

n/a

24-25

n/a – new provision

Page 127

Inspection
Standards

Contents page:
Current wording:

Inspection
Standards

All HC and PHV must be maintained to no less than the
standards set out in the DVSA publication “MOT Inspection
Manual – Car and Light Commercial”, ISBN 0-9549239-0-1.
Contents page

Note: Where a licensed vehicle is presented for inspection
the driver must produce their valid Bristol City Council private
hire or Hackney carriage driver licence at the time of the
appointment. Failure to produce a valid licence will result in
the inspection being cancelled. The inspection fee will be
forfeit.
Amended to reflect change in title of DVSA document
All HC and PHV must be maintained to no less than the
standards set out in the DVSA publication “MOT inspection
manual: cars and passenger vehicles.

Addition of heading:
7.7 Warning lights

Inspection
Standards

Current policy:
1.3 Stop Lamps – High Level Stop Lamps

Previously missing from document.
Proposal to remove the loophole where if the lamp is not
connected or there is doubt over whether it is connected that
it does not need to be tested. High level stop lamps have
been fitted on vehicles for some time and are a long

Any additional stop lamps fitted and connected must be
tested. Where high level stop lamps are fitted and there is
doubt as to whether they are connected, the benefit of this
doubt should be given to the presenter.

established safety improvement. It should be mandatory that
they are connected and working.

Check the high level stop lamp where fitted:

Any additional stop lamps fitted must be tested.

a. Is not obscured, and is not obviously incorrectly
positioned.
b. At least 50% of the lamp must be visible from the
rear.

Check the high level stop lamp where fitted:

1.3 Stop Lamps – High Level Stop Lamps

a. Is not obscured, and is not obviously incorrectly positioned.
b.
At least 50% of the lamp must be visible from the
rear.

Reason For Rejection
Reason For Rejection
High Level Stop Lamp
High Level Stop Lamp

Page 128

a. Obscured or obviously incorrectly positioned.
b. More than 50% of the lamp not working or obscured.
Inspection
Standards

Section 7 Additional Requirements

a. Obscured or obviously incorrectly positioned.
b. More than 50% of the lamp not working or obscured.
Addition of new section “7.8”. To be included in contents
page and main body of standards as below:

n/a

40

“7.8 Vehicle Registration Marks
Vehicle Registration Marks must conform to the Regulations
applicable to that vehicle.
Reason for rejection
Vehicle registration does not comply”
This addresses those plates which display graphics and
formats which are not permitted.
Inspection
Standards

Appendix A section 8.2 and Section 8 ancillary equipment

Removed fire extinguisher no longer required

n/a

n/a

Inspection
Standards

Section 8 Ancillary equipment

Removed inspection of first aid kit (if present) requirement
Reference to inches removed in respect of measurements

n/a

n/a

Inspection
Standards

n/a

Section 8.3 Card payment facility added:
Method of Inspection

n/a

41

n/a

48

8

51-52

a. Method of Inspection
b.
c. a. Check that the electronic payment signage is affixed
Reason for rejection
a.

Page 129

Private Hire
Vehicles Exemption
from
requirement
to display
Vehicle
Identification
Policy

Fit & Proper
Person
Policy

Private Hire Vehicles - Exemption from requirement to
display Vehicle Identification Policy
Current condition
i. All licence plates shall be displayed at all times unless the
vehicle is being used for executive type work including
weddings.

Enhanced DBS Check

An enhanced DBS check, or future equivalent as specified
by the Licensing Manager, must be completed through the
Licensing Team.
a. The application must be submitted through the Council’s
Licensing Department and for new applicants the returned
DBS certificate must be less than six months old when the
private hire or Hackney carriage driver licence application is
ready to be issued.
b. Existing licensees must supply a new enhanced DBS
certificate (completed through the Council’s Licensing

a. Signage not displayed which states that contactless card
payments are accepted. Signage must be displayed in such
a position that it is prominently on view to prospective
passengers i.e. visible from the exterior of the vehicle.
Proposed condition:
Exemptions are generally only granted to vehicles that do at
least 75% executive work. Many vehicles to which an
exemption applies do 100% executive work. To require
these vehicles to display the licence plates at all times
executive work is not being undertaken (i.e. for social and
domestic use, when not carrying a fare) seems
disproportionate.
I. When the vehicle is being used for non-executive private
hire work the licence plates must be displayed
Enhanced DBS check requirements updated to include DBS
update service and impact on pending applications and
existing licences.
1. All applicants and drivers shall be required to undertake
the following steps:
a. An enhanced DBS certificate, or future equivalent, must
be provided to the satisfaction of the Licensing Team.
b. The applicant must subscribe to the DBS Update Service
, or future equivalent and maintain subscription to the
service and at all times whilst they hold a hackney
carriage or private hire drivers licence
c. Information relating to the applicants DBS Update Service

Department) on renewal every three years.
c. The Council will have the right to require a further DBS
check to be completed at the licensees expense at any time
during the currency of the licence should the Council have
reason to doubt the fitness of the licence holder to hold the
licence.

Details and a Consent Form shall be provided to the
satisfaction of the Licensing Team
d. The Council will have the right to require a further DBS
check to be completed at the licensees expense at any
time during the currency of the licence should the Council
have reason to doubt the fitness of the licence holder to
hold the licence.
e. In the event of a delay of 6 weeks or more for a DBS
application to be returned the Licensing Team may inform
the Chair of the Public Safety and Protection Committee
of the delay.
f. If an applicant or licence holder does not continuously
subscribe to the DBS Update service or the status of a
DBS certificate changes the applicant will be required to;
(i)

Page 130

Provide a new enhanced DBS Certificate or future
equivalent;
(ii) Subscribe to the DBS Update Service , or future
equivalent;
(iii) Provide information relating to the applicants DBS
Update Service Details and a Consent Form shall be
provided to the satisfaction of the Licensing Team
Any pending applications may not be determined and
existing licences may be revoked or suspended until
these steps are completed to the satisfaction of the
Licensing Team.

Fit & Proper
Person
Policy

n/a

Introduction of requirement for Certificate of Good Character:
2. Where any applicant has been resident abroad at any
time up to 5 years prior to an application they must
generally provide a Certificate of Good Character or
similar document from each and every country within
which they have been resident, save in exceptional
circumstances. Residency for these purposes is
considered by this Licensing Authority as where the

23

52

person has lived in a country for longer than 6 months in
a given calendar year. Where this Certificate has been
produced in a non-English language, the applicant will
generally be required to produce a translation of the
Certificate from the Embassy or Consulate of that country
and provide the original document, save in exceptional
circumstances. An exception might be permitted where a
refugee has been allowed to stay in the UK and has been
given asylum, and this exception will only apply to that
country. The cost of any DBS checks undertaken,
subscription to the DBS Update Service and Certificates
of Good Character are to be met by the applicant in full.
Fit & Proper
Person
Policy

n/a

Mandatory Safeguarding Training – new requirement

27

54

28

54

n/a

54

Page 131

All new applicants for a Hackney carriage or private hire
driver licence must complete mandatory safeguarding
training as specified by the Council.
All licensed Hackney carriage or private hire drivers must
complete mandatory safeguarding training as specified by the
Council within 6 months of the policy being implemented.

Fit & Proper
Person
Policy

A language proficiency test is currently carried out prior to
the Gold Standard training.

Requirement added to the policy including that the Council
may require existing drivers Test of a drivers oral and written
English language skills:
All new applicants must undertake and pass a mandatory test
of their language proficiency, which will cover both oral and
written English language skills and be specified by the
Council. The Council may require existing Hackney carriage
and private hire drivers to undertake and pass this test. Such
a test will be completed the licensees/applicants expense.

Fit & Proper
Person

Expired Licences:

Requirements updated to:

Policy

In the event a private hire or Hackney carriage driver
licence expires the following applies:
Application Date

Requirement from applicant

Up to seven days after expiry 1.Complete application form
Of the previous licence*
for grant of a licence.
2. Pay an application fee in
addition to the yearly
licence fee

Page 132

Between seven days and up 1. Complete application form
To six months after expiry
for grant of a licence.
Date*
2. Pay an application fee in
addition to the yearly licence
fee
3. Complete and submit DBS
check and pay current fee

Between six months and up 1. Complete application form
to twelve months after expiry
for grant of a licence.
Date*
2.Pay an application fee in
addition to the yearly licence
fee
3. Complete and submit DBS
check and pay current fee.
The licence can only be
Issued on return of a
Satisfactory result
12 months and over from
Expiry*

TREAT AS NEW APPLICANT

*Where an expired licence is being renewed by a driver
who still holds a current Hackney carriage or private hire
driver licence the above criteria will not apply with the
exception that a grant application form and grant fee in
addition to the licence fee will be required.

. In the event a private hire or Hackney carriage driver licence
expires the following applies:
a.
For applications submitted less than 12 months from
expiry of the previous licence the applicant will not be
required to complete the Gold Standard or Knowledge Test if
they have previously completed this requirement. If the
applicant has not yet completed the Gold Standard training
they shall be required to complete this by their next renewal
or grant application;
Applicants who already hold a current Hackney carriage or
private hire driver licence do not have to undertake the Bristol
Gold Standard training if applying for the alternative licence.

Guidelines
relating to
relevance of
criminal
behaviour

n/a

New section relating to self-reporting added:

39

56

39

55-60

Licensee Self Reporting
Licence holders are required to notify the Council in writing
by close of business on the following working day of the
happening of any of the following events:

Page 133

1. Receiving a simple or conditional caution or being
convicted of any criminal offence
2. Being arrested, interviewed, charged, reported for
summons or receiving a postal requisition in
connection with any motoring or criminal offence.
3. Receiving any out of court disposal including formal
warnings, community resolutions, restorative justice
education and awareness courses, community
protection warnings and notices or fixed penalty
notices.
Any failure to notify the Council of the happening of any of
the above events may result in a review by the Council as to
whether the licence holder is a fit and proper person.
Importantly, a failure by a licence holder to disclose any of
the above events that the Council is subsequently advised of
might be seen as behaviour that questions honesty and
therefore the suitability of the licence holder regardless of the
outcome of the initial allegation.
A licensee shall not be entitled to benefit from a failure to
disclose such relevant information to the Council where any
period of time specified in this policy has expired.
Guidelines
relating to
relevance of
criminal
behaviour

The policy currently details a guide on the action that may
be taken where convictions etc. are proved for

Policy updated in respect of the following based on statutory
standards. Therefore a number of conviction in the current
policy will now be reclassified under the following
sections/amendments:
- Offending behaviour updated to include alternative

-

-

-

Page 134

methods of disposal
Crimes resulting in death section added.
Exploitation section added.
Violence section amended to offences involving
violence against the person/property. Amended from
5-10 years to 10 years.
Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs
section added.
Possession of a weapon added.
Sexual offences and offences of indecency section
added. Indecency sections from existing policy
deleted.
Dishonesty section amended from 3-5 years free of
conviction to 7 years.
Drugs section amended from 5 to 10 years.
Discrimination &Equalities section added.
Motoring convictions – updated, removed reference
to minor, major and hybrid offences and added

Consideration will be given to the nature of the offence and
the penalty including points and fines.
-

Private Hire
Operator
Policy

n/a

Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs
added
Using a hand-held device whilst driving section
added.

- Appendices – 1, II,III, IV, V, VI deleted
Draft policy approved by Public Safety and Protection
Committee in 2020 has been updated in light of statutory
standards.
In line with the statutory standards the following requirements
have been added:
-

Amendment for basic disclosure from being required
every 3 years to annually.
Introduction of certificate of good character as a
requirement.

29-33, 35

65-72

-

A number of paragraphs have been
updated/added/removed based on statutory
standards
- We have taken the major of requirements of the
statutory standards and expanded the section
relating to decisions:
The Council’s decision will be independent of a driver licence
refusal/suspension/revocation and based on appropriate
information. The Council will generally only consider
information that would be available via a basic DBS check. If
however the Council has in its possession information
regarding an individual that was disclosed via an enhanced
DBS check which casts doubt over whether that individual is
a fit and proper person to hold a PHV Operator’s licence, the
Council may take it into account if considered relevant.
- PSV licensed drivers

Page 135

Additional requirements compared to the statutory standards
are:
-

Language proficiency assessments where required,
Requirements in respect of trading name,
requirement to hold a safeguarding policy,
Operators to maintain a copy of the current vehicle
safety cosmetic test for all vehicles.

We have deleted the following sections from the previously
agreed: requirements for renewal/grant applications, lost
property and right to licence checks which will be detailed in
guidance.
We also included additional information relating to the
bookings register including the name of both the passengers
and person making the booking (rather than solely the
passenger), the date of the booking (if different to the journey
date), the fare agreed, any particular needs of the passenger,
if subcontracted the name of the operator, how the booking
was made, whether the booking was fulfilled and if not the

reasons why it was not fulfilled.
The full policy can be viewed at Appendix A of the committee
report.

Page 136

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

n/a

New section added to clarify that once licensed a vehicle
remains licensed and all conditions apply throughout the
licence period. Wording as follows:

n/a

73

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions
Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions
Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

Definition for “safety/cosmetic test” shall be the test
carried out to the standard as specified by The Council

n/a

76

n/a

76

Changed to :
Licensed Vehicles shall be inspected (for both MOT and
vehicle safety cosmetic testing as specified by the
Council) at least once a year at a place specified by
the Council. Where more than eight years has elapsed
from the Relevant Date such inspection shall occur
every twice yearly.

n/a

77

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire

Private hire vehicle licence condition 7.1.1:

Changed to

n/a

77

7.1.1.

7.1.1.

Licensees should note that once a vehicle is licensed as a
Hackney carriage or a private hire vehicle that vehicle
remains a “licensed vehicle” throughout the period of the
licence irrespective of the activity the vehicle is being used
for. To clarify all licence conditions apply at all times, even if
the vehicle is used for social and domestic use, and only a
licensed driver can drive the vehicle at any time.
Changes wording to
“vehicle safety cosmetic test” shall be the test carried out
to the standard as specified by The Council

n/a

Addition of definition of Police Officer to include PCSO
“Police Officer” means a constable of any rank, and a
Police Community Support Officer in Uniform

Private hire vehicle licence condition 5:
1.
Licensed Vehicles shall be inspected (for both MOT and
safety /cosmetic testing as specified by the Council) at
least once a year at a place specified by the Council.
Where more than eight years has elapsed from the
Relevant Date such inspection shall occur every twice
yearly.2

there is displayed on the Licensed Vehicle a current

the excise duty for the Licensed Vehicle is current;

Licence
Conditions
Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

excise licence as required by law;
Private hire vehicle licence condition 7.1

Changed to

7.1.
there is in force in relation to the user of the vehicle
as a Private Hire Vehicle a policy of insurance complying
with the requirements of part VI of the Road Traffic Act
1972 and shall produce for inspection the original certificate
of such insurance immediately upon the request of an
Authorised Officer or Police Officer. (Please note that the
condition requires production of the original certificate.
Photocopies or faxed copies are not acceptable.)
Private Hire Vehicle Conditions

7.1 there is force a policy of insurance covering the use of
that vehicle as a private hire vehicle / Hackney carriage
complying with the relevant legislation, and the driver and
Proprietor of the vehicle shall produce for inspection proof
that such insurance is currently held immediately on request
of an Authorised Officer or Police Officer

7.9.
No video recording system is used within The
Licensed Vehicle unless the Council’s written permission is
first obtained and where such permission is granted then;

Page 137

7.9.1.

No audio recording must take place and

7.9.2. A sign must be affixed within The Licensed Vehicle
so as to be readily visible to Passengers informing them
that video recording is or may be taking place.

7.9.
No CCTV system is to be used within The Licensed
Vehicle unless all Information Commissioner’s Office
requirements are adhered to and;
7.9.1.

n/a

77

27-29

78-79

n/a

79

No audio recording must take place

7.9.2. A sign must be affixed within The Licensed Vehicle
so as to be readily visible to Passengers informing them that
video recording is or may be taking place.
7.10. No dash camera system may be used within The
Licensed Vehicle unless all Information Commissioner’s
Office requirements are adhered to and;
7.10.1. No audio recording must take place

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

Private Hire Vehicle current condition:
7.11.6. have a spare wheel and tyre which should be
maintained in such a condition as to render it suitable for
lawful use on a road and have the tools for the changing of
such a spare wheel and tyre;

7.10.2. The dash camera system must be outward facing
only.
Proposed condition – To reflect the fact that many vehicles
are not supplied with spare tyres
7.11.6. have a spare wheel and tyre which must be
maintained in such a condition as to render it suitable for
lawful use on a road and have the tools for the changing of
such a spare wheel and tyre;
7.11.6.1.

Where a vehicle was supplied by the

manufacturer with a limited mileage emergency use only tyre
condition 7.11.6 does not apply. In this instance the
emergency use must be maintained in such a condition as to
render it suitable for lawful use on a road and have the tools
for the changing of such a spare wheel and tyre

Page 138

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

Private Hire vehicle licence condition:

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions
Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

n/a

7.11.6.2.
Where a vehicle was supplied by the
manufacturer with an emergency tyre inflation kit then
condition 7.11.6 does not apply. In this instance an
emergency tyre inflation kit must be kept in the vehicle at all
times in a usable condition.
Removed

n/a

n/a

Private Hire Vehicle Licence - New condition relating to tints

n/a

79

n/a

80

7.10.7. carry and maintain in good condition, a fire
extinguisher that accords with that specified in the current
Vehicle Specification issued by The Council from time to
time, such extinguisher to be kept in a readily accessible
position to facilitate its use by the driver if required.

9. Tinted films or glass applied retrospectively to the
Licensed Vehicle windows are not permitted
Private Hire Vehicle Licence
Current condition

Proposed condition. Correction of numbering error and
removing requirement for written confirmation from PHO.
This if already covered by PHO licence conditions

9. Employment

11.

9.1. On or before the grant of a licence (and prior to receipt
of Licence Plates ) the Licensee shall state the Operator(s)
with whom he/she will work (where work includes that work
arising from the relationship of employer/employee and/or
from any other arrangement under which The Licensee
secures work or obtains or is entitled to receive any income
in consequence of any bookings made through the
Operator or his operating business ) and will produce
written confirmation from the Operator(s) as to that fact;

11.1. On or before the grant of a licence (and prior to
receipt of Licence Plates ) the Licensee shall state the
Operator(s) with whom he/she will work (where work includes
that work arising from the relationship of employer/employee
and/or from any other arrangement under which The
Licensee secures work or obtains or is entitled to receive any
income in consequence of any bookings made through the
Operator or his operating business);

Employment

9.2. The Licensee shall report any change in the details
provided pursuant to condition 9.1 above by notifying The
Council by close of business on the next working day
following any change and shall forthwith take all steps
necessary to comply with the requirements of condition 9.1
relating to written confirmation;

Page 139

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

9.3. The Licensee shall ensure that The Licence or a
certified copy of it is provided forthwith to any Operator
required to be notified to The Council pursuant to the
provisions of condition 9.1 and 9.2 and The Licensee shall
not retrieve any document so provided whilst any
arrangements to work with that Operator remains current.
Private Hire Vehicle Licence

The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is notified in
writing by close of business on the following working day of
the happening of any of the following events:
11.1. The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional caution
or being convicted of any criminal offence;
11.2. The Licensee being bound over by any court;
11.3. The licensee being arrested or interviewed in
connection with investigations into allegations of offences of
the following type;
11.3.1. any offence involving an allegation of dishonesty,
indecency or violence;
11.3.2. any offence involving an allegation of a failure to
comply with the Relevant Legislation;
11.3.3. any offence arising out of the use or keeping of any
motor vehicle;
11.3.4. any offence which on conviction can result in a term
of imprisonment.
11.4. any material change in the circumstances of The

11.2. The Licensee shall report any change in the details
provided pursuant to condition 11.1 above by notifying The
Council by close of business on the next working day
following any change;
11.3. The Licensee shall ensure that The Licence or a
certified copy of it is provided forthwith to any Operator
required to be notified to The Council pursuant to the
provisions of condition 11.1 and 11.2 and The Licensee shall
not retrieve any document so provided whilst any
arrangements to work with that Operator remains current.

Revised condition in terms of notification and revised
condition to ensure the Council is notified about incidents
involving the vehicle/driver which do not result in damage.
For example, if a passenger was injured but no damage to
the vehicle occurred.
Change of circumstances
13.
The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is
notified in writing by the next working day of the happening
of any of the following events;
13.1. The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional
caution, being convicted of any criminal or motoring offence,
or receiving any out of court disposal including formal
warnings, community resolutions, restorative justice
education and awareness courses, community protection
warnings and notices or fixed penalty notices;
13.1.2 being bound over by any court;
13.2.3 being arrested or interviewed in connection with
investigations into allegations for any offence
13.2. any material change in the circumstances of The
Licensee where a material change is one that would require
The Licensee to provide different information on application
to The Council than has been provided in connection with the

10

80

Licensee where a material change is one that would require
The Licensee to provide different information on application
to The Council than has been provided in connection with
the most recent application for a Private Hire Vehicle
Licence made by The Licensee, including, by way of
example, a change of address, change of name, change of
employer or business, and diagnosis of a medical condition;
11.5. any accident to the Licensed Vehicle resulting in
damage

Page 140

11.6. any alteration to the vehicle (including mechanical or
bodywork alterations). For the avoidance of doubt, unless it
is with the prior written consent of The Council, no alteration
may be made to the vehicle which would result in a
contravention of any of the conditions attaching to The
Licence. Where alterations are made then the Council shall
be entitled to require the vehicle to undergo a further
inspection.

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions
Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence

11.7. the sale or acquisition of a Licensed Vehicle.
n/a

n/a

most recent application for a Private Hire Vehicle Licence
made by The Licensee, including, by way of example, a
change of address, change of name, or change of employer
or business;
13.3. any accident or incident resulting in damage to the
Licensed Vehicle, or by the use of that Licensed Vehicle any
damage caused to another vehicle, or of any injury caused to
any person by the use of the Licensed Vehicle
13.4. any alteration to the vehicle (including mechanical or
bodywork alterations). For the avoidance of doubt, unless it is
with the prior written consent of The Council, no alteration
may be made to the vehicle which would result in a
contravention of any of the conditions attaching to The
Licence. Where alterations are made then the Council shall
be entitled to require the vehicle to undergo a further
inspection.
13.5. the sale or acquisition of a Licensed Vehicle.

Private Hire vehicle licence - New condition relating to seat
alteration
Any alteration to the seating configuration or capacity of a
vehicle is not permitted.
Private Hire vehicle licence -New condition relating to vehicle
only licensed by one authority

n/a

81

n/a

81

29-31

82-89

14. The vehicle shall only be licensed by Bristol City Council.
If the Licensing Authority becomes aware of other vehicle
licences (hackney carriage or private hire) running
concurrently with this licence, then this licence will be
revoked.
Current Private Hire Operator Licence Conditions (in full)
set out below.

Proposed new Private Hire Operator Licence Conditions (in
full)

All below conditions to be removed and replaced

1.

The Licensee shall be not less than 18 years of age.

Conditions
The definitions and common conditions contained at
General conditions section pages 5 to 7 including this
appendix are incorporated into these conditions.
2. Insofar as is necessary to give effect to these conditions,
the Vehicle Specification shall be incorporated into these
conditions.
3. The Licensee shall be not less than 183 years of age.

Page 141

4. The Licensee shall provide and keep a register of
bookings in such form as shall agreed by The Council,
which register shall be retained for a period of not less than
twelve months from the date of last entry and in which
register shall be entered, contemporaneously and in writing
before commencement of each journey the following
particulars4.1. the time of hire;
4.2. name of Passenger;
4.3. pick up point;
4.4. destination;
4.5. licence number of vehicle and
4.6. name of driver to whom work is allocated.
It is important that Licensees note the need to record
bookings contemporaneously in the register. The practice of
copying up at a later stage from dockets or some other ad
hoc system is contravention of this conditions. Such a
contravention renders the condition of little or no effect in
terms of issues of great importance to the Council such as
enforcement and protection of the public – and indeed the
protection of drivers from whom, for example, evidence of a
proper booking can be imperative in answering an
allegation of plying for hire. Contravention therefore renders
the Licensee liable to enforcement action, which in
appropriate circumstances could result in the suspension or

Private Hire Operator records
2.
The Licensee shall ensure that an entry is made in a
register either a record book or computerised booking and
dispatch system for each booking which shall include:
2.1
The name of any individual that responded to the
booking request
2.2
The date and time on which the booking is made and
if different, the date of the proposed journey;
2.3
The name of the hirer, and their contact details such
as an address, phone number or e-mail and the name of the
lead passenger if different from the Hirer;
2.4
The agreed time and place of pick-up point, or, if
more than one, the agreed time and place of the first pick-uppoint;
2.5
The destination(s);
2.6
The drivers badge and licence number and vehicle
plate and registration number allocated the booking;
2.7
The fare agreed for the journey (where appropriate);
2.8
Any particular needs of the customer for example
disability requirements (where appropriate);
2.9
If appropriate, the name of the other operator for
whom a booking was received and / or to whom the booking
was subcontracted and any relevant notes;
2.10
How the booking was made (i.e. in person,
telephone, online);
2.11
The name of any individual that dispatched the
vehicle
2.12
Whether the booking was fulfilled and if not the
reasons why it was not fulfilled.
3.
The register of bookings shall be retained at the
Premises for at least 12 months from the date of last entry.
Note: The register must be updated contemporaneously and
in writing before the commencement of each journey. The
practice of copying up at a later stage from dockets or some
other ad hoc system is contravention of these conditions.

revocation of the Licence.
The form of register usually agreed will either be in the form
of a bound book or where satisfactory arrangements are
made for inspection, etc. may take the form of a
computerized booking system. In the latter case it will
generally be expected that the recorded are capable of
being readily printed and produced on demand to an
authorized officer or constable and of course the records
will need to be properly backed up so as to ensure
compliance with the provision of governing retention. This
guidance note also applies to other registers required to be
kept in accordance with the conditions governing this
Licence.

Page 142

5. The Licensee shall provide and keep a register of
Vehicles in the form of a bound book which register shall be
retained for a period of not less than twelve months from
the date of last entry and in which register shall be entered,
in writing the following particulars of each Vehicle under his
control –
5.1. make;
5.2. registration number;
5.3. Licence number;
5.4. Proprietor;
5.5. date control commenced and
5.6. date upon which control ceased.
6. The Licensee shall provide and keep a register of Private
Hire Drivers in the form of a bound book, which register
shall be retained for a period of not less than twelve months
from the date of last entry and in which register shall be
entered in writing the following particulars of each driver
working for the Licensee –
6.1. name;
6.2. badge number;
6.3. date driver commenced working for the Licensee;

Contravention renders the Licensee liable to enforcement
action, which in appropriate circumstances could result in the
suspension or revocation of the Licence.
This guidance note also applies to other registers required to
be kept in accordance with the conditions governing this
Licence.
Where the booking register is a record book it shall be a
suitable hardback book which has consecutive page
numbers. All entries shall be clearly and easily legible, with
no line spaces or blank pages.
4.
Where the register is a computerised booking system
the records shall be capable of being readily printed and
produced on demand to an Authorised Officer or Police
Officer. Computerised records shall be properly backed up so
as to ensure compliance with the provision of governing
retention.
5.
The Licensee shall ensure that any staff responsible
for making booking records are competent to do so and are
capable of using the system used for the keeping of records
including providing records on request to an authorised
officer or the police.
6.
The Licensee shall maintain and keep an up-to-date
a register containing the following information:
6.1
Name, date of birth and home address of every
Private Hire Driver operated by them;
6.2
Details including date of expiry of the Council Private
Hire Driver licence, badge number and licence number of
every Private Hire Driver licence holder operated by the
Licensee;
6.3
Any call sign/codes allocated to each Private Hire
Driver;
6.4
The date the driver commenced and ceased carrying
out bookings on behalf of the Licensee ( if applicable);
6.5
Name and home address of the proprietor of every

6.4. date driver ceased working for the Licensee
7. The Licensee shall retain, until at least the date referred
to in condition 5.6 above, the Vehicle Licence or a certified
copy of it in respect of every Vehicle that is required to be
recorded in accordance with condition 5 above and shall
immediately produce the same when required by an
Authorised Officer or Constable.

Page 143

8. The Licensee shall retain, until at least the date referred
to in condition 6.4 above, the Private Hire Drivers Licence
(and/or the Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence where
applicable) or a certified copy of it in respect of every driver
whose details are required to be recorded in accordance
with condition 5 above and shall immediately produce the
same when required by an Authorised Officer or Constable.
Within seven days of the date whereby the driver ceases to
be under the control of the Licensee, the Private Hire
Drivers Licence (and/or the Hackney Carriage Drivers
Licence) or a certified copy shall be returned to the Council.
9. Any register kept by The Licensee in accordance with
these conditions shall be immediately made available for
inspection by any Authorised Officer or Constable upon
request at any reasonable time (and at all times whilst the
Licensee is Operating) and shall forthwith provide to any
such officer or Constable photocopies of any such records
and associated documentation as may be required
following inspection or, where the Licensee is unable to
provide copies s/he shall permit the officer or Constable to
remove the register for such period as is reasonable in the
circumstances to secure the copying of the required
documentation.
10. The Licensee shall take all necessary steps to ensure
that all vehicles and drivers with whom s/he works as an
Operator within the Controlled District are properly licensed
by The Council and shall not Operate in respect of any
vehicle unless satisfied that both driver and vehicle have

Private Hire Vehicle working on behalf of the Licensee;
6.6
Details including The Council licence plate number,
licence number, expiry date, vehicle make and vehicle
registration number of every Private Hire Vehicle used to
carry out bookings.
6.7
The date the Private Hire Vehicle commenced and
ceased being used for carrying out bookings on behalf of the
Licensee;
This register must be made immediately available for
inspection on demand by any authorised Officer or Police
Officer.
7.
For every Private Hire Driver and Private Hire
Vehicle working on behalf of the Licensee the following shall
be kept and maintained;
7.1
A copy of the drivers current Private Hire Drivers
licence ;
7.2
A copy of the drivers current Private Hire Drivers
badge;
7.3
A copy of photographic proof of identification ;
7.4
A copy of the current Private Hire Vehicle licence;
7.5
A copy of the Private Hire Vehicles current MOT
certificate;
7.6
A copy of the Private Hire Vehicles current vehicle
safety cosmetic test;
7.7
A copy of the Private Hire Vehicles current insurance
certificate or cover note in respect of the driver using the
Private Hire Vehicle;
7.8
A copy of the Taximeter calibration certificate, where
appropriate;
8.
Where the licensed Private Hire Vehicle register is
paper based it shall be in the form of a bound book.
9.
Where the licensed Private Hire Vehicle register is
computerised the register shall be capable of being readily
printed and produced on demand to an Authorised Officer or

been and remain so licensed.
11. The Licensee shall so far as is reasonably practicable
provide a prompt, efficient and reliable service and shall in
particular do everything necessary to ensure that Vehicles
attend punctually at the time and place agreed with the
Passenger.
12. The Licensee shall not Operate in respect of any
Vehicle that s/he knows or ought to know does not accord
with the conditions imposed under its vehicle licence and in
particular shall not conduct business in respect of a Vehicle
unless it is fitted with the approved signage.

Page 144

13. The Licensee shall ensure that any premises to which
the public have access for booking or waiting is kept clean,
has sufficient seating and is adequately heated, ventilated
and lit.
14. The possession or use of radio scanner equipment is
prohibited in the premises from which the Licensee
operates.
The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is notified in
writing by close of business on the following working day of
the happening of any of the following events:
15.1. The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional caution
or being convicted of any criminal offence;

Police Officer. Computerised records shall be properly
backed up so as to ensure compliance with the provision of
governing retention.
11.
The Licensee shall maintain a register of all staff that
will take bookings or dispatch vehicles. The register shall be
a ‘living document’ that maintains records of all those in these
roles for the same duration as booking records are required
to be kept.
12.
The Licensee shall maintain a record that they have
had sight of a basic DBS check certificate for all staff that will
take bookings or dispatch vehicles for the duration that the
individual remains on the register. Should an employee
cease to be on the register and later re-entered, the Licensee
shall require a new basic DBS certificate and sight of this
shall be recorded.
13.
Any register or records kept by the Licensee shall be
immediately made available for inspection by any Authorised
Officer or Police Officer upon request at any reasonable time
(and at all times whilst the Licensee is Operating) and shall
forthwith provide to any such Authorised Officer or Police
Officer photocopies or electronic copies of any such records
and associated documentation as may be required following
inspection or, where the Licensee is unable to provide copies
s/he shall permit the Authorised Officer or Police Officer to
remove the register for such period as is reasonable in the
circumstances to secure the copying of the required
documentation.

15.2. The Licensee being bound over by any court;
15.3. The Licensee being arrested or interviewed in
connection with investigations into allegations of offences of
the following type-

14.
The register of Private Hire Drivers and Private Hire
Vehicles including documentation shall be retained at the
Premises for at least 12 months from the date of last entry.

15.3.1. any offence involving an allegation of dishonesty,
indecency or violence;

15.
The Licensee shall take all necessary steps to
ensure that all Private Hire Vehicles and Private Hire Drivers
working on behalf of them within the Controlled District are

15.3.2. any offence involving an allegation of a failure to
comply with the Relevant Legislation;
15.3.3. any offence arising out of the use or keeping of any
motor vehicle;
15.3.4. any offence which on conviction may result in a term
of imprisonment;
15.4. any material change in the circumstances of The
Licensee where a material change is one that would require
The Licensee to provide different information on application
to The Council than has been provided in connection with
the more recent application for an Operators Licence made
by The Licensee, including, by way of example –

Page 145

15.4.1. any change in the address from which The Licensee
operates;
15.4.2. any change in the style or title of The Licensee or
his business or its trading status;
15.4.3. any irregularity that The Licensee believes may
exist in respect of the licensing of any vehicle or driver in
respect of which s/he Operates;
15.5. any circumstances that requires The Licensee to
make a register entry pursuant to condition 5.6 and/or 6.4
above.
16. The Licensee shall ensure that at the time of passing a
booking to a driver the following details are provided –
16.1. the name of the Passenger;
16.2. the pick-up time and location;
16.3. Any special requirement of the passenger;
16.4. Any price agreed for the journey;
16.5. The destination specified by the Passenger.

properly licensed by the Council and shall not Operate in
respect of any Private Hire Vehicle unless satisfied that both
the Private Hire Driver and Private Hire Vehicle have been
and remain so licensed.
16.
The Licensee shall take all necessary steps to
ensure that all Private Hire Vehicles and Private Hire Drivers
working on behalf of them within the Controlled District are
properly licensed by the Council and shall not Operate in
respect of any Private Hire Vehicle unless satisfied that both
the Private Hire Driver and Private Hire Vehicle have been
and remain so licensed.

Fit and Proper Person test
17.
The Licensee must ensure that they use appropriate
people to take bookings, handle personal information in
respect of bookings on behalf of the Licensee and as the
designated safeguarding lead. A Fit and Proper Person test,
similar to the one the Council uses to determine an operator’s
licence, shall be in place and used by the Licensee for all
individuals taking bookings, that handle personal information
in respect of bookings or who carry out the role of designated
safeguarding lead on behalf of the Licensee. This test shall
be detailed in a policy which the Licensee shall provide on
application. Any changes to this policy shall be forwarded to
the Council at least 7 working days prior to taking effect.
18.
The Licensee shall not employ or have any person
involved in taking bookings, handling booking information or
as designated safeguarding lead that does not meet their Fit
and Proper Person policy.
19.
Evidence of the checks carried out by the Licensee in
accordance with their Fit and Proper Person policy for any
individual taking bookings on behalf of the Licensee, that
handle information relating to bookings or act as designated
safeguarding lead shall be held at the Premises for 3 years

from the date of the checks. These checks shall include a
basic disclosure
Safeguarding Policy
20.
The Licensee shall have in place a Safeguarding
Policy which shall be provided to the satisfaction of the
Council and include the name and contact details of the
Safeguarding Lead acting on behalf of the Licensee. A copy
of this policy shall be provided on application and any
changes to this policy shall be forwarded to the Council at
least 7 working days prior to taking effect
Service to passengers

Page 146

21.
The Licensee shall so far as is reasonably
practicable provide a prompt, efficient and reliable service
and shall in particular do everything necessary to ensure that
Private Hire Vehicles attend punctually at the time and place
agreed with the Passengers and that the needs of the
passengers are met.
22.
The Licensee shall not permit any Private Hire
Vehicle to be used to fulfil bookings that they know or ought
to know does not comply with the conditions imposed under
its Private Hire Vehicle licence and in particular shall not
conduct business in respect of a Private Hire Vehicle unless
it is fitted with the approved signage.
Premises
23.
The Licensee shall ensure that any Premises to
which the public have access for booking or waiting is kept
clean, has sufficient seating and is adequately heated,
ventilated and lit.
24.
The possession or use of radio scanner equipment is
prohibited in the Premises from which the Licensee operates.

Bookings
25.
Private Hire Operators are not permitted to accept
telephone bookings made on behalf of a potential passenger
by a Private Hire Driver.
Information to be provided to the Council
26.
The Licensee shall notify the Council, in writing, of
any proposed change of name of the Licensee and shall
await approval in writing from the Council prior to using any
new name.

Page 147

27.
The Licensee shall ensure that the Council is notified
in writing by close of business on the following working day
full details of the happening of any of the following events in
respect of the Licensee, any individual, company , director or
secretary named on the application form or a currently
appointed Responsible Person:
27.1 receiving a simple or conditional caution, being
convicted of any criminal or motoring offence, or receiving
any out of court disposal including formal warnings,
community resolutions, restorative justice education and
awareness courses, community protection warnings and
notices or fixed penalty notices;
27.2 being bound over by any court;
27.3 being arrested or interviewed in connection with
investigations into allegations for any offence
27.4
any offence arising out of the use or keeping of any
motor vehicle;
27.5
is refused any type of licence by any other
regulatory authority or any such licence is suspended,
revoked or refused;
27.6
any material change in the circumstances of The
Licensee where a material change is one that would require
The Licensee to provide different information on application
to The Council than has been provided in connection with the
more recent application for an Operator’s Licence made by

The Licensee, including, by way of example–
27.6.1 any change in the address from which The Licensee
operates;
27.6.2 any change in the style or title of The Licensee or his
business or its trading status;
27.6.3 any irregularity that The Licensee believes may exist
in respect of the licensing of any Private Hire Vehicle or
Private Hire Driver in respect of which they Operate;
28
The Licensee shall forward a copy of the current
register of Private Hire Drivers and Private Hire Vehicles to
the Council on the first working day of each month.
29
The Licensee shall check any information provided
by the Council concerning suspended or revoked licences
within 24 hours of receipt.

Page 148

30
The Licensee shall inform the Council of any drivers
or vehicles which are removed from the Licensee’s Private
Hire Driver or Private Hire Vehicle register including the
reasons for removal and any relevant information to the
Council within 72 hours of the decision to remove the driver
or vehicle.
31
The Licensee shall notify the Council, in writing, of
the name and details of any individuals nominated as a
Responsible Person for managing the business on behalf of
the Operator at least 7 working days prior to their
commencement in that role.
32
The Licensee shall ensure that at the time of passing
a booking to a driver the following details are provided:
32.1
32.2
32.3
32.4
32.5
32.6

the name of the passenger;
the pick-up time and location;
any special requirement of the passenger;
any price agreed for the journey;
the destination specified by the passenger.
any needs of the passengers

33
The Licensee shall comply with requests for
information from the Council in respect of complaints,
conduct or offences relating to the Licensee, Private Hire
Vehicles and Private Hire Drivers licensed by the Council.
34
The Licensee shall establish a Customer Service and
Complaints policy and shall take all reasonable steps to
record and fully investigate any complaints, ensuring a record
is kept of the following information;

Page 149

34.1 The name, contact details of complainant and date
complaint received
34.2 The date, time and details/nature of the complaint
34.3 The name of the driver (and Badge number) or member
of staff, to which the complaint relates
34.4 Details of the investigation carried out
34.5 All records shall be retained for 12 months
34.6 The format of the complaints register shall be
maintained in a manner prescribed by the Council;
34.7 Details of when and how complaint forwarded to the
Council (if applicable)
34.8 Any action taken as a result of the complaint
35
The Customer Service and Complaints policy and
complaint records shall be made available on request to an
Authorised Officer or police.
36
Any records relating to complaints shall be kept in
hard copy or on computer. If kept in hard copy they must be
in a bound book with consecutively numbered pages.
37
The Licensee shall ensure that they notify any
complainant of their right to forward their complaint to the
Council.
38
If the Licensee receives a complaint concerning any
of the below matters the Operator must inform the Council in
writing upon within 72 hours of receiving the complaint,

including the name and contact details of the complainant,
the nature of the complaint, the name and badge number of a
driver, the vehicle details:
Sexual misconduct, sexual harassment or
inappropriate sexual attention;
Racist behaviour;
Violence;
Dishonesty;
Theft;
Breaches of equality;
A driver’s behaviour or conduct towards a vulnerable
passenger;
Report of poor and/or dangerous driving;
A driver being under the influence of alcohol and/or
any other drug (illegal or medicinal);
- A refusal of a passenger with a wheelchair or an assistance
dog.

Page 150

39
The Licensee shall ensure that customers can speak
to a person in the event of a complaint or problem with the
journey.
40
The Licensee shall forward any changes to its
Customer Service and Complaint Policy to the Council in
writing at least 7 working days prior to the change taking
effect.
41
The Licensee shall disclose any information they
consider could impact on a driver or vehicle proprietor’s
suitability to hold a licence to the Council, in respect of
complaints, conduct or offences within one working day of the
Licensee being in receipt of this information.
42
The Licensee shall have in place a Training Policy for
all people working on behalf of the Operator which includes
details of the training provided for all employees or those
working on behalf of the Licensee.
43

The Training policy and evidence of training shall be

made available to an Authorised Officer when requested, and
provided on application, including renewals. The Licensee
shall forward any changes to the Training Policy to the
Council at least 7 days prior to the change taking effect.
44
The Licensee shall not cause or allow to be caused
any nuisance or annoyance to the owners or occupiers of
nearby premises, by the conduct of the business to which this
Licence relates. This includes, but is not limited to multiple
vehicles being parked in residential areas, vehicle engines
being left running for long periods of time, vehicles leaving
and returning to premises at unsociable hours and vehicles
being maintained or serviced.

Page 151

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

Private hire driver conditions
Current condition:
9.
The Licensee shall proceed to the destination by
the most direct route, unless otherwise agreed with or
requested by the Passenger.
Private hire driver conditions

45
The use of a driver who holds a PCV licence and the
use of a public service vehicle (PSV) such as a minibus to
undertake a private hire vehicle booking should not be
permitted without the informed consent of the booker.
Amendment proposed - The requirement to take the most
direct route may be disadvantageous to the customer,
especially as a Sat Nav could indicate traffic conditions which
make another route more efficient
9.
The Licensee shall proceed to the destination by the
most expedient route, unless otherwise agreed with or
requested by the Passenger.
Amendment proposed – The Police no longer generally
accept lost property at Police stations.

Current condition:
11.
The Licensee shall immediately after the
termination of a hiring, or as soon as practicable thereafter,
carefully inspect the vehicle for any property that may have
been left therein.
Property found following such inspection shall forthwith be
deposited at any Police Station unless the Passenger has
made an alternative arrangement with the Operator. A
receipt should be obtained from the Police and The Council

11.
The Licensee shall immediately after the termination
of a hiring, or as soon as practicable thereafter, carefully
inspect the vehicle for any property that may have been left
therein.
Property found following such inspection shall be dealt with
according to the Operator policy for lost property. (For the
avoidance of doubt this condition does not apply to any
suspicious package, the existence of which must be
immediately notified to the Police).

n/a

90

90-91

should be informed by The Licensee of the action taken.
(For the avoidance of doubt this condition does not apply to
any suspicious package, the existence of which must be
immediately notified to the Police).
Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

Private hire driver condition
12.
The Licensee shall at all times when driving the
Licensed Vehicle:
i)
wear in such a position as to be plainly and
distinctly visible on the upper torso;
ii)

and display in the vehicle

Page 152

the drivers identification Badges provided by The Council.
The Licensee shall not lend the Identification Badges to
any other person or otherwise part with possession of them
nor shall s/he cause or permit any other person to use
them.

Proposed condition – amendment proposed as whilst driving
drivers may risk the lanyard being snagged, injury caused if
the airbag deploys and the customer on the back seat being
unable to see the badge in any event. Additionally, the driver
is required by this section to wear the badge and display the
other even when driving the vehicle for SDP purposes

n/a

91

n/a

91

12.
The Licensee shall whilst working for hire and
reward:
i)
wear the badge in such a position to be plainly and
distinctly visible on the upper torso at all times when outside
of the vehicle;
ii)
and display in the vehicle the second badge so as to
be distinctly visible and clearly
seen by any passengers in the vehicle.
12.1 When not engaged in hire and reward work, one badge
must always be carried by The Licensee and immediate
produced for inspection of request of an Authorised Officer or
Police Officer or any other person reasonably requiring it.

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

Private hire driver condition

12.2 The Licensee shall not lend the Identification Badges to
any other person or otherwise part with possession of them
nor shall s/he cause or permit any other person to use them.
Proposed condition – amendment required to correct
incorrect numbering only:

Current condition:
13.
The Driver’s Badges referred to in Condition 13
shall remain the property of the City Council and shall be
returned, within three working days, to the Council
Licensing Office by The Licensee forthwith upon the

13.
The Driver’s Badges referred to in Condition 12 shall
remain the property of the City Council and shall be returned,
within three working days, to the Council Licensing Office by
The Licensee forthwith upon the happening of any of the
following events-

happening of any of the following events-

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Licence
Conditions

13.1

the expiry of The Licence;

13.2

the revocation or the suspension of The Licence;

13.3
The Licensee being disqualified from driving.
Private hire driver condition:

13.1

the expiry of The Licence;

13.2

the revocation or the suspension of The Licence;

13.3

The Licensee being disqualified from driving.
n/a

n/a

Revised condition relating to licensee being arrested.

10

92

16.
The Licensee shall maintain a book kept for the
purpose a contemporaneous record which shall include at
least the following information –
16.1.
16.2.
16.3.
16.4.
16.5.

Page 153

Proposal to delete condition. Condition is outdated and
unnecessary; all information is held by the operator.

date;
name of Passenger;
time of pick up;
pick up point;
destination;

The record shall be made as soon as is safe and
practicable following receipt of the booking from the
Operator and in any event prior to any contact with the
Passenger. If upon arrival at eh appointed place the
Passenger is not present, the entry should be marked ‘no
show’. Any departure from the information recorded
according to 19.3 and/or 19.5 above should also be
recorded.

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Driver
Conditions

16.6. The Licensee shall retain the records kept pursuant
to condition 19 above for a period of not less than twelve
months from the date of the last entry in the book and shall
produce the records immediately upon the request of an
Authorised Officer or a Police Officer.
Private Hire drivers licence
Current condition
The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is notified in
writing by close of business on the following working day of

20.
The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is
notified in writing by the next working day of the happening
of any of the following events;

the happening of any of the following events;
21.1. The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional
caution or being convicted of any criminal offence;
21.2. The Licensee being bound over by any court;
21.3. The Licensee being arrested or interviewed in
connection with investigations into allegations of offences of
the following type –
21.3.1. Any offence involving an allegation of dishonesty,
indecency or violence;
21.3.2. Any offence involving an allegation of a failure to
comply with the Relevant Legislation;
21.3.3. Any offence arising out of the use or keeping of
any motor vehicle;
21.3.4. Any offence which on conviction may result in a
term of imprisonment;

Page 154

21.4. any material change in the circumstances of The
Licensee where a material change is one that would
require The Licensee to provide different information on
application to The Council than has been provided in
connection with the most recent application for a Private
Hire Vehicle Driver’s Licence made by The Licensee,
including, by way of example, a change of address, change
of name, change of employer or business, and diagnosis of
a medical condition.

20.1. The Licensee being arrested or interviewed in
connection with investigations for any offence;
20.2
The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional
caution, being convicted of any criminal or motoring offence,
or receiving any out of court disposal including formal
warnings, community resolutions, restorative justice
education and awareness courses, community protection
warnings and notices or fixed penalty notices;
20.3

The Licensee being bound over by any court;

20.4
any material change in the circumstances of The
Licensee where a material change is one that would require
The Licensee to provide different information on application
to The Council than has been provided in connection with the
most recent application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s
Licence made by The Licensee, including, by way of
example, a change of address, change of name, change of
employer or business, and diagnosis of a medical condition.
20.5
The imposition of any penalty points upon the DVLA
Licence held by The Licensee.

The imposition of any penalty points upon the DVLA
Licence held by The Licensee.
Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Vehicle
Conditions

Hackney Carriage vehicles

Condition revised relating to MOT testing

Licensed Vehicles shall be inspected (for both MOT and
safety /cosmetic testing as specified by The Council) at
least once a year at a place specified by The Council.
Where more than eight years has elapsed from the
Relevant Date such inspection shall occur every six

5. Licensed Vehicles shall on initial application be of such
standard and condition so as to have passed the vehicle
safety cosmetic test including an MOT as specified by the
Council. Vehicles shall be maintained to such standard and
condition whilst the vehicle remains licensed. s. Where more

n/a

93

than eight years has elapsed from the Relevant Date such
inspection shall occur every six months.

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Vehicle
Conditions

n/a

New condition relating to frequency of MOT testing

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Vehicle
Conditions

Hackney Carriage vehicles

Changed to:

8.1.2. there is displayed on the Licensed Vehicle a current
excise licence as required by law

8.1.2 the excise duty for the Licensed Vehicle is current

8.1.1. there is in force in relation to the user of the vehicle
as a Hackney Carriage a policy of insurance complying with
the requirements of part VI of the Road Traffic Act 1972 and
shall produce for inspection the original certificate of such
insurance immediately upon the request of an Authorised
Officer or Police Officer.(Please note that the condition
requires production of the original certificate. Photocopies
or faxed copies are not acceptable.)

Changed to

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Vehicle
Conditions

Hackney Carriage vehicle

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Vehicle
Conditions

Page 155

months.

n/a

93

n/a

93

n/a

93

Removed.

n/a

n/a

Hackney Carriage Condition

Proposed condition

27-28

94-95

Current condition

8.8.
no CCTV system is to be used within The Licensed
Vehicle unless all Information Commissioner’s Office
requirements are adhered to and;

6. On subsequent applications vehicles should be inspected
every twelve months as a placed specified by the Council.
This inspection will include the vehicle safety cosmetic test
including the MOT as set by the Council.

8.1.1. there is force a policy of insurance covering the use
of that vehicle as a private hire vehicle / Hackney carriage
complying with the relevant legislation, and the driver and
Proprietor of the vehicle shall produce for inspection proof
that such insurance is currently held immediately on request
of an Authorised Officer or Police Officer

The Licensed vehicle shall …
carry and maintain in good condition, a fire extinguisher that
accords with that specified in the current vehicle
specification such extinguisher to be kept in a readily
accessible position to facilitate its use if required;

8.8.

no video recording system is used within The

Licensed Vehicle unless the council’s written permission is
first obtained and where such permission is granted then8.8.1.

no audio recording must take place and

8.8.2. a sign must be affixed within The Licensed Vehicle
so as to be readily visible to Passengers informing them
that video recording is or may be taking place;

8.8.1.

8.8.2. a sign must be affixed within The Licensed Vehicle
so as to be readily visible to Passengers informing them that
video recording is or may be taking place;
8.9.
No dash camera system may be used within The
Licensed Vehicle unless all Information Commissioner’s
Office requirements are adhered to and;
8.9.1.

Page 156

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Vehicle
Conditions

Hackney Carriage conditions

no audio recording must take place

No audio recording must take place

8.9.2. The dash camera system must be outward facing
only.
Proposed condition – To reflect the fact that many vehicles
are not supplied with spare tyres

n/a

95

n/a

95

Current condition:
9.6.
have a spare wheel and tyre that should be
maintained in such a condition as to render it suitable for
lawful use on a road and have tools for the changing of
such a spare wheel and tyre;

9.6.
have a spare wheel and tyre which must be
maintained in such a condition as to render it suitable for
lawful use on a road and have tools for the changing of such
a spare wheel and tyre;
9.6.1. Where a vehicle was supplied by the manufacturer
with a limited mileage emergency use only tyre condition 9.6
does not apply. In this instance the emergency use must be
maintained in such a condition as to render it suitable for
lawful use on a road and have the tools for the changing of
such a spare wheel and tyre.

Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Vehicle
Conditions

Hackney Carriage conditions
n/a

9.6.2. Where a vehicle was supplied by the manufacturer
with an emergency tyre inflation kit then condition 9.6 does
not apply. In this instance an emergency tyre inflation kit
must be kept in the vehicle at all times in a usable condition.
New condition:
9.8.
Display signage that is prominently on view to
prospective passengers that states contactless card
payments are accepted.

9.8.1. Have an electronic payment facility to accept
debit/credit card and contactless payments.
9.8.2. The electronic payment device must be kept in the
vehicle, be fully operational and available for immediate use
at all times the vehicle is being used for public hire, or hire
and reward (including whilst standing or plying for hire).
Hackney
Carriage and
Private Hire
Vehicle
Conditions

Hackney Carriage conditions
The Licensee shall ensure that the Council is notified in
writing by close of business on the following working day of
the happening of any of the following events
11.1. The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional
caution or being convicted of any criminal offence;
11.2. The Licensee being bound over by any court;

Page 157

11.3. The Licensee being arrested or interviewed in
connection with investigations into allegations of offences of
the following type11.3.1. any offence involving an allegation of dishonesty,
indecency or violence;
11.3.2. any offence involving an allegation of a failure to
comply with the Relevant Legislation;
11.3.3. any offence arising out of the use or keeping of any
motor vehicle;
11.3.4. any offence which on conviction can result in a term
of imprisonment

Revised condition relating to the licensee being arrested and
revised condition to ensure the Council is notified about
incidents involving the vehicle/driver which does not result in
damage. For example, if a passenger was injured but no
damage to the vehicle occurred.
Changes of circumstances
12.
The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is
notified in writing by the next working day of the happening
of any of the following events;
12.1 The Licensee shall ensure that The Council is notified in
writing by the next working day of the happening of any of
the following events;
12.2 The Licensee being arrested or interviewed in
connection with investigations for any offence;
12.3 The Licensee receiving a simple or conditional caution,
being convicted of any criminal or motoring offence, or
receiving any out of court disposal including formal warnings,
community resolutions, restorative justice education and
awareness courses, community protection warnings and
notices or fixed penalty notices;
12.4 The Licensee being bound over by any court;
12.5 any material change in the circumstances of The
Licensee where a material change is one that would require
The Licensee to provide different information on application

10

96-97

to The Council than has been provided in connection with the
most recent application for a Private Hire Vehicle Driver’s
Licence made by The Licensee, including, by way of
example, a change of address, change of name, change of
employer or business, and diagnosis of a medical condition.
12.6 The imposition of any penalty points upon the DVLA
Licence held by The Licensee.
12.7
any accident or incident resulting in damage to the
Licensed Vehicle, or by the use of that Licensed Vehicle any
damage caused to another vehicle, or of any injury caused to
any person by the use of the Licensed Vehicle

Page 158

12.8
any alteration to the vehicle (including mechanical or
bodywork alterations). For the avoidance of doubt, unless it is
with the prior written consent of the Council, no alteration
may be made to the vehicle which would result in a
contravention of any of the conditions attaching to The
Licence. Where alterations are made then the Council shall
be entitled to require the vehicle to undergo a further
inspection;
12.9

The sale or acquisition of any Licensed Vehicle.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 159

Licensing Team
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Policy Review

Consultation Survey
Responses, Results and Analysis

Page 237

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

Contents
1

Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 4
1.1

Taxi Policy Review background .......................................................................................... 4

1.2

Consultation process .......................................................................................................... 4

1.3

Outreach Sessions.............................................................................................................. 5

1.4

Email Responses ................................................................................................................ 5

1.5

Consultation Survey ............................................................................................................ 5

1.6

Change requests, suggestions, and questions ................................................................... 5

1.7

Scope of report ................................................................................................................... 6

1.8

Summary of consultation results ......................................................................................... 6

2

Outreach sessions .................................................................................................................... 7

3

Email responses ....................................................................................................................... 8

4

Consultation survey ................................................................................................................ 10
4.1

Response rate .................................................................................................................. 10

4.2

Respondent characteristics ............................................................................................... 10

4.2.1

The capacity of respondents: ..................................................................................... 10

4.2.2

Respondent equality characteristics ........................................................................... 11

4.2.3

How do you normally travel for most of your journeys in Bristol? ............................... 20

4.3

Summary of survey responses ......................................................................................... 21

4.4 Question 3 - To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to
introduce mandatory card payment systems in hackney carriage vehicles? .............................. 21
4.4.1

Overview .................................................................................................................... 21

4.4.2

Breakdown ................................................................................................................. 22

4.5 Question 4 - Please indicate to what extent you agree or disagree with the following
proposal: To amend Bristol City Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles
Inspection Standards to allow tints to the rear side vehicle windows, provided they are
supplied as standard by the original vehicle manufacturer and comply with current vehicle
Construction and Use Regulations ............................................................................................. 27
4.5.1

Overview .................................................................................................................... 27

4.5.2

Breakdown ................................................................................................................. 28

4.6 Question 5 - To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal:
To require all private hire and hackney carriage drivers licence applicants and some
driver, vehicle or operator licence holders to pass a mandatory test of their English
language skills in order to receive or keep their licence ............................................................. 33
4.6.1

Overview .................................................................................................................... 33

Page 2 of 80

Page 238

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
4.6.2 Breakdown ................................................................................................................. 34
4.7 Question 6. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal:
To amend the existing guidelines relating to the relevance of criminal behaviour to
obtaining or holding any licence. ................................................................................................ 39
4.7.1

Overview .................................................................................................................... 39

4.7.2

Breakdown ................................................................................................................. 40

4.8 Question 7. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal:
To introduce a Private Hire Operator Policy and amendments to the private hire operator
conditions as outlined above. ..................................................................................................... 44
4.8.1

Overview .................................................................................................................... 44

4.8.2

Breakdown ................................................................................................................. 45

4.9 Question 8. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal:
To amend the Fit and Proper Person Policy to include new requirements and conditions
for the DBS update service and expired licences as outlined above. ......................................... 49
4.9.1

Overview .................................................................................................................... 49

4.9.2

Breakdown ................................................................................................................. 50

4.10
Question 9. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal:
To amend the existing Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Vehicle policy to require all
proprietors to obtain a basic disclosure ...................................................................................... 54
4.10.1

Overview ................................................................................................................. 54

4.10.2

Breakdown .............................................................................................................. 55

4.11
Question 10. If you would like to tell us why you have chosen the answers above,
please do so using the text box below: ....................................................................................... 58
4.11.1

Themes of comments.............................................................................................. 58

5

How will this report be used? .................................................................................................. 62

6

Appendix 1 - Accessibility questions ....................................................................................... 63

7

Appendix 2 – All survey comments ......................................................................................... 65

8

Appendix 3 – Outreach session minutes................................................................................. 78

9

Appendix 4 – Email responses ............................................................................................... 80

End of document ............................................................................................................................ 80

Page 3 of 80

Page 239

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

1

Introduction

1.1

Taxi Policy Review background

The Council has adopted Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.
The Council is allowed to develop and implement a policy in respect of exercising its functions
under the Act.
Over recent years it has been recognised by the government that the existing regulatory
framework for Hackney carriage and private hire licensing was not fit for purpose. Events in
Rotherham, Rochdale and Oxford in particular demonstrated robust changes were needed with
regard to safeguarding. In recognition of this the Task and Finish Group (TFG) on Taxi and
Private Hire Vehicle Licensing was established in 2017 whose aim was to produce
recommendations both legislative and non-legislative to address identified and evidence issues in
respect of Hackney carriage and private hire licensing.
In February 2019 the government responded to the TFG report and in July 2020 the Secretary of
State for Transport published the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards under powers
contained within section 177(1) of the Policing and Crime Act 2017. The Department for Transport
(DfT) standards are statutory guidance on exercising Hackney carriage and private hire licensing
functions. The Council must have regard to the standards and the DfT expects the
recommendations in the standards to be implemented unless there is a compelling local reason
not to.
In addition requests were received from the trade to review the policy with respect to permitting
tinted windows on the rear passenger windows of private hire vehicles and the introduction of
mandatory card reader and/ other instantaneous Payment Facilities in Hackney carriages.
In January 2018 members of the Council’s Public Safety and Protection committee established a
working group consisting of elected members and officers to consider the recent national reviews
of legislation and determine if any amendments to Council’s policies were required. The working
group also considered the statutory standards and reviewed the Council’s policies relating to the
Hackney carriage and private hire trade that were not covered by the statutory standards, including
requests from the trade
The working group’s proposals were presented to the members of the Public Safety and Protection
committee on 20 January 2021. Approval was granted for a public consultation on the proposed
changes which took place between 16 February 2021 and 21 March 2021.

1.2

Consultation process

The Council is undertaking a review of the policy and as part of this review the Council engaged
with the public and stakeholders in a variety of ways:

inviting comments from stakeholders

three focus groups where all members of the trade were invited to ask questions and provide
comments, and additional time at a Taxi Forum meeting
Page 4 of 80

Page 240

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

a consultation seeking views on draft policy took place between 16 February 2021 and 21
March 2021.

1.2.1 Outreach Sessions
Three outreach sessions took place over zoom on the 25 February 2021, 2 March 2021 and
10 March 2021. These were attended by a total of 43 people, the Licensing and Trading
Standards Team Manager, and a Senior Licensing Officer. The full notes for these sessions
can be found in Appendix 3 – Outreach session minutes
, and a summary can be found in the Outreach sessions section.

1.2.2 Email Responses
We received 10 additional responses via email, including four from members of the trade, one from
a member of the public, two from the Police, one from Fleet Services, one from an equalities
group, and one from the Bristol city Council Neighbourhood Enforcement Team.
These mostly included suggestions, change requests and questions. In general, these responses
were supportive of the changes. Any suggestions, change requests, or questions have been
included on the Change Log.

1.2.3 Consultation Survey
The consultation survey was open between 16 February 2021 and 21 March 2021, and sought
responses from the public to questions on specific areas of the policy. A total of 596 responses
were received, made up of 368 full responses and 228 incomplete or partial responses. We
received no complete responses to the survey after the 21 March 2021.
The consultation survey was available online, and paper copies of the questions and alternative
accessible formats were available on request. The questionnaire was publicised through media,
social media and communications with the public, members of the trade and relevant responsible
authorities, equalities groups, and stakeholders.

1.3

Change requests, suggestions, and questions

There were multiple suggestions or changes requested to the policy by a range of stakeholders.
There were also multiple questions submitted both via email and as survey comments. A full list of
all changes, question, and suggestions can be found in the below Change Log:

Change Log Excel.xlsx

Page 5 of 80

Page 241

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

1.4

Scope of report

This report will lay out the results of the information gained through the taxi consultation, which
took place in spring 2021. It covers the responses from outreach sessions and email submissions,
then the survey results including comments.

1.5

Summary of consultation results

Overall, there was an agreement with the proposed policy, with only tinted windows having a
significantly lower agreement rate.
In the survey there was a substantial difference between the views of the trade and the views of
members of the public. There was also a difference between Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black
British and Asian/Asian British members of the trade.

Page 6 of 80

Page 242

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

2

Outreach sessions

At the outreach sessions attendees were given the opportunities to ask questions about the
proposed policy changes.
This table lists main themes of attendees’ questions and the answers to the questions:
Grouped questions
Answers
When will the policy be implemented? When will We are currently consulting. The policy will need
a specific part be implemented?
to be adopted by the committee after the
consultation. We are unable to specify a date.
Will these changes be adopted in other areas,
Yes. All Local Authorities are required to
i.e. WECA/ South Gloucester
implement the National Standards. We are not
sure when they will do so.
Can Hackney Carriages have tints in the same
This is something we can look into
way as Private hire Vehicles?
Is the safeguarding training that is completed for No, the safeguarding training being
school transport sufficient for this policy?
implemented covers all forms of vulnerability
and safeguarding not just CSE
What will the cost of the safeguarding be?
The training has not yet been procured, and it is
likely to be incorporated into the licensing fees.
Certificates of Good Character - most countries It is only a small number of countries that don’t
do not offer them?
offer a Certificate of Good Character
Where do they come from?
They come from the embassy, not from local
authorities
Can we call them ‘Police checks’?
Their legal name is Certificate of Good
Character, so that is what we have to call them
National Std’s 5.14 should not be given the
A: As we find our feet with the new policy likely
benefit of the doubt- what will our approach be? to be a combination of referral to committee and
delegation to Licensing Manager/Team Leader.
For low level offending say shoplifting when
very young, then perhaps a more lenient
approach can be taken
What about card reader fees?
Card readers have been requested by the trade,
a balance between improved accessibility by
customers by persons travelling without cash
and small cost for payment.
As drafted they must be in a fixed location in
view of the customer. We can review this
providing there is suitable signage advising card
payment can be taken – proposal amended.

Must they be in a fixed location?

What about taking money upfront?

Who is going to police the policy?
Do you have a Fit & Proper policy that can be
used by Operators?
Are we going to save more taxis? Numbers are
reducing
Page 7 of 80

Either don’t take payment upfront or give refund
for the balance. If travelling outside of Bristol
District then no reason why fee can’t be agreed
with customer
Ongoing process in the normal way it is now
Using the Fit & Proper policy form our policy
would be a good starting point for operators
This shift as a result of changes in consumer
habits and demand continues and that trend is

Page 243

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
likely to continue. HC’s play a vital role as part
of the transport infrastructure but we are unable
to say what that will ultimately look like
Can there be MOT’s like Sandy Park in South
Cost of Certificate of Conformity actually more
Glos?
expensive in S Glos if you combine costs. It is
not just an MOT. No proposal to change
Can there be a change to fares for Private hire
Private Hire fares are set by the Operator. LA
Vehicles?
has no control only Hackney Carriage fares
The requirement relating reporting of complaints Yes we can certainly take that away and amend
needs to be a condition to ensure there is no
conflict with GDPR/data protection.
SARI said it would be useful if we can build in
This has been added to the Change Log
conflict management into the training
When will drivers become employed as a result
of the Uber case?
These comments were outside of the scope of
the consultation
The sector needs more financial help due to
Covid

Email responses

3

We received a total of 10 responses by email. Some of these responses contain personal
information, and are summarised in brief here. The full responses are available to members of the
committee in Appendix 4 – Email responses.

Number
1

Who from
PHO

2

Individual taxi driver

3

PHO

4

PHO

5
6

Individual member of the
public
Fleet Services

7

PC Quinton

8

PC Quinton

9

Individual member of the
public

Page 8 of 80

Summary
Highlights concerns regarding hiring out vehicles
and having to deal with payment systems, and
asked for leniency with respect to tints
Disagreed with safeguarding training as found a
previous course disturbing. Mostly agreed with the
other proposals
Asked a number of questions regarding the new
policy
Gave feedback on specific policy points with
suggested rewording
Gave some information about a negative experience
with a taxi driver they had a few years ago.
Asked for further clarification on what they would
need to check at inspection, and to update some
wording to bring it up to date.
Official police response to consultation, with
suggested wording changes
Additional comments on possible updates to
wording
Comments around safeguarding of adult women
and asking for domestic violence offences to be
included in the DBS checks

Page 244

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
10
BCC Neighbourhood
Enforcement Team Officers

Page 9 of 80

Called for increased restrictions, checks and tests to
be included in the policy.

Page 245

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4

Consultation survey

4.1

Response rate

The total number of responses was 596, of these 368 responded to all the questions, and 228
responded to only some of the questions. In the analysis we have only used the full responses, to
limit any repeated responses, and removed the large number of responses who did not answer
any of the questions.
The survey response data was downloaded on the 31 March 2021.

4.2

Respondent characteristics

4.2.1 The capacity of respondents:
Responders were asked what capacity they were responding in. There was a wide range, with
many responding as more than one role. Many hackney carriage drivers are also private hire
drivers, and/or vehicle licence holders. These were grouped together to make the analysis and
display of results easier to understand.
The majority of the respondents who completed the survey were members of the public (56%)
followed by 38% members of the trade.
Types of respondents
1%
1%

1%

1%

0%
0%
Public
Trade member
Other representative org
No answer

24%
35%

Residents/ community
group
Cllr
Other

Page 10 of 80

Page 246

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
This table shows the number of respondents in each capacity:
Type of person
Number of responses
Public
206
Trade member
141
Other representative org
6
No answer
5
Residents/ community group
4
Cllr
4
Local trader/business
2

This table shows number of respondents who identified into each type of capacity, and whether
they submitted a full or partial response to the survey. Respondents were able to select more than
one option, so the number of responses to this question is higher than the total number of
respondents.
Values
Private hire driver
Hackney carriage driver
Private hire licence holder
Hackney carriage licence holder
Private hire operator
Member of the public
Councillor
Local trader/business
Chambers of Commerce
Organisations with wider transport interest
Women’s groups
Night time economy groups
Residents groups
Other community groups
Other equalities group
Other (please specify):

Full Partial
79
36
74
23
33
7
28
7
14
4
215
18
4
2
1
1
1
1
2
2
3
10
4

Due to the low numbers of respondents who were not members of the public or taxi trade, we are
unable to draw reliable conclusions about the opinions of those groups as whole; however they will
be included in the graphs below.

4.2.2 Respondent equality characteristics
A large proportion (60%) of members of the trade identified as Asian/ Asian British or Black/
African/ Caribbean/ Black British, with 19% respondents saying they were members of the trade.
The respondents who said they were members of the public were mostly white British (76%).
Page 11 of 80

Page 247

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
We received less than 5 respondents who said they were pregnant or had been recently, those
who said they were an asylum seeker or refugee, and those who had undergone part of the
gender reassignment process. This means we are unable to draw any conclusions about the
opinions of those groups as a whole from those responses.
The below graphs and tables show the responses to the demographic questions of the
consultation survey.
4.2.2.1

Age
Age of respondents

100
89

90
80

73

71
70

61
60
50
40
30
30

24

20
10

8
3

7

2

0
18-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75-84

85 +

18-24 or 85+ are considered to be large enough to be representative groups.
Age group
18-24
25-34
35-44
45-54
55-64
65-74
75-84
85 +
Prefer not to say
No answer

Page 12 of 80

Number of
% responses to
responses to survey question
3
1%
30
8%
71
19%
89
24%
73
20%
61
17%
24
7%
2
1%
8
2%
7
2%

Page 248

Prefer not No answer
to say

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
4.2.2.2
Disability
Do you consider yourself to be a disabled person?
350
308
300
250
200
150
100
50

39
8

13

Prefer not to say

No answer

0
Yes

Do you consider yourself
to be a disabled person?
Yes
No
Prefer not to say
No answer

Page 13 of 80

No

Number of
% responses
responses to survey to question
39
11%
308
84%
8
2%
13
4%

Page 249

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
4.2.2.3
Sex
What is your sex?
300

250

247

200

150
94

100

50
14

10

Prefer not say

No answer

3
0
Male

Female

Other

There is a much larger response from males than females. The taxi-trade is highly maledominated.
Sex
Female
Male
Other
Prefer not say
No answer

Number of
% responses to
responses to survey question
94
26%
247
67%
3
1%
14
4%
10
3%

Looking at the intersection between sex and capacity, almost all members of the trade identified as
male.

Page 14 of 80

Page 250

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Sex intersected with capacity
Female

88%

Male

6% 1%
2%2%
0%

45%

51%

Other 0%

100%

Prefer not say

0%

64%

No answer

36%

40%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

20%

0% 10% 0%

50%

60%

70%

Public

Trade member

Local trader/business

Other representative org

Residents/ community group

No answer

4.2.2.4

0%
1%
1%
2%
1%

0%

30%
80%

90%

100%

Cllr

Gender reassignment
Have you gone through any part of a gender reassignment process or
do you intend to?

350

321

300
250
200
150
100
50

31
15

1
0
Yes

No

Prefer not to say

No answer

Due to only one respondent saying they have or plan to go through gender reassignment, we are
unable to draw any reliable conclusions about this groups of people.

Page 15 of 80

Page 251

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
4.2.2.5
Ethnicity
What is your ethnic group?
200

189

180
160
140
120
100
80
58

60

35

40

32

22

20

9

3

11

9

0
Asian /
Asian
British

Black
Mixed /
/African / Multi ethnic
Caribbean / group
Black
British

White
British

White Irish White Other

Other

Prefer not No answer
to say

The majority of respondents were White British (51%), with the next largest group being Asian or
Asian British respondents.
Ethnicity
Asian / Asian British
Black /African / Caribbean / Black British
Mixed / Multi ethnic group
White British
White Irish
White Other
Other
Prefer not to say
No answer

Number of responses % responses to
to survey
question
58
16%
35
10%
3
1%
189
51%
9
2%
22
6%
9
2%
32
9%
11
3%

When looking at the intersection between the ethnicity of the respondents and the capacity they
are answering in the majority of white respondents are members of the public, and Asian/ Asian
British and Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents are mostly members of the trade.

Page 16 of 80

Page 252

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Ethnicity insected with capacity
Asian / Asian British

2 55

Black /African / Caribbean / Black British

3

Mixed / Multi ethnic group

3

White British
White Irish
White Other
Other
Prefer not to say
No answer

4.2.2.6

31

1

157

21

7

1

17

5

3

5

4 4 21
1

1

12

19

2
0%

Public
Cllr
No answer

1

1

4
10%

20%

1
30%

40%

50%

Trade member
Other representative org

1

60%

3

70%

80%

90% 100%

Local trader/business
Residents/ community group

Sexual orientation
What is your sexual orientation?

300
244

250

200

150

100
73
50
17

8

18
4

4

0
Bisexual

Gay Man

Gay Woman / Heterosexual /
Lesbian
Straight

Other

Prefer not to
say

No answer

There was only a small number of responses from lesbian, gay or bisexual respondents, so we
unable to draw conclusive views about those groups
Page 17 of 80

Page 253

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Sexual orientation
Number of responses % responses to question
to survey
Bisexual
17
5%
Gay Man
8
2%
Gay Woman / Lesbian
4
1%
Heterosexual / Straight
244
66%
Other
4
1%
Prefer not to say
73
20%
No answer
18
5%

4.2.2.7

Religion
What is your religion/faith?

120

113

100

92
86

80

60
44
40

20

13
6

4

3

7

0
Buddhist

Christian

Hindu

Islam

No Religion Prefer not
to say

Sikh

Other

No answer

The only groups we can draw reliable conclusions about are Christians, Muslims, and those with
no religion.
Religion
Buddhist
Christian
Hindu
Islam
Sikh
No Religion
Prefer not to say
Other
No answer

Page 18 of 80

Number of responses % responses to
to survey
question
6
2%
92
25%
3
1%
86
23%
4
1%
113
31%
44
12%
7
2%
13
4%

Page 254

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
4.2.2.8
Pregnancy
Are you pregnant or have you given birth in the last 26 weeks?
350

327

300
250
200
150
100
50
19

19

No answer

Prefer not to say

3
0
Yes

No

Only 3 respondents said they had been pregnant, and one of those respondents was male and
had not gone through gender reassignment process, which implies that one of those questions
was answered in error. This group is too small to draw reliable conclusions from.

An important note on graphs
Currently all the graphs show all the groups and their results unless otherwise stated. In some
cases, for example age or religion, this will include some groups with a very small number of
respondents, which we cannot use to draw reliable conclusions about that whole group.
For more information about the number of respondents in each demographic group, please see
Error! Reference source not found..

4.2.2.9
BS1
15

Location
BS2
BS3
14
27

BS4
27

BS5
60

BS6
12

BS7
25

BS8
17

BS9
30

BS10
14

BS11
6

BS13
BS14
BS15
BS16
BS32
BS34
BS37
BS41
Other No answer
4
7
6
31
2
1
1
1
5
63
The majority of respondents who answered this question were from BS5, followed by BS16 and
BS9.
Page 19 of 80

Page 255

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.2.3 How do you normally travel for most of your journeys in Bristol?
Respondents were asked how they normally travel for journeys in Bristol.
How do you normally travel for most of your journeys in Bristol?
40%
36%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%

17%
12%

11%

11%

10%

8%

5%

3%

3%
0%

0%
Private Hire Hackney
Vehicles
Carriage
Vehicles

Car

Bus /
metrobus

Cycle

Walk

Other

Prefer not No answer
to say

Looking at the question about how respondents normally travel, 23% travel by private hire vehicle
or hackney carriage. However if we look at the difference in responses between members of the
trade and members of the public then we can see only 8% of the members of the public use
private hire or hackney carriage vehicles. Whereas 44% of members of the trade who responded
said they used these vehicles.
How do you normally travel for most of your journeys in Bristol?
Members of the trade and members of the public compared

Member of the trade

21%

Public

7% 1%

0%
Private Hire Vehicles
Bus / metrobus
Other

Page 20 of 80

10%

23%

43%

32%

20%

18%

30%

40%

50%

Hackney Carriage Vehicles
Cycle
Prefer not to say

Page 256

1%
1%4%1%
1%4%

12%

60%

25%

70%

80%

Car
Walk
No answer

5%0%
0%

90%

100%

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.3

Summary of survey responses

In general, there was a high level of agreement with the changes in the policy, except for Question
4 on the subject of allowing tints. There was often a big difference between the levels of
agreement between the public and members of the trade. In most cases the public were more
likely to agree or strongly agree with the proposal, except in the case of tints, where the public
were much more likely to disagree.
There was also a big difference in answers by ethnicity. The majority of members of the trade
identified themselves as Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British or Asian/ Asian British, and there
was often a big difference in the answers between those groups.
Due to limited number of respondents saying they were pregnant, had or were planning to go
through a gender reassignment process, or were asylum seekers or refugees, we are unable to
draw any conclusions regarding this.
Below there is analysis of each of the questions, an overview with any relevant comments and a
break down by each characteristic. A full list of comments are available to the committee in
Appendix 2 – All survey comments.

4.4 Question 3 - To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal
to introduce mandatory card payment systems in hackney carriage vehicles?
4.4.1 Overview
Q3. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to
introduce mandatory card payment systems in hackney carriage
vehicles?
80%

75%

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

13%

11%

10%

1%

0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Strongly
disagree/Disagree

No answer

The majority of respondents (75%) agreed with introducing a mandatory card payment system into
Hackney Carriages.
Summary of breakdown:

Page 21 of 80

Page 257

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

Although 59% of the trade agreed with the statement, 24% disagreed with it, and they were
less likely to agree than the general public (86% agreed, 5% disagreed)

35-54 year old respondents were more likely to disagree with the proposal. Two thirds of
respondents in these age groups are members of the trade

Females much more likely to agree with this proposal. Only 6 female respondents were
members of the trade.

Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents are more likely to agree than disagree,
49% and 34% respectively, but do not have a majority agreeing. All bar three Black/ African/
Caribbean/ Black British respondents were members of the trade

4.4.1.1
Summary of relevant comments
There were multiple comments saying that taxis should still accept cash – not have mandatory
card payments. This suggests there was some confusion around what a mandatory card machine
would mean. This also suggests that the ability to accept cash was important for members of the
trade and the public.
There were multiple comments, mostly from members of the public, stating that they were
supportive of card payments, or that the use of apps like Uber show that the ease of payment that
comes without needing cash was positive.

4.4.2 Breakdown
Q3 responses broken down by capacity of respondent
Public

86%

Member of the Trade

9%

59%

Residents/ community group

17%
75%

Other representative org

0%

83%

5%0%

24%

0%

25%

0%

0%

17%

Local trader/business

100%

0%

Cllr

100%

0%

No answer
0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

0%

20%

10%

20%

30%

60%
40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Although each group agreed by over 50% (except for the 5 people who gave no capacity), drivers
were less likely than the members of the public to agree with the question.

Page 22 of 80

Page 258

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q3 responses broken down by age of respondent
18 - 24

100%

25 - 34

0%

90%

35 - 44

7% 3%
0%

68%

45 - 54

14%

18%

0%

11%

19%

0%

70%

55 - 64

82%

65 - 74

83%

75 - 84

83%

85 +

8%
12%
4%

50%

Prefer not to say

38%

17%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

17%
20%

5%0%

13% 0%

50%

25%

No answer

10% 0%

0%
38%

0%

0%

67%

30%

40%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

60%

70%

80%

90%

Strongl disagree/Disagree

100%

No answer

This graph breaks down the ages of the respondents. Those aged between 35-54, the largest
group of respondents, were more likely to disagree with card readers. Two thirds of respondents in
that age range are members of the trade.

55 - 64

45 - 54

35 - 44

Q3 responses broken down by the age and whether respondents were a
member of the public of member of the trade
Public

100%

Trade member

54%

0%
20%

Public

26%

79%

Trade member

10%

65%

Public

13%

10%

22%

89%

Trade member

46%
0%

10%

20%

Strongly agree/ Agree

7% 4%
15%

30%

40%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

38%
60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Strongl disagree/Disagree

It can be seen that members of the public are much more likely to agree with the proposals than
members of the trade, irrelevant of age.
Page 23 of 80

Page 259

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q3 responses broken downby whether the respondent considers
themselves disabled

Yes

87%

No

5%

75%

Prefer not to say

12%

63%

No answer

13%

38%

0%

10%

Strongly agree/Agree

20%

15%

30%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

60%

13% 0%

25%

15%

50%

8% 0%

0%

31%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

There were 39 responses from respondents who identified as disabled, and 87% of them agreed
with the proposal. Only three disagreed with the proposal. There were no members of the trade
who identified as disabled.
Q3 responses broken down by the sex of the respondents
Female

87%

Male

7%

74%

Other

11%

5%0%

15%

100%

Prefer not say

29%

No answer
0%

10%

Strongly agree/Agree

0%

36%

40%
20%

30%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

0%

36%

20%

0%

50%

60%

0%

40%
70%

80%

Strongly disagree/Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Females were more likely to agree with the proposed changes than males. This is most likely due
to a larger population of male members of the trade than female members of the trade. Of the six
female members of the trade, only one disagreed with the proposal.

Page 24 of 80

Page 260

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q3 responses broken down by the ethnicity of the respondent
Asian / Asian British

69%

Black /African / Caribbean / Black British

10%

49%

Mixed / Multi ethnic group

17%
67%

White British

0%

34%

0%

33%

0%

85%

White Irish

10% 6%
0%
100%

White Other

0%

82%

Other

67%

Prefer not to say

66%

No answer

18%
0%

Strongly agree/ Agree

21%

10%

22%
16%

18%
20%

27%

30%

Neither agree nor disagree

9%

40%

50%

9%0%
11%0%

19%

0%

36%
60%

70%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

80%

90% 100%

No answer

All ethnic groups have a majority agreeing with the proposal, except for Black/ African/ Caribbean/
Black British respondents.
Out of 35 Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents 31 are members of the trade, and
therefore are more likely to disagree with the proposal. However, when looking at Asian/ Asian
British respondents, 95% of which are members of the trade, there is a majority of 69% agreeing
with the proposal.

Page 25 of 80

Page 261

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q3 responses broken down by the religion of the respondent
Buddhist

100%

Christian

0%

75%

Hindu

14%

67%

Muslim/Islam

11% 0%

33%

60%

13%

Sikh

0%

27%

0%

100%

No Religion

0%

89%

Other

7% 4%
0%

100%

Prefer not to say

0%

68%

No answer

14%

31%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

23%
30%

18%

15%

40%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

60%

0%

31%
70%

80%

90%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

100%

No answer

Muslim respondents are less likely to agree with the proposal than other religions. 58% of
members of the trade identified as Muslim, which suggests the lower agreement rate for Muslims
is related to being in the trade, rather than the impact of this proposal on a specific religion.

Q3 responses broken down by the sexual orientation of the respondent
Bisexual

71%

Gay Man

0%

29%

88%

Gay Woman / Lesbian

0%
13% 0%

100%

Heterosexual / Straight

0%

79%

No answer

9%

50%

11%

Other

17%

75%

Prefer not to say
0%

10%

20%

30%

22%
0%

64%

25%

22%
40%

50%

60%

70%

Strongly agree/ Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

No answer - No answer

11% 0%

80%

0%
14% 0%

90%

100%

Given the low numbers of those responding as lesbian, gay or bisexual, it is not possible to draw
reliable conclusions about those groups from this data.
Page 26 of 80

Page 262

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.5 Question 4 - Please indicate to what extent you agree or disagree with
the following proposal: To amend Bristol City Council’s Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire Vehicles Inspection Standards to allow tints to the rear side
vehicle windows, provided they are supplied as standard by the original
vehicle manufacturer and comply with current vehicle Construction and Use
Regulations
4.5.1 Overview
Q4. Please indicate to what extent you agree or disagree with the
following proposal: To amend Bristol City Council’s Hackney
Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles Inspection Standards to allow tints
to the rear side vehicle windows, provided they are suppli
60%
51%
50%
40%
27%

30%

21%
20%
10%
1%
0%
Strongly agree/Agree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Strongly disagree/
Disagree

No answer

The majority of respondents (51%) of respondents agreed or strongly agreed with the proposal to
allow tints. There was a large group (27%) who neither agreed nor disagreed.
Summary of breakdown:

Public only have 40% agreement, whereas the trade have 70% agreement

Females only agreed 37%, and were split 3 ways – agree/ disagree/ neither agree nor
disagree

There is a split large between Asian/ Asian British responses and Black/ African/ Caribbean/
Black British responses, that is not linked to whether they are in the trade

Disabled people agreed by 41%, and disagreed by 31%
4.5.1.1
Summary of relevant comments
As with the question responses, there was a big split between comments made by members of the
trade and those made by non-members of the trade. The comments made by members of the
trade were, in general supportive of the change. There was a difference in opinion over whether
tints should have to be put in place by the manufacturer or whether to allow film tints.

Page 27 of 80

Page 263

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Conversely, there were many comments that were against tints from members of the public, a
Councillor and one trade member. They argued against tints for the reasons of public safety,
especially with respect to females. One commenter also mentioned the issues that partially sighted
passengers may have if they are unable to see out of the windows.

4.5.2 Breakdown
Q4 responses broken down by the capacity of respondent
Trade member

70%

Public

16%

40%

35%

Residents/ community group

75%

Other representative org

17%

0%

50%

Local trader/business

17%

15% 0%
24%

0%

25%

0%

17%

100%

Cllr

25%

No answer 0%

20%

0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

0%

0%
75%

20%
20%

30%

0%
60%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

There is a wide gap between the members of the trade and the members of the public. The
members of the trade were 70% supportive, with only 15% disagreeing. Conversely, of the public
only 40% agreed, and 24% disagreed. There is a large portion of responses from members of the
public, 35%, who neither agreed nor disagreed. Additionally, three out of four Councillors
disagreed with the proposals, one agreed.

Page 28 of 80

Page 264

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q4 responses broken down by the age of the respondents
18 - 24

33%

0%

25 - 34

67%

50%

35 - 44

13%

37%

61%

45 - 54

20%

Prefer not to say

0%

43%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

30%

0%

13%

40%

0%

50%

0%

20%

0%

33%

63%

No answer

0%
26%

21%

50%

0%

38%

46%

85 +

0%

18%

27%
54%

75 - 84

21%

25%

34%

65 - 74

0%

18%

57%

55 - 64

0%

25%

0%

57%
50%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

60%

70%

80%

Neither agree nor disagree

90%

100%

No answer

There is large variation between the different ages. Those ages with a higher proportion of
members of the trade agree with the proposal much more than those who are older than that
group.

Q4 responses broken down by whether the respondent considers
themselves disabled

Yes

41%

No

28%

31%

53%

Prefer not to say

28%

50%

No answer

13%

38%

0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

15%

30%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

19%

0%

38%

15%

50%

0%

60%

0%

31%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Those who consider themselves disabled are more likely to disagree with the proposal for tints
than those who don’t, with 31% disagreeing and 41% agreeing.

Page 29 of 80

Page 265

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q4 responses broken down by the sex of the respondent
Female

37%

33%

Male

30%

56%

0%

26%

Other

19%

0%

100%

Prefer not say

0%

57%

No answer

21%

40%
0%

10%

20%

Strongly agree/ Agree

30%

40%

20%

0%

50%

60%

Neither agree nor disagree

21%

0%

40%
70%

80%

90%

Strongly disagree/ disagree

100%

No answer

Male respondents are more likely to agree with the proposal than female respondents. Female
respondents are split almost exactly in thirds with only 7% between agree and disagree.

Q4 broken down by whether the respondent is female or male and
whether they are a member of the trade or a member of the pubic

Public

35%

31%

Female

34%

Trade member

83%

Public

17%

35%

21%

Male

44%

0%

Trade member

68%

0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

30%

17%

40%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

60%

70%

80%

15%

90%

100%

Strongly disagree/ disagree

There is an obvious difference between members of the trade and members of the public, with
members of the trade, both male and female, much more likely to agree with the proposal than
members of the public.
It is important to note that if we just take members of the public, both males and females did not
have a majority agreeing with the proposals.
Page 30 of 80

Page 266

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q4 responses broken down by the ethnicity of the respondent
Asian / Asian British

78%

Black /African / Caribbean / Black British

10%

43%

Mixed / Multi ethnic group 0%

34%

33%

12% 0%

23%
67%

0%
0%

White British

45%

33%

22%

0%

White Irish

44%

33%

22%

0%

23%

0%

White Other

55%

Other

56%

Prefer not to say

11%

59%

No answer

27%
0%

Strongly agree/ Disagree

23%

10%

20%

22%
18%

30%

Neither agree nor disagree

33%

40%

18%
50%

60%

0%
19%

0%

36%
70%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

80%

90% 100%

No answer

Asian/ Asian British respondents have a large majority agreeing with the proposal, whereas Black/
African/ Caribbean/ Black British and White British and Irish respondents do not have a majority
agreeing.
The majority of White British/Irish/Other respondents are members of the public, rather than the
trade, whereas Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British and Asian/ Asian British respondents are
almost all members of the trade. However, there is a huge difference between Asian/ Asian British
respondents, who agreed by 71% and Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents who
only had a plurality of 43% agreeing and 23% disagreeing.

Page 31 of 80

Page 267

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q4 responses broken down by the religion of the respondent
Buddhist

33%

Christian

33%

33%

46%

30%

Hindu

0%

24%

0%

100%

Muslim/Islam

0%

62%

21%

Sikh

75%

No Religion

0%

48%

Other

No answer

15%
0%

10%

20%

Strongly agree/ Agree

0%

14%
25%

3% 6%

0%

21%

43%
57%

0%

25%

31%

43%

Prefer not to say

17%

0%

18%

0%

76%
30%

40%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Agree

90%

100%

No answer

Christians are more likely to disagree with the proposal than Muslims. This is most likely due to
trade/ non-trade differences rather than because of an impact on specific religions.

Q4 by sexual orientation
Bisexual

53%

Gay Man

24%

24%

63%

Gay Woman / Lesbian

25%

25%

Heterosexual / Straight

Prefer not to say

0%

29%

50%

23%

0%

23%

44%
0%

Strongly agree/ Agree

10%

20%

11%
30%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

0%

50%

62%

No answer

13% 0%

75%
48%

Other

0%

15%

22%
60%

70%

0%
0%

22%
80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

This shows that lesbians are much less likely to agree, whereas bisexuals or gay men are more
likely to agree with the proposals. However given the small number of responders who identified
with these sexualities we cannot draw reliable conclusions.
Page 32 of 80

Page 268

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.6 Question 5 - To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following
proposal: To require all private hire and hackney carriage drivers licence
applicants and some driver, vehicle or operator licence holders to pass a
mandatory test of their English language skills in order to receive or keep their
licence
4.6.1 Overview
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal: To
require all private hire and hackney carriage drivers licence applicants
and some driver, vehicle or operator licence holders to pass a
mandatory test of their English language skills
80%

75%

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
21%
20%
10%

3%

1%

0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Strongly disagree/
Disagree

No answer

75% of respondents agreed with the proposals for there to be an English language test. It is worth
noting that there were very few respondents who did neither agreed nor disagreed.
Summary of breakdown:

Members of the trade were less likely to agree than members of the public, 55% agree vs
89% agree respectively

Female respondents were much more likely to agree, as were male members of the public

There was a big split between Asian/ Asian British and Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black
British responses, with Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents disagreeing with the
proposal by 74%, and Asian/ Asian British respondents agreeing by 62%

4.6.1.1
Summary of relevant comments
There were a number of comments that agreed with the idea that taxi drivers should be able to
speak English. It was raised as a safety issue, and that some people struggled with or felt
uncomfortable when drivers did not speak English. However, there were also multiple comments
stating that they did not want any discrimination to take place with these tests, and that the main
skill drivers need is an ability to drive from A to B.
Page 33 of 80

Page 269

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
A couple of comments said they agreed with the tests for new drivers, but not for existing drivers,
or for those whose first language is English.

4.6.2 Breakdown
Q5 responses broken down by the capacity of respondent
Trade member

55%

2%

Public

43%

0%

89%

Residents/ community group

4% 7%0%

75%

Other representative org

0%

25%

83%

Cllr

0%

75%

Local trader/business

0%

50%

No answer
0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

0%

20%

10%

20%

30%

0%

0%

17%

25%

0%

50%

0%

60%
40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly adisagree/ disagree

90%

100%

No answer

In all groups except the 5 people who gave no capacity there is a majority agreeing with the
proposal. However, members of the trade split relatively close: 55% agreeing vs 43% disagreeing.
The public are 89% in agreement.

Page 34 of 80

Page 270

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q5 responses broken down by the age of respondents
18 - 24

67%

25 - 34

53%

35 - 44

52%

0%

33%

10%

37%

6%

45 - 54

0%

42%

70%

1%

55 - 64

0%

0%
29%

0%

90%

65 - 74

3% 7%0%

98%

75 - 84

0%
2%
0%

88%

4%

85 +

8% 0%

100%

Prefer not to say

0%

75%

No answer

43%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

0%
0%

30%

25%

0%

57%

40%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

60%

70%

80%

90%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

100%

No answer

All age groups have a majority agreeing with the proposal, however those over 45 are much more
likely to agree.

Q5 responses broken down by the sex of the respondent
Female

90%

Male

2% 7% 0%

70%

Other

3%

67%

Prefer not say

0%

79%

No answer

40%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

40%

10%
50%

Neither agree nor disagree

0%

33%

7%

10%
30%

27%

0%

14%

0%

40%
60%

70%

80%

Stongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Female respondents were much more likely to agree with the proposal than male respondents. All
female members of the trade agreed with the proposals.

Page 35 of 80

Page 271

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q5 responses broken down by whether the respondent is female or
male, and whether they are a member of the public or member of the
trade

Trade member
Female

100%

Public

0%

92%

Trade member

2%

46%

Male

51%

2% 6%

Public

90%
0%

10%

20%

Strongly agree/ agree

30%

40%

4% 6%
50%

60%

Neither agree nor disagree

70%

80%

90%

100%

Strongly disagree/ disagree

Can see that the there is a stark difference between the responses of male members of the trade
and male members of the public, with the members of the trade only agreeing by 51%, whereas
male members of the public agree by 90%

Q5 responses broken down by whether the respondent considers
themselves disabled

Yes

92%

No

5% 3%
0%

74%

Prefer not to say

2%

63%

No answer

38%

0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

13%

8%

30%

23%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

25%

23%

50%

60%

0%

0%

31%

70%

80%

Stongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Those who considered themselves disabled respondents were more likely to agree than those who
did not.

Page 36 of 80

Page 272

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q5 responses broken down by the ethnicity of the respondents
Asian / Asian British

62%

Black /African / Caribbean / Black British

26%

3%

0%

0%

74%

Mixed / Multi ethnic group

0%

100%

White British

0%

93%

White Irish

3%4%
0%

89%

White Other

11%0%

77%

Other

44%

No answer

5%
11%

36%

Prefer not to say

0%

10%

20%

Neither agree nor disagree

40%

50%

0%
0%

36%
3%

30%

18%

44%

27%

56%
0%

Strongly agree/ Agree

34%

60%

41%
70%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

80%

0%
90% 100%

No answer

Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents disagreed with the proposal – 74%
disagree/strongly disagree.
White respondents were much more likely to say that English language tests were needed than
non-white respondents.
Asian/ Asian British respondents agreed with the proposal by 62%.

Page 37 of 80

Page 273

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q5 responses broken down by the religion of the respondents
Buddhist

67%

17%

Christian

17%

88%

Hindu

3%

0%

9% 0%

100%

Muslim/Islam

40%

0%

2%

Sikh

58%

75%

0%

0%

No Religion

25%

0%

93%

Other

4%4%
0%

100%

Prefer not to say

0%

73%

No answer

2%

46%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

0%
30%

40%

23%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

25%

0%

31%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

There is a significant difference between Muslim respondents and all other groups, as they
disagree by 58% on this question compared to all other groups having a majority in agreement.

Q5 responses broekn down by the sexual orientation of the respondents
Gay Woman / Lesbian

100%

Gay Man

0%

88%

Bisexual

13% 0%

59%

6%

Heterosexual / Straight

35%

79%

Other

50%

Prefer not to say

2%
0%

50%
0%

Strongly agree/ Agree

10%

20%

4%
0%

30%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

19%

0%

50%

70%

No answer

0%

26%

28%
60%

0%
0%

22%
70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

This shows that lesbians and gay men are more likely to agree with the proposals than
heterosexuals or bisexuals. However, given the small number of respondents we cannot draw
reliable conclusions from this data.
Page 38 of 80

Page 274

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.7 Question 6. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following
proposal: To amend the existing guidelines relating to the relevance of
criminal behaviour to obtaining or holding any licence.
4.7.1 Overview
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal: To
amend the existing guidelines relating to the relevance of criminal
behaviour to obtaining or holding any licence.
90%
81%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
9%

9%

10%

1%

0%
Strongly agree/Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Strongly disagree/
Disagree

No answer

81% of respondents agreed with this proposal. The same number of respondents disagreed as
neither agreed nor disagreed.
Summary of breakdown:

The trade were less likely to agree, but still had a majority agreeing with the proposal

Females and male members of the public were almost unanimous in agreeing with the
proposal

Male members of the trade were less likely to agree, but still had a majority agreeing with
the proposal

Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents were less likely to agree, but there was
still a majority agreeing

4.7.1.1
Summary of relevant comments
There were four comments that suggested that there should be a limit on what convictions could
keep a driver from working, with one suggesting that dishonesty was more important than
occasional recreational drug use. There was one who pointed out that some groups of people are
more likely to be picked up for certain crimes, especially around drug use. Another wanted it made
clear that having convictions did not mean that they would automatically not be issued a licence.

Page 39 of 80

Page 275

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.7.2 Breakdown
Q6 responses broken down by the capacity of the respondent
Trade member

63%

19%

Public

18%

94%

Residents/ community group

2%3%
0%

75%

Other representative org

0%

0%

67%

25%

17%

0%

0%

17%

Local trader/business

100%

0%

Cllr

100%

0%

No answer
0%
Strongly agree/Agree

20%

0%

20%

10%

20%

30%

60%
40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

The public was almost unanimous in their agreement (94%) whereas the members of the trade
were much less likely to agree (63%) with the proposal. However only 18% of members of the
trade disagreed with the proposals. All four councillors who responded agreed with the proposal.

Q6 responses broken down by the sex of the respondents
Female

96%

Male

2%
2%
0%

77%

Other

11%

33%

67%

Prefer not say

79%

No answer

50%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/Agree

12% 0%

20%

7%

0% 10%
30%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

0%

50%

14%

0%

40%
60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Females were almost unanimous in agreeing with the proposed change. Males were slightly less
likely to agree, but still had a large majority of 77%.

Page 40 of 80

Page 276

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q6 responses broken down by whether the respondent was female or
male, and a member of the public or member of the trade
Trade member

17%

0%

Female

83%

Public

96%

Trade member

1%
2%
0%

19%

18%

0%

Male

62%

Public

94%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/Agree

20%

30%

40%

2%4%1%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Looking at the intersection of sex and whether they were a member of trade or of the public, 94%
of male members of the public agreed with the proposal, whereas only 63% of members of the
trade agreed.

Q6 responses broken down by the age of the respondent
18 - 24

100%

25 - 34

0%

63%

35 - 44

17%

69%

45 - 54

20%
15%

76%

55 - 64

10%
89%

65 - 74

0%

15%

0%

12%

1%

4% 7%0%

97%

3%
0%

75 - 84

100%

0%

85 +

100%

0%

Prefer not to say

63%

No answer

43%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/Agree

20%

25%
0%

30%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

13% 0%

57%
50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

There appears to be a trend of the percentage who agreed increasing in line with the age of the
respondent increasing. All age groups have a strong majority agreeing.

Page 41 of 80

Page 277

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q6 responses broken down by whether the respondents consider
themselves disabled

Yes

97%

No

0%
3%
0%

81%

Prefer not to say

10%

63%

No answer

25%

46%

0%

10%

Strongly agree/Agree

20%

0%

30%

9% 0%

40%

13% 0%

23%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

31%

60%

70%

80%

90%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

100%

No answer

One person who identified as having a disability disagreed with the proposal, the rest all agreed
with the proposal.

Q6 responses broken down by the ethnicity of the respondent
Asian / Asian British

69%

Black /African / Caribbean / Black British

12%

54%

29%

Mixed / Multi ethnic group

0%

17% 0%

100%

White British

0%

95%

White Irish

2%
3%
1%

78%

White Other

11%

86%

Other

67%

Prefer not to say

66%

No answer

27%
0%

Strongly agree/Agree

19%

10%

20%

30%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

5% 9%0%
11%

22%
28%

18%
40%

11%0%

18%
50%

60%

0%
6%0%

36%
70%

Neither agree nor disagree

80%

90% 100%

No answer

Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents are less likely to agree than all other groups,
but still have a majority of 54% agreeing.

Page 42 of 80

Page 278

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q6 responses broken down by the religion of the respondents
Buddhist

83%

17%

Christian

96%

Hindu

33%

Muslim/Islam

1%
3%
0%

33%

33%

56%

22%

No Religion

0%
22%

0%

93%

Sikh

3%4%
0%

75%

Other

25%
86%

Prefer not to say

0%

82%

No answer

10%

Strongly agree/Agree

0%
14%

14%

10% 2%3%
0%

0%

0%
5%
0%

85%
20%

30%

40%

50%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

60%

70%

80%

90%

Neither agree nor disagree

100%

No answer

Muslim respondents are less likely to agree than all other sufficiently represented religions. The
majority of Muslim respondents are members of the trade and Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black
British.

Q6 responses broken down by the sexual orientation of the respondents
Gay Woman / Lesbian

100%

Gay Man

0%

88%

Bisexual

0% 13% 0%

82%

Heterosexual / Straight

6%

84%

Other

50%

25%

Prefer not to say

78%

No answer

39%
0%

Strongly agree/Agree

10%

20%

40%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

8%

7%0%

25%

0%

12%
17%

30%

12% 0%

50%

17%
60%

10% 0%

28%
70%

80%

Neither agree nor disagree

90%

100%

No answer

This shows that in general lesbian, gay, bisexual, and heterosexual respondents agreed, and there
was no significant difference based on sexuality.

Page 43 of 80

Page 279

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.8 Question 7. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following
proposal: To introduce a Private Hire Operator Policy and amendments to the
private hire operator conditions as outlined above.
4.8.1 Overview
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal: To
introduce a Private Hire Operator Policy and amendments to the private
hire operator conditions as outlined above.
90%
77%

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

14%
7%

10%

1%

0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Strongly disagree/
Disagree

No answer

The majority of respondents (77%) agreed with the proposal regarding PHO policy and conditions.
Only 7% disagreed with the proposal
Summary of breakdown:

Members of the public agreed 91% whereas members of the trade agreed 60%

Disabled and female respondents were more likely to agree with the proposals

Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents were less likely to agree, but had a
majority 51% agreeing with the proposals

4.8.1.1
Summary of relevant comments
There were not many comments about this proposal, however the few that were there from the
public appeared supportive of the proposal. There was one comment by a trade member asking
why the operators have to have a fit and proper policy when that should be the council’s role.

Page 44 of 80

Page 280

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.8.2 Breakdown
Q7 responses broken down by the capacity of respondent
Trade Member

60%

24%

Public

16%

91%

Residents/ community group

8% 0%

75%

0%

Cllr

0%

25%

0%

100%

Local trader/business 0%

0%

50%

50%

Other representative org

67%

No answer
0%
Stongly agree/Agree

20%

0%

20%

10%

20%

30%

0%

17%

0%

17%

60%
40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Although both the public and members of the trade have a majority, the public are more likely to
agree. 16% of members of the trade disagreed, vs 0% of the members of the public. All four
Councillors agreed with the proposals.

Q7 responses broken down by the age of the respondents
18 - 24

67%

25 - 34

33%

70%

35 - 44

20%

59%

45 - 54

0%
10% 0%

24%

17%

75%

55 - 64

16%
86%

65 - 74

0%

9% 0%
10%

4%
0%

98%

75 - 84

2%
0%

88%

85 +

13% 0%
100%

Prefer not to say

0%

50%

No answer

38%

29%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/Agree

14%
20%

30%

0%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

13% 0%

57%
50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

All ages agree with the proposal, although 35-44 year olds are less likely to. 70% of 35-44 year old
respondents were members of the trade.
Page 45 of 80

Page 281

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q7 responses broken down by whether the respondent considers
themselves to be disabled

Yes

92%

No

8% 0%

78%

Prefer not to say

15%

63%

No answer

25%

31%

0%

10%

20%

Strongly agree/ Agree

23%

30%

13% 0%

15%

40%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

60%

8% 0%

31%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Almost all of the people who identified as having a disability agreed/strongly agreed, none
disagreed.

Q7 responses broken down by the sex of the respondents
Female

91%

Male

9% 0%

74%

Other

16%

33%

No answer

67%

30%

30%

Prefer not say

0%

10%

Strongly agree/Agree

20%

30%

40%

0%

40%

79%
0%

10% 0%

7%
50%

Neither agree nor disagree

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/Disagree

14%
90%

0%
100%

No answer

The large majority (91%) of females agree with the proposals. Males were less likely to agree than
females. However male members of the public have a large majority of 92% agreeing, vs 58% of
male members of the trade agreeing.

Page 46 of 80

Page 282

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q7 responses broken down by the respondents' ethnicity
Asian / Asian British

66%

Black /African / Caribbean / Black British

28%

51%

Mixed / Multi ethnic group

20%

33%

29%

0%

67%

White British

0%

92%

White Irish

7%1%
0%

89%

White Other

0%11%0%

82%

Other

14%

67%

No answer

27%

0%

18%

Prefer not to say
10%

20%

Neither agree nor disagree

40%

50%

60%

0%

36%
28%

30%

5%
0%

33%

18%

56%
0%

Strongly agree/ Agree

7%0%

16% 0%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90% 100%

No answer

There is a large difference between Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British and Asian/ Asian
British respondents, with Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents more likely to
disagree with the proposals. White British respondents are much more likely to agree with the
proposals, although they are less likely to be a member of the trade.

Q7 responses broken down by the religion of the respondents
Buddhist

100%

Christian

89%

Hindu

10% 1%
0%

100%

Muslim/Islam

0%

53%

Sikh

26%

50%

21%

25%

No Religion

0%

25%

88%

Other

0%
11% 1%
0%

100%

Prefer not to say

0%

75%

No answer

38%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

Page 47 of 80

0%

20%

16%
15%

30%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

15%

50%

60%

31%
70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

Page 283

9% 0%

90%

100%

No answer

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Muslim respondents were less likely to agree with the proposals, and are more likely to be a
member of the trade.

Q7 responses broken down by the sexual orientation of the respondent
Gay Woman / Lesbian

100%

0%

Gay Man

100%

0%

Bisexual

82%

Heterosexual / Straight

18%

79%

Other

75%

Prefer not to say

74%

No answer

15%
0%

0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

10%

20%

17%

30%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

60%

11%
70%

7%0%

25%
15%

50%

0%

0%
11% 0%

22%
80%

Strongly disagree/Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Gay men and women are more likely to agree than heterosexuals, however we did not have a
large enough sample size to draw reliable conclusions.

Page 48 of 80

Page 284

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.9 Question 8. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following
proposal: To amend the Fit and Proper Person Policy to include new
requirements and conditions for the DBS update service and expired licences
as outlined above.
4.9.1 Overview
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal: To
amend the Fit and Proper Person Policy to include new requirements
and conditions for the DBS update service and expired licences as
outlined above.
90%

81%

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

7%

10%

2%

0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Strongly disagree/
Disagree

No answer

81% of respondents agreed with changing the requirements to include the DBS update service.
Summary of breakdown:
 Members of the trade less likely to agree than public, but have a majority of 63% agreement
 Females and those with disabilities almost unanimously agree with proposals
 Black/ Africa/ Caribbean/ Black British and Asian/ Asian British respondents were less likely to
agree
4.9.1.1
Summary of comments
Many comments supported the used of DBS update service for improving the public safety. There
were conflicting comments regarding whether the online system was more or less easy to use.
One comment said that:
“DBS expiry leading to potential penalties is harsh as it could possibly be overlooked quite easily
depending on circumstances at the time”.

Page 49 of 80

Page 285

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.9.2 Breakdown
Q8 responses broken down by the capacity of the respondents
Trade member

63%

16%

Public

21%

95%

Residents/ community group

2%
2%
1%

75%

Other representative org

0%

25%

83%

Local trader/business

50%

0%
0%

Cllr

1%

0%

17%

50%

0%

100%

No answer
0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

0%

20%

10%

20%

30%

0%
60%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Every group agrees with the proposals, although members of the trade are less likely to agree than
members of the public. All four councillors who responded agreed with the proposals.

Q8 responses broken down by the age of the respondents
18 - 24

33%

0%

67%

0%

25 - 34

67%

7%

35 - 44

66%

10%

45 - 54

23%
24%

80%

55 - 64

3%

9%

0%
9% 2%

93%

65 - 74

5%1%
0%

97%

75 - 84

3%
0%

100%

85 +

0%

50%

Prefer not to say

63%

No answer

29%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

14%
20%

30%

0%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

0%

25%

13% 0%

57%
50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

No answer

In general, the older respondents were more likely to agree with the proposals, although all
representative groups agreed.

Page 50 of 80

Page 286

100%

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q8 responses broken down by whether the respondent considers
themselves disabled

Yes

97%

No

0%
3%
0%

81%

Prefer not to say

11%

63%

No answer

13%

38%

0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

15%

30%

40%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

25%

8%

50%

60%

7% 1%

0%

38%

70%

80%

90%

Neither agree nor disagree

100%

No answer

The large majority of disabled respondents agreed with the proposals.

Q8 responses broken down by the sex of the respondent
Female

95%

Male

3%2%
0%

78%

Other

67%

Prefer not say

11%

10% 1%

33%

0%

71%

No answer

40%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

29%

0% 10%
30%

40%

0%

50%
50%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

60%

70%

80%

Neither agree nor disagree

90%

100%

No answer

Females were more likely to agree with the proposals than males. Male respondents are more
likely to be members of the trade than female respondents.

Page 51 of 80

Page 287

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q8 responses broken down by the ethnicity of the respondents
Asian / Asian British

66%

Black /African / Caribbean / Black British

16%

54%

37%

Mixed / Multi ethnic group

0%

9%0%

100%

White British

0%

95%

White Irish

1%
4%
1%

89%

White Other

11%0%

91%

Other

5%5%
0%

78%

Prefer not to say

22%

66%

No answer

18%
0%

Strongly agree/ Agree

19%

19%

27%

10%

20%

9%

30%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

40%

50%

0%

13% 3%

45%
60%

70%

80%

Neither agree nor disagree

90% 100%

No answer

Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British respondents are less likely to agree with the proposals
than all other ethnicities. Asian/ Asian British respondents are more likely to disagree with the
proposal, even though they have a higher agreement percentage than Black/ African/ Caribbean/
Black British respondents. White respondents had high levels of agreement.

Q8 responses broken down by the religion of the respondents
Buddhist

83%

Christian

92%

Hindu

0%

2% 5%0%

100%

Muslim/Islam

0%

60%

Sikh

27%
75%

Other

13% 0%

0%

25%

0%

100%

No Religion

0%

94%

Prefer not to say

2%4%
1%

75%

No answer

31%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

Page 52 of 80

17%

20%

14%

15%
30%

40%

15%
50%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

38%
60%

70%

80%

Neither agree nor disagree

Page 288

9% 2%

90%

100%

No answer

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Muslim respondents are less likely to agree than any other religious group.
Q8 responses broken down by the sexual orientation of the respondents
Bisexual

82%

6%

12% 0%

Gay Man

100%

0%

Gay Woman / Lesbian

100%

0%

Heterosexual / Straight

83%

Other

50%

25%

Prefer not to say

9%

8% 0%

25%

0%

82%

No answer

39%
0%

Strongly agree/ Agree

10%

20%

14%
17%

30%

40%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

50%

11%
60%

4%
0%

33%
70%

80%

Neither agree nor disagree

90%

100%

No answer

There is not a large difference between the different sexual orientations, however we are unable to
draw reliable conclusions about these groups from this data.

Page 53 of 80

Page 289

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.10 Question 9. To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following
proposal: To amend the existing Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Vehicle
policy to require all proprietors to obtain a basic disclosure
4.10.1

Overview
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following proposal: To
amend the existing Private Hire and Hackney Carriage Vehicle policy to
require all proprietors to obtain a basic disclosure

90%

82%

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

8%

10%

1%

0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

Neither agree nor disagree

Strongly disagree/
Disagree

No answer

82% of respondents agreed with the proposal that all PHOs to obtain a DBS application.
Summary of breakdown:

Members of the trade are less likely to agree than member of the public

White respondents were more likely to agree than respondents from other ethnicities
4.10.1.1
Summary of relevant comments:
There were very few comments that mentioned PHOs having a DBS check specifically. There was
one that agreed saying that all those involved in taxi businesses should have a check. Other
comments mostly referred to drivers having a DBS, not the operators.

Page 54 of 80

Page 290

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.10.2

Breakdown
Q9 responses broken down by the capacity of respondents
Trade member

67%

16%

Public

17%

93%

Residents/ community group

2%4%
0%

75%

Other representative org

0%

25%

83%

Local trader/business

50%

0%
0%

Cllr

0%

0%

17%

50%

0%

100%

No answer
0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

20%

0%

20%

10%

20%

30%

0%
60%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

The public have a large majority agreeing with the proposals, whereas members of the trade are
less likely to agree. All four Councillors who responded agreed with the proposals.

Q9 responses broken down by the age of the respondents
18 - 24

67%

33%

25 - 34

70%

35 - 44

69%

45 - 54

7%

23%

13%
9%
90%

65 - 74

0%

18%

79%

55 - 64

0%

11% 1%
5% 4%
0%

98%

75 - 84

0%
2%
0%

92%

85 +

0%

8% 0%

100%

Prefer not to say

0%

75%

No answer

29%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

14%
20%

30%

13%
0%

40%

Neither agree nor disagree

13% 0%

57%
50%

60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

No answer

All age groups agree with the proposals, and those over 55 years old agree more than 90%.

Page 55 of 80

Page 291

100%

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q9 broken down by whether the respondent considered themselves
disabled

Yes

95%

No

3%3%
0%

82%

Prefer not to say

8%

63%

No answer

25%

38%

0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

8%

20%

30%

13% 0%

23%

40%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

10% 0%

31%

60%

70%

80%

90%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

100%

No answer

Disabled respondents were more likely to agree than those who did not consider themselves
disabled.

Q9 responses broken down by the ethnicity of the respondent
Asian / Asian British

71%

Black /African / Caribbean / Black British

21%

69%

3%

Mixed / Multi ethnic group

29%

0%

100%

White British

0%

94%

White Irish

4%
2%
1%

89%

White Other

0%11%0%

86%

Other

44%

9% 5%
0%
11%

Prefer not to say

44%

66%

No answer

27%
0%

Strongly agree/ Agree

9%0%

10%

20%

13%

9%

27%

30%

Neither agree nor disagree

40%

50%

0%
22%

0%

36%
60%

70%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

80%

90% 100%

No answer

White respondents are more likely to agree with the proposals, although they are less likely to be a
member of the trade. There is not a large difference between Asian/ Asian and Black/ African/
Caribbean/ Black British respondents.
Page 56 of 80

Page 292

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Q9 responses broken down by the religion of the respondents
Buddhist

83%

Christian

0%

17%

90%

Hindu

33%

7% 3%
0%
33%

Muslim/Islam

33%

69%

Sikh 0%

0%

12%

50%

0%
20%

0%

50%

No Religion

0%

95%

Other

4%2%
0%

100%

Prefer not to say

0%

75%

No answer

38%
0%

10%

Strongly agree/ Agree

9%
8%

20%

30%

15%

40%

50%

Neither agree nor disagree

16%

0%

38%
60%

70%

80%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

90%

100%

No answer

All groups that are large enough to be representative are in agreement with the proposals.

Q9 responses broken down by the sexual orientation of respondents
Gay Woman / Lesbian

100%

0%

Gay Man

100%

0%

Bisexual

88%

Heterosexual / Straight

6% 6%0%

84%

Other

75%

Prefer not to say

79%

No answer

33%
0%

Strongly agree/ Agree

10%

20%

40%

Strongly disagree/ Disagree

8% 0%

25%

0%

14%

22%
30%

8%

17%
50%

60%

7%0%

28%
70%

80%

Neither agree nor disagree

90%

No answer

Lesbian, gay and bisexual respondents were slightly more likely to agree that heterosexual
respondents, however we are not able to draw reliable conclusions from this data.

Page 57 of 80

Page 293

100%

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

4.11 Question 10. If you would like to tell us why you have chosen the
answers above, please do so using the text box below:
A full list of the comments can be found in Appendix 2 – All survey comments.
A full list of the change requests and suggestions can be found in: Error! Reference source not
found.

4.11.1

Themes of comments

There were a number of themes to the comments, as can be seen in the below table
Theme
Number of Comment
comments
Importance of
public/passenger
safety

36

These comments all referenced public or passenger
safety as an important part of why they chose their
answers.
Many referenced the importance of those using taxis
feeling safe, especially if female, disabled, or vulnerable.
Some linked the ability to speak English as part of
feeling safe. A few others mentioned the importance of
safe driving, and the possible need for regular driving
tests for drivers.
The majority of these comments (28) were made by
members of the public, with one by a Councillor and 6 by
members of the trade.

DBS comment

26

There were many comments supporting the use of DBS
checks. There were a few that were against the change
to the DBS system

Supportive of changes

21

These comments were directly supportive of the
changes and most linked the changes to an increase in
public safety.
The majority of these comments (16) were made by
members of the public, with 5 made by members of the
trade.

Complaints about taxi
drivers/ vehicles

22

These comments complained about the conduct or state
of the taxi. Complaints include:

Issues regarding overcharging fares, or not using
the meter (8 comments)

Drivers talking on their phone/using their phone
whilst driving (4 comments)

Issues around poor driving (4 comments)

Discrimination, especially with respect to disabled
customers/ wheelchair users (4 comments)
There were also multiple comments regarding the
cleanliness of vehicles, and the behaviour of drivers both

Page 58 of 80

Page 294

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
towards customers and on the streets (i.e. noise around
Temple Meads).
These comments came from members of the public, a
councillor, and a residents/community group.
Wanting change to
card reader policy

15

These commenters can be grouped into two groups

Those who want to still be able to pay/be paid by
other means

Drivers who do not want to have to pay more to
get a card reader and holder
The 4 members of the public who commented wanted to
make sure that card payments were not the only
accepted payment.
The 11 members of the trade who commented that they
did not want to pay extra for having a card reader,
especially those that already have one. They also
wanted to still have the ability to accept cash as
payment. One said that the card reader should not have
to be displayed, one said they did not have space for the
reader and holder, and one vehicle owner – not driver –
wanted the card reader to be the responsibility of the
driver not the owner.

Believe drivers should
be able to speak
English

15

These commenters agreed that drivers should be able to
speak English – although did not necessarily specifically
say they agreed with the English language test.
Nine comments were from members of the public, six
from members of the trade.
Some members of the public said they felt safer or more
comfortable if the driver spoke English. There was an
agreement that understanding English was important for
understanding instructions.
The members of the trade all agreed that a basic
understanding of the English language was vital.
Two members of the trade pointed out there could be an
exemption for current drivers and/or those with English
as their first language.

They have answered
with their opinion
Page 59 of 80

10

These commenters used the question to say they have
chosen their answers as that was their opinions

Page 295

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Agree with card
10
These comments agreed with the ability to pay with card
machines
DBS a good thing

10

The comments agreed that having DBS checks would be
a good way to help increase public safety

Protecting members of
the trade

9

These comments said that the proposals will make
members of the trade more safe, or that protecting
member of the trade was important

Against tints

8

These commenters were against the use of tints,
especially referencing public safety as a key issue

Against English tests

7

These commenters were against a new English
language test. They pointed out there were already
many tests, fluency in English isn’t necessary – just
basic understanding, or that this should only be applied
to new drivers or those whose first language is not
English

Supporting tints

6

These comments supported being allowed tinted
windows. Some mentioned that out of town taxis are
allowed tints, or that most vehicles already come with
tints.

Include driving tests

5

These comments suggested also having some kind of
driving test for drivers to complete

Trade is having a hard
time

5

These comments mentioned the issues that the trade
are experiencing at this point in time, and that they need
support to help with this.

Want to remove racism

5

These comments highlighted the potential unconscious
racism that could come about as a result of the DBS or
English language tests

Out of town taxis

5

These comments pointed out the issues with out of town
taxis. They also mentioned South Gloucester having
different rules.

Environmental
requests

4

These comments asked about environmental issues,
such as low pollution propulsion, stop-start technology,
low/ zero emission vehicles or electric vehicles

Reduce the number of
taxis

4

These commenters talked about reducing the number of
taxis that are either licenced or on the street during the
day

Driving while on phone

4

These comments mentioned that they have had drivers
who are driving whilst talking on their phone or using an
app

Adding costs to trade
is negative

4

These commenters said that adding costs to the trade
was a negative thing. A couple added that Bristol City
Council should pay the additional costs that this policy
might bring in.

Geographic knowledge
needed

4

These commenters suggested a geographical
knowledge test as there are issues with drivers not

Page 60 of 80

Page 296

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
knowing the way
New drivers only, not
existing ones

3

These commenters said that the policy should apply to
new drivers only, not current drivers

Change age rules for
cars

2

These commenters asked for the rules around the age of
cars to be extended

Page 61 of 80

Page 297

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

5

How will this report be used?

This report will be presented to members of the Council’s Public Safety and Protection Committee
to inform their decision making with regard to the review of the Council’s Hackney carriage and
private hire licensing policies and conditions.

Page 62 of 80

Page 298

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

Appendix 1 - Accessibility questions

6

The majority of respondents agreed that there was enough information for them to answer the
questions, and that the questions made it easy to give their views. 68% of respondents agreed that
the survey met their accessibility needs, and 8% disagreed.
There is enough information for me to answer the questions
80%

76%

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%

20%

12%
8%

10%

5%

0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Strongly disagree/
Disagree

No answer

The questions make it easy for me to give my views
80%
72%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

13%
7%

7%

Strongly disagree/
disagree

No answer

10%
0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

Page 63 of 80

Neither agree nor disagree

Page 299

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
The survey meets my accessibility needs
80%
68%

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%

18%

20%

8%

6%

Strongly disagree/
Disagree

No answer

10%
0%
Strongly agree/ Agree

Page 64 of 80

Neither agree nor disagree

Page 300

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

7

Appendix 2 – All survey comments

There are still lots of "Cowboy" Taxi Drivers around, and I (and my daughters) are regular users of
Taxis. All of their qualifications to drive need tightening up, so we only get the best quality drivers.
Anything that further increases the safety for those using the cab services, can only be a good
thing e.g. rear windows that can be seen through from the outside. As to English language skills,
being able to understand what your customer is saying to you, should be a given.
I live outside the charging zone and gave up on Bristol Blue taxis a long time ago.
Prior to Uber operating in the city the Blue taxis would quote near criminal fares to get home on a
Saturday night, knowing they were the only option. They took advantage of their near monopoly
and ripped people off when ever they could.
I believe the safety of women, youth and other vulnerable individuals must be protected.
[personal information redacted]
Date 15th March 2021
Hello.
I am inquiring about the policy of “no tints allowed”
Below is a picture of a hackney carriage taxi vehicle that is currently licensed with Bristol city
council, as you can see clearly this has a very dark shade of tint, vehicle registration number
[taxi information redacted].
1/. When did this no tints policy come in?
As you should have detailed records of all previous policy changes.
2/ why did this policy of “NO TINTS“ come in?
As you should have recorded reasons why this policy of “NO TINTS” came in, any change of policy
has to go through a public consultation and a councillors public safety and protection meeting, all
reasons for and against must be recorded.
I know when I have posed awkward questions via email to anyone in Bristol city council they
sometimes get discarded like rubbish due to arrogance and narcissism coming into play.
Also the taxi drivers have started a petition to get network rail to refund 50% of our permit fee due
to consecutive lockdowns, please follow link http://chng.it/RCqpHDnX, have a read, if you feel that
the hackney carriage drivers of Bristol deserve a break from expensive policies and permits due to
there being extremely limited or no work, then please sign it and also get all that work in Bristol city
council to sign it as well.
It is not appropriate to expect everyone to pay by card. A lot of passengers are older and may not
have cards.
Customers need to be safe and understand the driver at all times. Speaking clear English is
important.
I do feel it is important to regulate the industry, for the safety of all! both for drivers and clients.
They all make sense and appear to designed to protect the public.
We need to feel safe in a taxi esp if a single female in the early hours of the morning
I feel safer if I am able to understand the driver often it is difficult to even know how much they say
your fare is, also prohibit drivers from continually speaking in their own tongue on their phones
through out the journey hands free should not be allowed to be used through out the journey no
matter what language is used
Page 65 of 80

Page 301

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
I would feel safer and reassured using a taxi alone with the proposed measures in place.
I think most of the amendments are for the greater good for the safety of all concerned essentially
the public
I think the proposals are excellent and progressive, whilst remaining proportionate and not overly
burdensome.
I'm very concerned about the standard of driving by Hackney Cab drivers. Can they sit an
advanced Driving test as well?
I find it hard to get a Private hire that will take a wheel chair and some taxi drivers at 'Temple
Meads' are reluctant to take a big electric wheel chair to Bedminster.
I do not understand the issue or reasoning around the ‘tinted rear windows’ currently or your new
proposal.
As a single women I have used taxis regularly, and have felt unsafe particularly coming home
later in the evening.
I welcome this changes which should make using taxis safer.
I am uncomfortable with mandatory card payment. Some older people still have a strong
preference for cash. There are people who cannot access cards or bank accounts (though these
are unlikely to be heavy taxi users!). As a matter of principle any legal tender should be
acceptable. If this is a Covid-related point, it should be flagged as such and relaxed when possible.
Although good English is desirable it isn't functionally absolutely necessary as long as there is
sufficient comprehension of the destination and interim requirements. An English test will be seen
as unnecessary and probably covert racism.
I don't follow the logic of requiring proprietors to have DBS clearance. Presumably the only danger
to the public arises in the cab.
I would be uncomfortable if the actual effect of these changes is to increase barriers to entry for
private hire drivers.
These vehicle drivers are in close proximity to the general public, who should have confidence in
the probity and honesty of drivers. Safety is paramount and these directives are essential to
provide security and safety.
The people who use taxis and private hire vehicles are almost all vulnerable. They include the
elderly, disabled, children, and people under the influence of drink and/or drugs. It is very
important that the drivers of these people can be trusted to care for their passengers and deliver
them safely. At the same time, the safety of the driver is important, and they should be protected
from violent and dishonest passengers.
it's will be safer for all customers
Most questions that are asked, answer is self explanatory. Like window tinting, every other council
operating IN bristol has no issue yet bristol has bristol licensing has a problem.
Why should ph companies be responsible to check if driver is fit and proper. That's the councils
job, why don't you ask drivers if a operator is fit and proper to hold licence let's how the shoe fits
now.
This isnt the time to be putting up Barriers to employment
The safety of the public , has to be the number one , consideration.
It only right that , the drivers should be held to a professional standard, known to the hirers.
The professional drivers , should be confident , that spending money doing the correct thing. That
they will not be, under-cut by cowboy's.
Hi,
Is so much to tel about. As you know most of drivers are foreigners and less understanding of
rules and regulations.
I have awnser to the best of my understanding also Bristol city council have been dispatched some
Page 66 of 80

Page 302

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
rules of not being fare to all trade as others, I hope I can be part of sharing my opinions.

Word document to follow
So that only trustworthy people drive taxis
It is an extra cost for owner driver
Some of rules will affect our business so that’s why I agree some and nor agree some
Because Some of rules will affect our business so that’s why I agree some and not agree some.
i need to use taxis regularly, I have noticed an increasing decline in taxi drivers' attitudes and
skills. - Not being able to communicate adequately, not knowing the central parts of the city,
behaving unreasonably, trying to charge more than the agreed set fare, talking on a mobile phones
while driving, sometimes being offhand even being abusive, discriminating against disabled
passengers.
I work in care so have to have an upto date security check, so why not taxi drivers who deal with
public.
Hope the English test is going to be both written and oral , any one can pass a written but doesn't
mean they any one person can talk the language .
I think you missed the opportunity to include something similar to Londons the knowledge. The
amount of times taxi drivers take a longer route is ridiculous, they should all know the quickest
route, or ensure all drivers have sat navs or equivalent
In my experience of taking taxis in Bristol the drivers are often on their phones, using apps or
otherwise distracted.
I agree with these proposals. I don't agree with tinted windows due to safety for females in the cab.
My only concern is that with clean air zone fees. And additional costs for taxi owners. that this will
be yet another cost passed onto customer.
When I lived east Bristol, I used dad's cabs for years. Since moving 2017 I haven't got a taxi once.
I am too scared to get a taxi which would likely be one from taxi rank temple meads. I wouldn't feel
safe in those taxis so this will be a welcome change. I just wonder if taxis will end up being cost
prohibitive. Like everything has become in this high cost run down city.
I have to have a DBS as of my job but it is more lip service than a thorough check however ot is
better than nothing. I fweel any qualifications that reduce the number of taxis at Temple Meads has
got to be a good thing. I occasionally pick immobile people up or take them down to the station and
often can't get a place in the visitors area as Taxis are in there are there are apparently no other
places for them to go ( I have photos of tem incorrectly parked ). We also get the beeping horns
they constantly male at other drivers to tell them to move down the cue or frequent arguments they
have with each other. In can appear like bedlam at times and is not relaxing when you want to pick
or or drop off a loved one
as a woman who uses taxis, I can tell you about so very many terrifying experiences in Bristol in
the last 20 years. I don't think the proposals go far enough in terms of complaints management
and there needs to be some way of tracking the taxi driver/vehicle rather than having to try and
take a photo of their number/registration. These details should be provided to every customer at
the point of engagement without fail. Somebody also needs to teach people about the geography
of Bristol and most have no clue (nor even how to drive on the left hand side!) These measures
are s step in the right direction though.
sometimes feel intimidated getting into a taxi as an older disabled women - so currently avoid taxis
where i can.
charging is often opaque, drivers often take "the longest possible route" and ignore when you ask
them to take a quicker route, and sometimes taxis are really filthy inside , smelling of cigarette
smoke
Page 67 of 80

Page 303

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Also, of course, charges seem to vary and are often extortionate

Rules for private hire companies in particular need to be more stringent to protect the general
public. Of partiatlar concern are childrean whose parents book journeys for th
I think existing measures are the strictest and toughest in the country. By continuing to add to
existing measure would not help to bring a massive improvement. In my opinion better
engagement with the drivers, operators, public and experts would help to educate and improve the
industry.
I agree that tinted windows (privacy glass) should be allowed if a standard manufactures product is
used & NO TINTS.
1. All the above answers, I have ticked are nussecery.
2. To my veiw it is right that bristol city council to have strong position who ever driver taxi and
company to be regulated and controlled.
3. All drivers must at least have good knowledge and speak English.
Interesting why only private hire will be allowed to have factory fitted tinted windows and not
hackney whereas South Gloucestershire drivers have no problem with their drivers having tinted
windows and over 90% of their drivers work in bristol.
Also why is the onus only on the driver surely the operator is also responsible when a act is
committed and therefore their licence should be revoked as well. Or is the driver a soft target.
it is aprove our bussiness
We are already governed by so much red tape and unnecessary policies we just dont need to
make it any more difficult than it already is. Every year I have problems trying to renew my license
with one thing or another .IF IT AINT BROKE DONT TRY AND FIX IT . 32 years in this trade and
this last 15 years have definitely been the worst.It might have made you've easier with everything
no online but I can assure you it hasn't with us
Greater security for passengers
I think tinted windows shouldn't cause a problem and also think that private hire care should be
allowed 15 years licence instead of the 10 years very expensive to change car ever 10 years
I am glad that there will be some changes to the current taxi trade policy, especially with regard to
vehicle licence. I have been trying to purchase a vehicle to be licensed as a private hire but
unfortunately most of new and latest used vehicles do come with manufacturer tinted rear windows
as standard, as a result I have been out of work for the last 3 months.
I still don't understand why Bristol Hackney vehicles need to be blue and PHV are not allowed to
be blue. Whereas S.Glos can still dominate Bristol with whatever colour vehicle they choose. Also,
they do not need a knowledge test and can have a vehicle for 15 years and only work in Bristol. So
nothing is going to change in Bristol. Drivers will continue to defect to getting the easier S.Glos
badge and plates. Please put these points across to whoever created this survey, because Bristol
Drivers are fed up.
The taxi legislation in the UK is outdated espicially after arriving taxi app companies like Uber so it
need to be updated according time
Taxi Policy need amendments
Why is there such a big difference between where bristol phv vehicles get mot find and south glos
driver get mot done?
The proposals are fine. I just wondered where Uber would fit in?
👎�
I think its good to have certain rules to protect the public,
It would also be nice to have a list of vehicles that are currently being used as PHV so we have a
better idea of what vehicles are acceptable when purchasing a new car.
I would like hackney taxis to have for hire light on top of the vehicle, when booked light is turned of
Page 68 of 80

Page 304

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
For card payments to be accepted by the driver, a provision should be placed by the Bristol City
council to recover the cost of card machines, their installation within taxis, as well as ongoing costs
of taking card payments
To allow tint window rear is very good decision because now new manufactory car rear windows
are tint taxi MOT service compare with other MOT service are expensive and better to have
another MOT service too and also extend the age taxi service operating more than 10 years age
why not allow to operating the taxi when age reached 10 years and why we should do each year 2
MOT service when the taxi age more than 8 years
The proposals would allow rear windows to allow 0% of light through, ie completely opaque. This
would a car with no rear side windows fitted by the manufacturer be permitted?
There are many taxi drivers, who accept payment by cash or card including myself and taxis are
displaying the signs, if they are accepting the cards. But it should be optional, not mandatory.
Legal tender still in this country is Sterling Pound.
Nobody should be forced to accept cards, if they wish to receive payment for their services in legal
currency.
God save the Queen.
The Safety of the Public we serve must be paramount and Safeguarding training is welcomed fully.
The DBS function is also improved by keeping data updated so as nothing has escaped the time
lines As all drivers at some point will carry vulnerable people it is detriment to society that as
Licensed by the City we are fully vetted continuously . To have card machines as a mandatory
practice is putting pressure on the public as well as the driver to become a cashless society. Tinted
windows have no place in Public Vehicles, we should be transparent in all that we do. I have
Transported many Celebrities' in my time and not once did any of them mention they would like
tinted windows. To have a written English Test would please the public no end, it is one of the
biggest complaints that i receive from passengers, we must be able to communicate fully with our
passengers, I would have thought this would be welcomed by all so as to save any
misinterpretation or misunderstanding thus leading to arguments or worse still any police
involvement over fares or conduct.
There is lots of rules and regulations for Bristol taxi drivers and vehicles by Bristol city council. But
unfortunately lots of out town taxis are working in Bristol city and within boundary without any of
these restrictions, rules and regulation for drivers and vehicle. These out town taxis waiting for
their customers even in Bristol taxi rank. So what is the point to apply these rules to Bristol taxis
even when most of the taxis are from out town which are not under control of BCC. It is ridiculous
to see that most of the taxis ( out town) have no restriction and some of them have tight rules and
regulations in same working area. So at first BCC should control the out town taxis working in
Bristol city and inside the boundary. Without this control this is not a proper consultation and
absolutely big joke.
I think all taxi drivers should accept card reader, but should NOT have to be displayed. Tinted
windows as long as they are from manufacturer should NOT be an issue. The DBS issue I think
everyone who is involved directly or indirectly with the taxi trade (Hackney or Private Hire) should
all have an advanced DBS check done regardless of position.
I use private hire taxis a lot. The firm I use is very good & I feel safe with them, but some changes
would be helpful. I always pay by cash. I don't want to give my card to anyone, that I don't know.
I recently made a donation to charity & now I find that their computer system has been hacked &
personal information has been exposed. The less companies that have payment details, the less
chance there is of hackers accessing private information.

Page 69 of 80

Page 305

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
DBS and PHV Operator requirements are clear, and the other requirements are listed are all about
the business of running a taxi. But there is still no check/test on the quality of driving which is
equally an issue of safety for the driver, the passenger(s) and other road users. The govt.
scrapped their test 6 years ago and nothing has been brought in to replace it.
As a cyclist I have been involved in 2 accidents in the last 5 years, both involving taxis and in both
cases the taxi driver was found to be at fault. After one of them, four pupils at the school where I
taught told me they had also been hit by taxis in the previous year. There is/was a facility of the
Council website to report poor/dangerous driving on the part of taxis. It appears either not to be
monitored or submissions are ignored.
A regular inspection (every 3 years?) of driving would involve cost but others’ safety is more
important. Maybe the cost could be included in the license renewal fee.
When I use a 'taxi' as I need to because of mobility issues I need to feel that the person who drops
me outside my home usually in the evening is trustworthy and an honest person. There have been
occasions when I have felt unsafe in the past.
Our answers are based on improving the taxi structure and safeguarding of all Bristol Private Hire
and Hackney Carriage drivers and operators. also to make it a fair and level playing field for Bristol
drivers.
Because I agree with the changes that need to be put in place.
I also think private hire fares need to be regulated, there are companies competing with each other
by lowering fares, this is not fair on the drivers especially as commission is now at a record high in
Bristol
Some of these new rules will prevent many drivers trying to earn an income taxiing. Drivers who
have settled here as asylum seekers & refugees etc are often fully qualified for another profession
in their own countries, but unable to practice here due to the costs of requalifying under British
systems. Other drivers would not be able to work anywhere else if such a flexible work option was
not available. This hammer blow of regulation is not the way to bring about any change & it is not
condusive to an incusive society with equal opportunities.
Anything that adds to the cost of being a taxi driver will penalise the most vulnerable of those
working in the sector - & penalise those who need to use taxis who cannot afford their own car,or
are not able to drive, as fares will simply increase & less drivers will be available. Iot will drive the
smaller less formal businesses out of business which means even less services availabe in the
local community - & more money for the "big boys" of the taxi running business. Small local firms
remember who you are, can assist with carrying shopping & particular needs as they remember
you & in my experience are helpful & friendly. I have only had cause to complain twice in a lifetime
of using the private taxis & both times the proprieter responded. The firms I have generally always
used rely on many drivers whose first language is not English. It is educational both ways!! These
are the most obvious drivers who would be penalised by some of these rules. It is also important
that those cultures who are more likely to use things like cannabis are not unduly penalised. The
worst substance for affecting driving & behaviour is alcoho but far less people are charged for
using this irresponsibly.
Due to these proposed rules institutional racism will also penalise those woking in taxi business
due to the fact that most drivers are working class and /or from ethnic minorities & consequently
proven to be much much more likely to be stopped, cautioned, charged etc & so to have a
criminal record - whilst a white person would never have been stopped or charged in that very
same offence recorded.
The timing of this consultation is totally inappropriate when some of us are relying on taxis to get
any of our shopping or to go anywhere anywhere at all. It is time to encourage not to bring in costly
new rules. Public transport is now more difficult than ever for those of us who are ill or disabled,
not only because nobody stands up to offer their seats any more & the buses are often too
crowded to sit. Also fares are continually increasing & routes lessening. On top of this we now
have a pandemic with no knowledge of when or if it might end,taxis are ow the safest way to travel
Page 70 of 80

Page 306

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
& a lifwe -saver for many of us. Asusual it is the people who are most vulnerable whether
financially/socially/ health - wise/economically who would be most il-affected by this over
bureaucratic, unnecessary raft of changes. Private taxtis are essential to many of us & their
flexibility and availability are a regular necessity. Particulalry those for whom English is not a first
language. To require that people who are simply driving someone from A- B & taking a fare to not
only study but to take an exam is unnecessary.
They provide a friendly reliable driving service in my over 50 years of using private taxis.
This consultation should not even be considered without the future of road use & public transport
being fully considered at the same time. Taxis are an essentila part of the present & future
environmentally & socially. Nothing about transport should be considered without allowing for the
potential of a continuing presence of viruses.
To be honest I am shocked that there is not already a requirement for DBS.
Pre COVID I used private hire regularly.
Many of them are beyond my ability to comment. Those I agree with, I have said so.
What I would be very glad to have printed, whether in Dentons.net or any other circulated list, is a
choice of licenced
independent taxi firms. At present Vcars have become overweening, and so dedicated to answer
calls with a machine that they won't listen to particular needs. The only one advertising in Dentons
this year is Zcars :- fine, but please let us have a list of other choices.
I strongly agree with all these proposals as they are common sense. They would mean that the
standard of drivers would increase and so would public confidence
Card payment should be optional not mandatory
Becouse that’s what it should be which is my honest evaluation
Tinted windows should be permitted regardless of use of film or factory as long as they meet
government guide line. The results would be the same. If it's a safety concern for the driver and/or
its passengers then majority of drivers that operate within Bristol city transporting the citizens of
Bristol city are license holder from other councils which permit conditions that contradict Bristol city
license conditions.
Becouse that’s my opinion
It’s my thinking
I disagree about the English test because we already had a lot of tests before example, the
knowledge test skills test NVQ so what else are you asking us it has been a difficult year for us.
Having a mandatory requirement for contactless or card payment will put taxi drivers into the
modern age. I use taxis about one or two times a month, and perhaps the only time I use cash for
any of my transactions (shopping, buses, food etc.) nowadays is taxis, apart from someone that
does some gardening once every 3 months or so (not in lockdown). Taxis are almost the total
exception to the trend towards near universal contactless payments. So I carry cash just so I can
pay taxis. It is very rare that a taxi driver has or offers card payment in Bristol, contrasting to many
other parts of the world.
In addition on the rare occasions I have used a taxi, the driver has not always had the correct
change, especially where the taxi is late and I don't have time to wait I have paid more than the
agreed fare.
All the proposals seem to protect the public and ensure appropriate people are employed as taxi
drivers.

Page 71 of 80

Page 307

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
Its completely HC driver discretion the mode of receipt of payment, ie; cash or card. Please don't
impose another burden by making card machine mandatory.
Another important suggestion regarding PH operators licence that a law must be made nationally
regarding PH job recipiency .A policy to pick up from their own licensed council area and drop
anywhere. Presently this law only applied to HC drivers. This will at least assure HC and PH
drivers, minimum jobs and a justification to holding that council licence.
conditions appropriate to improve safety & control of PH operations
I agree with the majority of the changes, I’m less happy with the English qualification and think it’s
much more important that my taxi driver has a knowledge of Geography (some drivers have no
clue where they are driving to) and the Highway Code, both of which have been lacking including:
using phone whilst driving, not paying attention or giving space to cyclists, not using indicators, not
waiting to allow cyclists to pass. A regular resit of their theory test every 5 years might be much
more valuable especially keeping me safe. The tints are also a concern for lone female travellers
who want to be seen.
I think that any job in which the person doing the job meets with members of the public in confined
non-public spaces should be vetted for certain types of criminal history. When you hire a taxi you
are putting your trust in a stranger. You are entering a confined space and one which can be
moved and controlled by the driver, so the type of risk someone taking a taxi is subjecting
themselves to is unusual. And although most taxi drivers do their jobs well, there need to be
safeguards, just as there are in teaching and other professions where there is an imbalance in
control.
Good for public safety however if the driver first language is English language they he should be
exempt from a English test
All pretty obvious and should help and reassure both sides
I believe more checks are done
Taxi should not be sub let
To have trust in the taxi service that we are using is safe at time of the day or night, after night out
(2/3 o’clock in the morning), not worry that the drive is going to
Abuse is position by charging more, going the long a way round or even worse. To have a clear
picture of the driver at any time of the day or night. &etc
With regard to the mandatory payment system I think the ownership should be on the driver and
not the proprietor. As I hire vehicles, I do not want the responsibility of managing customers
payments on myself.
These proposals are very desirable from the point of view of security and to protect the many
highly competent, well trained drivers who have been undermined by indiscriminate issue of
licenses.
That said, Bristol has higher fares than other big cities even London and that discourages people
from using properly licensed, safe cars. There are currently too many licences for cab use.
Paradoxically, fewer licences would allow fares to be reduced.
Will there be requirement for drivers to do another safeguarding course when we have already
done one as a requirement of our work with NHS passengers as most v cars drivers have had to
do only a short time ago
I think all the proposals are for the good of the trade, i would how ever see that there is no cost
involved to licensing on any checks DBS etc. Can’t theses checks for criminal acts and history etc
be paid for by licensing and up dates.
I would kindly to request vehicle age limit to be extended 1 or 2 years as the vehicles where
parked almost 1 and half years as bristol vehicle license holder which is 2012/2014 and didn't drive
for almost 1 and half year due no one can afford to rent. So
I have renewed my DBS last year (2020) would I need to do it again in order for me to go on the
update service?
Am agree with that
I am taxi driver so it’s gone affect me in the future if I don’t participate in this Survey so I need to
Page 72 of 80

Page 308

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
make my chose thanks
I completely disagree for the assessment of the english language as an existing hackney carriage
driver for over 23 years experience.
Regards.
I don’t think that the existing holders need to do the english test because they have been working
for many years and they are very experienced. However, I feel that they should do this test for the
upcoming drivers .
Card payment as most of the drivers are already using card payment making them spend more
money on special terminal holders will be unnecessary just a signage should do with the
requirement.
Well they understandable and good for public
I feel that is my help the council and the trade
My selections vary, however a few of the items I’d describe as important are the English test/s... a
basic command of English written and verbal should be the bare minimum requirement...
Also DBS expiry leading to potential penalties is harsh as it could possibly be overlooked quite
easily depending on circumstances at the time.
I think all positive changes in business should be implemented to make safe environment.All we
want council should take notice on cross border work.you have made changes in all fields apart
from cross border permission to work for p/h.please look into this which is effecting all Bristol
drivers
I think new rules should be for new drivers not existing drivers, thanks
Question 3. Card Payments. As a Hackney Carriage Driver I do carry a card payment machine but
as a trader I should not be compelled to accept this as a means of payment. There are
circumstances when cash in advance of a journey is preferable for peace of mind and if the
required advance payment exceeds the metered charge, change is easily given.
Question 6. Assessment of previous convictions. This should be a matter for those with experience
of offenders,
not a simple survey.
There is no space in my vehicle to fix the card reader.
DBS online system is most convenient
what about advanced driving skills training? Many taxis drive too fast, do not obey speed limits,
and do not give the required space when overtaking bicycles. They also stop in the bike box at
lights.
I want to be safe outside a taxi as well as inside!
I fully support increasing the period for which a person convicted of violence or dishonesty cannot
drive a taxi. But I disagree with the similar policy on drugs. I don't want to be driven by a violent or
dishonest person, but I have no problem about someone who spliffs up in their spare time. Further
more, I can see this part of the policy being the basis for discrimination against minority groups
who are perceived as having a tendency to use recreational drugs.
I often feel intimated getting into a taxi as an older disabled woman, so i currently avoid them when
i can
charges are often opaque, drivers often take "the longest possible route" and pretend to ignore/
not hear you/ not understand when you ask them why they are taking a long route, taxi's are often
filty dirty and smell of cigarette smoke, drivers often fail to use seat belts and of course charges in
bristol are extortionate compared to other cities (I have a lot of experience of taking taxis in london
as i worked there for 10 years, where charges are considerably less, drivers are less intrusive and
cabs are much cleaner)
All the new proposals seem to provide more safety and transparency's to both operators, drivers
and users of cabs.
Page 73 of 80

Page 309

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
I use taxi services much more than I used to and realise how important regulation is to my safety
and well being when having to use this form of transport. The increase in unregulated online
services is making it difficult for licensed taxi drivers to compete and forcing them to put pressure
upon regulating bodies to reduce or change the license standards to the detriment, I believe, to the
safety of customers. As an elderly, female customer, I am very anxious that regulating bodies do
not sucombe to such pressure and, indeed, am prepared to pay a little more if this safeguards the
businesses of regulated taxi services.
I feel safer in cabs without darkened windows. It means people can see you if you are in distress.
Taxi driver standards of behaviour are in decline. This is an industry that needs closer regulation.
Card payments does not take into account of many who pay by cash having no credit card.
A person using public transport, including taxis, is putting their life in the hands of a stranger.
Those seeking to provide a taxi service must demonstrate that they can be trusted to safeguard
the lives of those using their service. To do this they must have the necessary skills to operate
their vehicle but also provide evidence of their ability to meet wider service criteria. Those unable,
or unwilling, to provide sufficient evidence should not be given responsibility for the lives of others.
English language so important, I’ve felt really uncomfortable regarding communication with some
drivers.
Not too sure about the driving skills of some taxi drivers who just have a city license plate just
attached to rear of car.
TO BE HONEST THERE ARE TOO MANY PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES IN BRISTOL AS IT IS.
MOSTO FO THESE OPERATORS WOULD BE BETTER SERVICED GOING ONTO THE FIRST
BUS SYSTEM AND BECOMING BUS DRIVERS SO THAT PUBLIC TRANSPORT CAN BE
MAINTAINED.
Safety of the public!
I use Uber Taxis and currently use a mask inside the taxi. The Uber service does not require the
driver or customer to talk at all and no money exchanges hands. The customer controls the pickup
and drop down places. The service is very prompt and efficient far exceeding the old fashioned
taxi services.
I would object to all but the basic English speaking and written testing as I feel it could be
considered racist and excluding.
The Uber taxi service has enriched my life enormously, which no other taxi service has ever done.
Please send me details of the proposed oral and written tests.
Thank you [personal information redacted]
The Hackney carriages operating from the city centre routinely suggest that they don’t do the
meter on certain trips (to anywhere in south glos). They then seem to make up a price. I feel that
this is not right. Additionally when you get in a hackney and the car is in terrible condition. Perhaps
some sort of requirement for enhanced levels of maintenance. Finally when you get in and are not
even certain the driver is the same person as who holds the licence to operate. Perhaps some sort
of whistleblowing service to stop fraudulent use of one licence by many individuals.
There should be nothing to hide in the back of a taxi, therefore I am against the use of tinted glass.
I hope that there is included somewhere the need for low pollution propulsion. I recognise that
immigrants will want to be taxi drivers as their first job in this country and therefore expect that the
English language test will be focused on this as a way of helping them to settle in.
I don't drive and need to be reassured that use of taxis is safe - I am an older woman who travels
alone. Card payment is essential.
Cashless transactions would make Taxis safer for operators.
Mostly used for going to and from Bristol Airport, where the cartel needs to be broken up.
The arrangement for taxis is nothing short of scandalous!
Page 74 of 80

Page 310

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
As a service provider for the general public, issues of probity, fitness, lucidity, and fluency in
English are essential.
Taxi drivers are professionals and therefore need to meet professional level driving skills,
communication, responsibility for maintaining vehicles etc. I strongly agree with all measures that
hold driver to a high standard in all aspects of the job and to regularly review their standards. As a
cyclist I'd like to see special training required for taxis about driving around cyclists in bust urban
setting. I experience poor driving and danger from cars labelled as private hire and Hackney.
Driving over speed limit is another danger to cyclists and everyone.
The focus must be on the safety of the passengers.
Tinted windows should not be allowed as that migt hide criminality such as a passenger being
assaulted in the back of a taxi. All windows should be clear.
I would not wish to discriminate against any person but basic english language skills for drivers of
english speaking passengers are essential for confidence and safety. Passengers should also be
able to request dirvers proficient in other languages as well, so there should be proficiency tests
for other languages in a similar way to how the council offers documents in multiple languages.
All vehicles should be fitted with stop - start technology and all drivers should have to comply with
no idling of engines when stationary
My personal views are every person using taxis should be able to feel safe in the knowledge
that the driver has been checked on a frequent basis.
It gives much greater comfort to know that service providers are regulated and required to maintain
certain standards. It is important that people can be confident in getting a taxi/phv.
I feel that a good knowledge of English is important to a driver, certainly as far as understanding
your instructions, along with a good grasp of where places are in the city. I am blind and as such
cannot help with navigation. Drivers should certainly be well checked out but i marked the following
question about operators as agree as i think that those who only work in the office don't need to be
checked out as much as drivers in the vehicle with passengers. My only thought about tinted
windows was that for those who have reduced but some sight this can be quite challenging for
viewing things within the car but also being able to keep their barings/help navigate to their
destination. That said i am not unduly concerned and non-taxis may of course have a tint.
Because I feel the council is going to stitch us up with the card reading machines they will probably
make us have all the same machines and probably the most expensive ones as well.
The proposals are a proactive way to safeguard customers and to reassure them that their driver
has been thoroughly vetted. The public needs to feel confident that getting into any Taxi in Bristol
they can be as safe as it possibly could be.
Taxi drivers have responsibility for people's lives and safety and they must be able to show that
they are proper people to be given such trust.
I am extremely disappointed to see that there are no proposed changes to encourage or mandate
the use of low or zero emissions vehicles. There are now a wider range of zero emissions
vehicles available, suitable to be taxis. Furthermore, taxis are ideal suited to battery elctric
vehicles, undertaking numerous short journeys in the city centre.
I have not been a great user of Bristol Taxis, but plan to used them more once our personal
freedoms return.
Any additional improvement in the checks and regulations on BCC approved taxis must be an
improvement, as all citizens of Bristol may use them as a service. We haver to be able to
demonstrate to Central Government and the possible Taxis customers that they are safe to use.
As a regular user of taxis, I have sometimes had difficulty understanding drivers and tthey have
difficulty understanding me.
It is deficalt time for taxi trade we do not need rules we fincial help
I think these checks should be in place. Customer safety and offering a variety of payment options
should already be in place.
Page 75 of 80

Page 311

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
The reasons for my answers are the following my family my wife and daughters feel unsafe using
private hire vehicles many times they have tried to come home from town and the drivers are not
friendly and a little bit familiar with their attitude towards my daughters I have used them myself as
I’m disabled and find some of them very on helpful and take me on roots which are longer than
they should be I’ve been driving through Bristol for the last 35 years and no Bristol as you say let
the back of my hand and on several occasions I’ve asked her had to ask them where they were
going I feel there are too many private hire vehicles and also too many hackney cabs in Bristol you
see them queueing up for hours without getting a lift I think the weekends evenings there should
be allowed more on the road and not so many during the week they are not needed I also think the
council should employ more undercover taxi officers to check on the behaviour and the service
that these driversSupply to members of the public or even have secret customers like
supermarkets have secret shoppers have secret taxi Riders to report back on the behaviour and
the service of the drivers most people I talk to you in the disabled community don’t think the
service is good at all and it’s mainly down to the attitude of the drivers I would love to hear back
from someone regarding the comments
I strongly agree that some taxi drivers need to improve on their english language skills as this
would make it much easier for everyone.
I think with some of these changes, the Council is trying to pass its responsibility to Drivers and
operators.
I don't think there it's big difference between them.
anyone working with the public should do the DBS check to make sure the public is safe in the
vehicle
More ‘mystery shoppers’ needed to investigate taxi drivers. The number of times I’ve tried to get a
taxi and they’ve wanted to do a set rate instead of by the meter and then they argue that I’m south
Glos and not Bristol (I’m definitely Bristol).
Honestly, besides the mandatory card payments I am almost indifferent to the rest of the proposals
here. I do believe in second chances so do not want people who have "done their time" to be
continuously penalised. What i do want from the Bristol blue taxis is; 1. Card payments - no
quibbles 2. Polite Drivers - level of English is indifferent, once they know where they are going. 3.
Comfortable cars 4. Safe driving 5. Reasonable prices.
I use uber as the drivers obviously don't need cash, can be reached easily and they are always
polite and cars are always comfortable. I begrudgingly use a blue taxi from the station once in a
blue moon.
I had experience of this when serving in the police of the consequences of not having the same
procedures in place that most other walks of life require. It would also provide a sense of
confidence when using taxis etc.
Health and Safety for the general public and for the drivers and businesses. Security for all
passengers and fellow road users. V cars already use non cash payments, In my experience you
feel more safe driven in a taxi than on First buses.
The safety of drivers and passengers is the number priority.
when you visit other countries, towns and cities drivers are polite, helpful and dressed tidely which
makes you feel very welcome
I was disagree with some points like language skills written & speaking, because of some driver
has already been taxiing more 10 years
I would like to know as many safety precautions are in place to make my journey safe and stress
free as possible, as few people carry cash due the Covid 19 pandemic card payments are
becomming the norm.

Page 76 of 80

Page 312

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
I am a disabled woman who's often taken taxis. I get a variety of responses, mainly positive to
needing help to access the vehicle with my wheelchair. However, I have had issues with private
hire drivers refusing to take my wheelchair as it doesn't fit in every boot. Sometimes I have been
charged extra for needing a "larger vehicle" to fit my manual wheelchair into - not true, it fits in
most cars without problem. However, when I report it, I find that PHVs are licensed differently to
Hackney Carriages and can get away with behaving in a discriminatory way. I also had a nasty
situation with one of the drivers of a local PHV company, when challenged about charging me
extra, he became really angry raising his voice at me and speeding. This really scared me, but
again its difficult to do anything if the company won't act and they aren't covered by rules on driver
behaviour or needing DBS checks.
All cabs should be electric
I have my own contactless card payment machine & it is visible to customer.
I will not agree to have another one installed by the council.
English language test has already being tested at gold standard I don’t know why it’s necessary to
impose a new condition. DBS monthly subscription is just another cost for us.
All texi must use card payment and no cash
I disagree with drivers having to provide a basic DBS disclosure as I believe they should have to
provide an enhanced disclosure. Hackney cab and private hire drivers are responsible for
transporting vulnerable people, both adults and children so it is vital that their customers are safe.
More checks should be done to make sure a vulnerable person is not getting into a cab with a
person they may not be safe with. This is even more important in light of the Sarah Everard
tragedy.
Why does it take a survey to figure out that companies like Uber have been more successful in this
city because they allow card payments? That people don’t want to go to a cash machine in the rain
before catching a ride home.
My point is, this process is outdated and can’t keep up with far more innovative service providers.
Why not:
1. Create a central app for people in the city with built in card payment
2. Create a separate feature allowing women drivers to be hailed by genial members of the public
if preferred
Previous data has shown that many taxi drivers have been charged with sexual and violent crimes
in the UK. This is NOT acceptable and should not be tolerated.
UBER is very popular for it's ease of payment method, there is a demand for card machines.
Disclosure of unspent convictions should come with clarity that an unspent conviction does not
mean 'no jjob'

Page 77 of 80

Page 313

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report

8

Appendix 3 – Outreach session minutes

Taxi Consultation- Outreach Session- Taxi Forum
10th March 2021
4 attendees:
Questions received:
1. redacted - It would be useful if we can build in conflict management into the training.
2. National Std’s 5.14 should not be given the benefit of the doubt- what will our approach be?
A: As we find our feet with the new policy likely to be a combination of referral to committee and
delegation to Licensing Manager/Team Leader. For low level offending say shoplifting when very
young, then perhaps a more lenient approach can be taken.
3. redacted. The requirement relating reporting of complaints needs to be a condition to
ensure there is no conflict with GDPR/data protection.
A: Yes we can certainly take that away and amend.
4. redacted. Fixed location of car readers. Carl confirmed as drafted they must be in fixed
location in view of customer.
A: Confirmed we can reviewed this providing there is suitable signage advising card payment can
be taken.

Taxi Consultation- Outreach Session 2nd March 2021
21attendees
Questions received:
1. Will this apply in S Glos?
A: Yes, all LA’s are required to implement.
2. Tints for HC’s
A: Yes, a similar question was received at the last session and that is something we can look into.
3. Are we going to save more taxi’s. Numbers are reducing.
A: This shift as a result of changes in consumer habits and demand continues and that trend is
likely to continue. HC’s play a vital role as part of the transport infrastructure but we are unable to
say what that will ultimately look like.
Page 78 of 80

Page 314

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
4. Certificates of good character. redacted. Previously I have asked for a character reference
and you have refused. How will this work. They are issued by embassies. If you have not
come to the attention of authorities in the country you are visiting that is a good thing but we
cannot issue references. Iftikhar became very aggressive and call us all liers- he then left
the meeting.
Another person commented it would be better if they called them Police checks- yes that may be a
better name but that is what they are legally called
5. Most countries don’t offer Certificates of Good Character.
A: Probably the other way around, it is only a small number that don’t.
6. redacted. When will this be implemented?
A: This is consultation, take away responses, and present back to committee- unable to say
precise date.
7. When will drivers become employed as a result of the Uber case.
A: Not something that is relevant to this consultation.
8. Cost of card reader fees.
A: Requested by the trade, a balance between improved accessibility by customers by persons
travelling without cash and small cost for payment. Need to compete with App based booking
providers offering cashless services.
9. Need more financial help due to Covid
A: Not relevant to this consultation
10. MOT’s Sandy Park like S Glos.
A:Cost of Certificate of Conformity actually more expensive in S Glos if you combine costs. It is not
just an MOT. No proposal to change.
11. Cost of Fares for PH.
A: Private Hire fares are set by the Operator. LA has no control only HC fares.

Taxi Consultation- Outreach Session 25th February
18 attendees
Questions received:
1. Are they being implemented across WECA
A: all LA’s are required to implement the std’s. Not sure where each LA is with progressing theirs.
2. Safeguarding for school transport- is that sufficient?
Page 79 of 80

Page 315

Taxi Policy Review – Consultation report
A: No, the safeguarding training being implemented covers all forms of vulnerability and
safeguarding not just CSE.
3. Cost of Safeguarding training
A: will be procured and likely to be incorporated into licensing fees.
4. When will tinted window policy be implemented
A: when the policy is adopted by Committee after consultation.
5. Can HC’s be allowed tints so we can have equal policy with Private Hire vehicles.
A: Certainly something we can look at.
6. When will the policy be implemented
A: As above
7. If card readers are fitted and driver takes money upfront, what happens at the end of the
journey of the meter price is lower.
A: either don’t take payment upfront or give refund for the balance. If travelling outside of Bristol
District then no reason why fee cant be agreed with customer.
8. Who is going to police the policy
A: Ongoing process in the normal way it is now.
9. Do you have a F & P policy that can be used by Operators
A: Using the F & P policy form our policy would be a good starting point for operators.

9

Appendix 4 – Email responses

[Redacted] – Comments/questions included in Excel change log

End of document

Page 80 of 80

Page 316

Equality Impact Assessment [version 2.9]
Title: Taxi Policy Review 2021
☒ Policy ☐ Strategy ☐ Function ☐ Service
☐ Other [please state]
Directorate: Growth and Regeneration
Service Area: Regulatory Services

☐ New
☐ Already exists / review ☒ Changing
Lead Officer name: Carl Knights
Lead Officer role: Senior Licensing Officer

Step 1: What do we want to do?
The purpose of an Equality Impact Assessment is to assist decision makers in understanding the impact of proposals
as part of their duties under the Equality Act 2010. Detailed guidance to support completion can be found here
Equality Impact Assessments (EqIA) (sharepoint.com).
This assessment should be started at the beginning of the process by someone with a good knowledge of the
proposal and service area, and sufficient influence over the proposal. It is good practice to take a team approach to
completing the equality impact assessment. Please contact the Equality and Inclusion Team early for advice and
feedback.

1.1 What are the aims and objectives/purpose of this proposal?
Briefly explain the purpose of the proposal and why it is needed. Describe who it is aimed at and the intended aims /
outcomes. Where known also summarise the key actions you plan to undertake. Please use plain English, avoiding
jargon and acronyms. Equality Impact Assessments are viewed by a wide range of people including decision-makers
and the wider public.
To revise and amend all Bristol City Council Hackney carriage and private hire licensing policies into one document,
and make a number of amendments due to:






the introduction of statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards by the Department for Transport
changes identified in respect of private hire operators
requests from the taxi trade to review the private hire vehicle policy in respect of tints
a mandatory requirement for hackney carriages to have electronic payment facilities
Updates to licence conditions and policies to remove old/outdated conditions or enhance public safety.

The key amendments include:
1. Adding a requirement to the policy that applicants and drivers are required to sign up to the Disclosure
and Barring Service (DBS) Update Service and what happens if drivers to not sign up to the service or
their status changes. (Recommended by the Department for Transport Statutory Taxi and Private Hire
Vehicle Standards issued under powers contained within section 177(1) of the Policing and Crime Act 2017
– the Department for Transport expects the recommendations in the standards to be implemented unless
there is a compelling local reason not to).
2. Introduction of certificate of good character for applicants and licence holders for drivers, vehicles and
private hire operators from each country if they have lived outside of the UK for a continuous period of
three months (or more) within the last five years of the date of their licence application, save in
exceptional circumstances. (Recommended by the Department for Transport Statutory Taxi and Private
Hire Vehicle Standards).
3. Introduction of requirement for the Council to be able to require applicants and licence holders to
complete a mandatory test for their language proficiency for drivers and the ability for the Council to
require drivers, vehicle proprietors and private hire operators to complete this test. (Recommended by

Page 317

the Department for Transport Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards).
4. To introduce a private hire operator policy and guidelines relating to the relevance of criminal behaviour
and amend the conditions attached to such a licence. This will allow us to ensure that anyone who holds
this licence is fit and proper to hold a licence. (Majority of contents recommended by the Department for
Transport Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards).
The policy will also mean that licence holders have to have minimum standards to ensure that all of their
employees have the appropriate level of training in order to operate safely.
5. To introduce a policy in respect of mandatory card payments. Card payments would lead to an easier and
quicker method for customers to pay taxis fares, While stopping the need for customers to ask Hackney
Carriage drivers to stop off at cash machines if they need extra cash to pay a fare.
This technology can be beneficial is if a customer were to lose their cash and debit cards, the customer can if they
wish use their smartphone device to pay a fare as if using a contactless debit card. This could stop the need for
vulnerable people walking home at night and putting themselves in a potentially unsafe situation.
6. To amend the private hire vehicle policy and vehicle inspection standard so that tints are allowed in the
rear side windows of private hire vehicles all other aspects of the policy remain unchanged.
The current private hire inspection standard policy on tints was presented to members on 12 February 2013 and it
was agreed that the implementation of the new standards would take effect from 1st April 2013.
7. To consolidate and amend all Hackney carriage and private hire licensing policies/conditions in line with
the published Department of Transport Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle standards which came
into force in July 2020 into one cohesive policy document. These changes include revisions to Disclosure
and Barring Service Checks (DBS), Licensee self-reporting in respect of convictions and caution they may
receive, DBS checks for vehicle proprietors and operators, mandatory safeguarding training and
significant changes to the guidelines relating to relevance of criminal behaviour.

1.2 Who will the proposal have the potential to affect?
☐ Bristol City Council workforce
☐ Commissioned services
Additional comments:

☒ Service users
☒ The wider community
☐ City partners / Stakeholder organisations

1.3 Will the proposal have an equality impact?
Could the proposal affect access levels of representation or participation in a service, or does it have the potential to
change e.g. quality of life: health, education, or standard of living etc.?
If ‘No’ explain why you are sure there will be no equality impact, then skip steps 2-4 and request review by Equality
and Inclusion Team.
If ‘Yes’ complete the rest of this assessment, or if you plan to complete the assessment at a later stage please state
this clearly here and request review by the Equality and Inclusion Team.

☒ Yes

☐ No

[please select]

Page 318

Step 2: What information do we have?
2.1 What data or evidence is there which tells us who is, or could be affected?
Please use this section to demonstrate an understanding of who could be affected by the proposal. Include general
population data where appropriate, and information about people who will be affected with particular reference to
protected and other relevant characteristics: https://www.bristol.gov.uk/people-communities/measuring-equalitiessuccess .
Use one row for each evidence source and say which characteristic(s) it relates to. You can include a mix of
qualitative and quantitative data e.g. from national or local research, available data or previous consultations and
engagement activities.
Outline whether there is any over or under representation of equality groups within relevant services - don't forget
to benchmark to the local population where appropriate. Links to available data and reports are here Data, statistics
and intelligence (sharepoint.com). See also: Bristol Open Data (Quality of Life, Census etc.); Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment (JSNA); Ward Statistical Profiles.
For workforce / management of change proposals you will need to look at the diversity of the affected teams using
available evidence such as HR Analytics: Power BI Reports (sharepoint.com) which shows the diversity profile of
council teams and service areas. Identify any over or under-representation compared with Bristol economically
active citizens for different characteristics. Additional sources of useful workforce evidence include the Employee
Staff Survey Report and Stress Risk Assessment Form

Data / Evidence Source

Summary of what this tells us

[Include a reference where known]

Based on the demographics of the City of Bristol the
majority of citizens which are potential taxi customers:

Disability

Licence holders



1

78% are White British compared to 80% the
national average
- 17% have a Limiting Long-term Illness or
Disability which is slightly lower than the
national average of 18%
- 50% are women which is slightly lower than
the national average of 51%
There are over 14.1 million disabled people in the UK1.
8% of children are disabled.
19% of working age adults are disabled
44% of pension age adults are disabled
-

Taxis and minicabs are vital for many disabled and
older people and for some the only accessible
transport mode (Beuret, 1995).
In Bristol there are currently 459 licensed hackney
carriage vehicles, 809 private hire vehicles, 624
hackney carriage drivers and 1047 private hire drivers.
Anecdotally the majority of Bristol taxi drivers are
male, and a large proportion of taxi drivers are from
Black, Asian and minority ethnic backgrounds, and
Muslim.

Source: Family Resources Survey (2018 to 19)

Page 319

2.2 Do you currently monitor relevant activity by the following protected characteristics?
☒ Age
☐ Marriage and Civil Partnership
☒ Religion or Belief

☒ Disability
☒ Pregnancy/Maternity
☒ Sex

☐ Gender Reassignment
☒ Race
☒ Sexual Orientation

2.3 Are there any gaps in the evidence base?
Where there are gaps in the evidence, or you don’t have enough information about some equality groups, include an
equality action to find out in section 4.2 below. This doesn’t mean that you can’t complete the assessment without
the information, but you need to follow up the action and if necessary, review the assessment later. If you are
unable to fill in the gaps, then state this clearly with a justification.
For workforce related proposals all relevant characteristics may not be included in HR diversity reporting (e.g.
pregnancy/maternity). For smaller teams diversity data may be redacted. A high proportion of not known/not
disclosed may require an action to address under-reporting.
We have tried to carry out a diversity survey by circulating to the taxi trade. Currently we have received 38
responses. Therefore the statistics may not be representative of the taxi trade. However the responses show of the
respondents:
Age
11% of respondents were under 24 years old
38% of respondents were between 25-49 years old
26% of respondents were between 50-64 years old
Disability
87% of respondents do not consider themselves to be a disabled person
11% of respondents consider themselves to be a disabled person
3% of respondents preferred not to say
Sex
97% of respondents are male
3% of respondents are female
Ethnic background
15% respondents identified themselves as English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/Irish/British
2% of respondents identified themselves as Gypsy or Roma
9% of respondents identified themselves as East European
2% of respondents identified themselves as any other White Background
2% of respondents identified themselves as Indian
19% of respondents identified themselves as Pakistani
6% of respondents identified themselves as Bangladeshi
8% of respondents identified themselves as any other Asian background
8% of respondents identified themselves as White and Black African
2% of respondents identified themselves as White and Asian
2% of respondents identified themselves as Any other mixed background
6% of respondents identified themselves as African
11% of respondents identified themselves as Somali
4% of respondents identified themselves as Arab
Sexual orientation
58% of respondents identified their sexuality as Heterosexual/straight
3% of respondents identified their sexuality as bisexual
8% of respondents identified their sexuality as Other
Religious beliefs
21% of respondents identified their religious belief as Christian

Page 320

68% of respondents identified their religious belief as Muslim
Pregnancy and maternity
97% responded they were not pregnant or had given birth in the last 26 weeks
3% responded that they were pregnant or had given birth in the last 26 weeks
Refugee
95% responded that they did not consider themselves to be a refugee
5% responded that they consider themselves to be a refugee
English as first language
39% responded that English was their first language
61% responded that English is not their first language

2.4 How have you involved communities and groups that could be affected?
You will nearly always need to involve and consult with internal and external stakeholders during your assessment.
The extent of the engagement will depend on the nature of the proposal or change. This should usually include
individuals and groups representing different relevant protected characteristics. Please include details of any
completed engagement and consultation and how representative this had been of Bristol’s diverse communities. See
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/people-communities/equalities-groups.
Include the main findings of any engagement and consultation in Section 2.1 above.
If you are managing a workforce change process or restructure please refer to Managing change or restructure
(sharepoint.com) for advice on consulting with employees etc. Relevant stakeholders for engagement about
workforce changes may include e.g. staff-led groups and trades unions as well as affected staff.
External consultation took place between 16 February 2021 and 21 March 2021. The survey was published on the
Council’s Consultation and Engagement Hub, accessible to all members of the public, and advertised via social
media channels. In addition to this the following parties were also notified:
•
•
•
•
•

Hackney carriage and private hire licence holders,
Equalities groups,
Avon and Somerset Constabulary,
Bristol City Council Councillors
Partner agencies,

Members of the trade were also invited to briefing sessions so the proposals could be explained in further detail.

2.5 How will engagement with stakeholders continue?
Explain how you will continue to engage with stakeholders throughout the course of planning and delivery. Please
describe where more engagement and consultation is required and set out how you intend to undertake it. Include
any targeted work to seek the views of under-represented groups. If you do not intend to undertake it, please set
out your justification. You can ask the Equality and Inclusion Team for help in targeting particular groups.
The proposals are to be presented to the members of the Council’s Public Safety and Protection Committee on 27
July 2021. No further engagement with stakeholders will take place before this time.
However the proposals include a commitment to review the policy no later than 2026. The Licensing Team will
continue to monitor the impact of the policy prior to this time and will take into account any feedback received.
Meetings are held regularly with trade representatives and officers also attend other meetings with partner
agencies. If any issues are raised that require a policy review prior to 2026 the matter will be referred to the
Council’s Public Safety and Protection Committee to seek approval to go out for consultation.

Page 321

Step 3: Who might the proposal impact?
Analysis of impacts must be rigorous. Please demonstrate your analysis of any impacts of the proposal in this
section, referring to evidence you have gathered above and the characteristics protected by the Equality Act 2010.
Also include details of existing issues for particular groups that you are aware of and are seeking to address or
mitigate through this proposal. See detailed guidance documents for advice on identifying potential impacts etc.
Equality Impact Assessments (EqIA) (sharepoint.com)

3.1 Does the proposal have any potentially adverse impacts on people based on their
protected or other relevant characteristics?
Consider sub-categories (different kinds of disability, ethnic background etc.) and how people with combined
characteristics (e.g. young women) might have particular needs or experience particular kinds of disadvantage.
Where mitigations indicate a follow-on action, include this in the ‘Action Plan’ Section 4.2 below.
GENERAL COMMENTS (highlight any potential issues that might impact all or many groups)
All:
a) DBS Update Service - There may be some negative impact when drivers fail to subscribe or maintain
subscription to the service as a new application and fee will be required and this could delay their licence being
issued or their licence may be suspended or revoked.
Also, if the status of a DBS check changes then this could impact on the licence of a driver and delay
applications or a drivers licence may be suspended or revoked.
However this is mitigated by private hire drivers and vehicle proprietors being required to inform the Council in
respect of convictions etc. at the time they are received so in most cases there would be time to consider the
impact on their suitability to hold a licence prior to the licence expiry date.
b) Private Hire Operator Policy - None
c) Card Payments - There may be some negative impact for Hackney carriage proprietors due to the cost element
involved of having a card reader fitted to their vehicle.
d) Tints - Tinted windows could reduce perceived confidence in the safety of private hire vehicles. The
consultation showed that only 40% of members of the public agreed with tints being permitted on the rear
passenger windows. Comments received from members argued against tints being permitted for the reasons
of public safety, especially with respect to females (the ability to see into the vehicle before entry and for other
people to be able to see into the vehicle at all times). One respondent also mentioned the issue that partially
sighted passengers may have if they are unable to see out of the windows due to the level of tint in the glass.
New vehicles tend to have less transparent glass and additional costs of replacing windows is likely to have a
disproportionate impact on Black, Asian and minority ethnic men, and Muslims because of their higher levels of
representations in the taxi trade. The relaxation of tint requirements, if approved, may also result in more
vehicles licensed by Bristol City Council, thereby improving the regulatory regime for consumers booking
vehicles and travelling in Bristol.
However, based on a balanced consideration of the potential impacts, this amendment is not being
recommended by officers. Members will be requested to consider the evidence and make a determination on
the appropriate course of action.
e) Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards - All licensed drivers could be impacted as every licence will
need to be reviewed and depending on the outcome there could be the potential for licences being suspended
or revoked and new applicants being refused due to the changes to the convictions policy and the requirement
for a language proficiency test.
PROTECTED CHARACTERISTICS
Age: Young People
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Potential impacts:
a) DBS Update Service - No negative impact identified

Page 322

Mitigations:
Age: Older People
Potential impacts:

Mitigations:
Disability
Potential impacts:

Mitigations:

Sex
Potential impacts:

Mitigations:
Sexual orientation
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Pregnancy / Maternity
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
Gender reassignment
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:

b) Private Hire Operator Policy - No negative impact anticipated.
c) Card Payments – No negative impact identified
d) Tints - Tinted windows could reduce perceived confidence in the
safety of private hire vehicles for some younger or older passengers.
e) Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards – No negative impact
anticipated.
See general comments above
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
a) DBS Update Service - No negative impact identified
b) Private Hire Operator Policy - No negative impact anticipated.
c) Card Payments – No negative impact identified
d) Tints - Tinted windows could reduce perceived confidence in the
safety of private hire vehicles for some younger or older passengers.
Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards – No negative impact anticipated.
See general comments above
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
a) DBS Update Service - No negative impact identified
b) Private Hire Operator Policy - Any employees of an Operator with learning
difficulties e.g. dyslexia could potentially be affected by introducing minimum
standards of training. The level of training that will be given to employees will be
rigorous and appropriate attention should be paid to employees whose
protected characteristics mean extra training or tuition is necessary.
c) Card Payments – No negative impact identified
d) Tints - People with sight loss may be likely to have more reduced visibility
through windows and reduced light inside vehicles could affect those with sight
loss and other impairments.
e) Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards – All new applicants must
complete a mandatory test of their language proficiency, which should cover
both oral and written English language skills to achieve the objectives stated
above. The Council will have the right to require existing drivers to conduct this
test if required by the Chair of the Public Safety and Protection Committee. Such
a test will be completed the licensees expense.
Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards – Any person sitting the mandatory
test of their language proficiency would be allowed reasonable adjustments as
necessary.
See also general comments above
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
a) DBS Update Service - No negative impact identified. Approximately 98% of
licensed drivers are male.
b) Private Hire Operator Policy - No negative impact anticipated.
c) Card Payments – As ‘All’ above - there may be a disproportionate cost impact as
approximately 98% of licensed drivers are male
d) Tints – As above: tinted windows could reduce perceived confidence in the
safety of private hire vehicles for some female passengers.
e) Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards - No negative impact
anticipated.
See general comments above
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒

Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒

Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒

Page 323

Race
Potential impacts:

Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
(a) DBS Update Service - Due to their high representation Black, Asian and minority
ethnic licensed taxi drivers are likely to be disproportionately impacted by the
initial financial cost of the DBS Update Service and applying for DBS applications
outside of normal timescales.
(b) Private Hire Operator Policy - There is no requirement for Operators to employ
people with a minimum level of English language. There is potential for
Operators to employ people who may experience issues in being trained to
minimum standards when English is not their first language.
(c) Card Payments – As ‘All’ above – there may be a disproportionate cost impact
for Black, Asian and minority ethnic licenced drivers due to their high
representation.
(d) Tints - No negative impact identified.
(e) Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards – Including the introduction of
requirements relating to language proficiency, certificates of good character,
changes in respect of the guidelines relating to the relevant of criminal behaviour
and introduction of basic DBS for vehicle applications.
Due to their high representation Black, Asian and minority ethnic licensed taxi drivers are
likely to be disproportionately impacted by the financial costs of new DBS applications,
certificates of good character.
Black, Asian and minority ethnic drivers are also likely to be disproportionately impacted
by the strengthening of the guidelines on the relevance of criminal behaviour
(convictions policy) due to their higher representation amongst taxi drivers.
Members of the trade or applicants who are Black, Asian or minority ethnic may also be
disproportionately impacted by the requirements for a certificate of good character as
they may be more likely to have lived outside of the UK for a continuous period of three
months or more.
The language proficiency test may affect existing licensees wishing to renew their licence.
Those that obtained a licence prior to the introduction of the Gold Standard Training
Program in 2011 have not previously had to undergo a language proficiency test. The
English language requirement may therefore become a barrier to income generation
should a driver be unable to renew their licence.

Mitigations:
Religion or
Belief
Potential impacts:

All licensed drivers could be impacted as every licence will need to be reviewed and
depending on the outcome there could be the potential for licences being suspended or
revoked and new applicants being refused due to the changes to the convictions policy.
The proposals are justified on the basis of ensuring the safety of the travelling public.
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
(a) DBS Update Service - No negative impact identified.
(b) (b) Private Hire Operator Policy - No negative impact anticipated.
(c) Card Payments – As ‘All’ above - there may be a disproportionate cost impact for
Muslim licensed drivers due to their high representation
(d) Tints - No negative impact anticipated.
(e) Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards - No negative impact
anticipated.
The proposals are justified on the basis of ensuring the safety of the travelling public.
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒

Mitigations:
Marriage &
civil partnership
Potential impacts:
Mitigations:
OTHER RELEVANT CHARACTERISTICS

Page 324

Socio-Economic
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
(deprivation)
Potential impacts:
None
Mitigations:
None.
Carers
Does your analysis indicate a disproportionate impact? Yes ☐ No ☒
Potential impacts:
All sections - No negative impact identified
Mitigations:
None
Other groups [Please add additional rows below to detail the impact for other relevant groups as appropriate e.g.
Asylums and Refugees; Looked after Children / Care Leavers; Homelessness]
Potential impacts:
Anecdotal evidence suggests that a number of members of the trade are refugees or
asylum seekers. Data held (small sample) shows 5% of the trade identify as refugees.
However the policy proposals will have no greater impact than on any other group.
Mitigations:
None. Proposals justified to ensure the safety of the travelling public.

3.2 Does the proposal create any benefits for people based on their protected or other
relevant characteristics?
Outline any potential benefits of the proposal and how they can be maximised. Identify how the proposal will
support our Public Sector Equality Duty to:
 Eliminate unlawful discrimination for a protected group
 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t
 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t
All proposals will enhance the safety of the travelling public. Full details of how the proposals will benefit those
with protected or relevant characteristics can be seen in “Step 4” below.

Step 4: Impact
4.1 How has the equality impact assessment informed or changed the proposal?
What are the main conclusions of this assessment? Use this section to provide an overview of your findings. This
summary can be included in decision pathway reports etc.
If you have identified any significant negative impacts which cannot be mitigated, provide a justification showing
how the proposal is proportionate, necessary, and appropriate despite this.
Summary of significant negative impacts and how they can be mitigated or justified:
DBS Update Service - The impact with regard to the initial cost of the DBS Update Service can be justified through
the improved protection for the travelling public and the savings over time (provided no change to DBS status and
continued subscription to the service).
The DBS update service is portable so if drivers are engaged in other activities requiring a certificate this can also be
used for that purpose. The DBS update service currently costs £13 per annum plus the cost of the original DBS
application which is currently set as £49.50.
There are currently delays with the DBS in terms of the turnaround time of applications which can be exacerbated
when applicants have a complex address history. This can potentially delay licences being issued and therefore have
a negative effect on the livelihood of drivers. By subscribing to the DBS update service these delays should no
longer occur.
Private Hire Operator Policy - We will ensure that our communication about implementation of the policy is clear,
concise and unambiguous.
Card Payments - The potential negative cost impact of installing a mandatory card readers is likely to be mitigated /
offset by other benefits including:
Page 325






An easier and quicker payment method for taxis fares
A reduction in the need to stop off at cash machines if customers need extra cash to pay a fare
Benefit to disabled customers and wheelchair users who may be unable to easily alight from a vehicle to
use a cash point. Customers will be able to arrive at transportation hubs such as Temple Meads without the
need to ensure cash is carried to secure a taxi for hire.
A potential increase in customers who may previously have avoided taxis due to the requirement to pay in
cash

Tints - More vehicles licensed by Bristol City Council, thereby improving the regulatory regime for consumers
booking vehicles and travelling in Bristol.
New vehicles tend to have less transparent glass and additional costs of replacing windows is likely to have a
disproportionate impact on Black, Asian and minority ethnic men, and Muslims because of their high levels of
representations in the taxi trade.
Statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards
 It is recommended that the standards be put into to practice and administered appropriately to mitigate the
risk posed to the public.
 The purpose of setting standards is to protect children and vulnerable adults, and by extension the wider public
when using taxis and private hire vehicles.
 We will discuss with training providers how the tests can meet the needs of disabled people or people speaking
English as additional language and safeguarding training.
 The ability to require existing licence holder to pass a language proficiency test will ensure that all licence
holders can communicate effectively with the public. This is essential as improved communication will help
reduce the potential for any misunderstandings and improve passenger safety and their perception of safety.
For example it will alleviate the potential for passenger uncertainty and anxiety when a driver is unable to
explain why they are taking an alternative route. Benefits could also be realised in the case of a health issue
where the passenger requires medical assistance. Existing licence holders will only be required to undergo the
test if the public safety and protection committee or Licensing Manager decide its necessary. No criteria for
this is currently available and no decision has been made yet on what support may be available
 It is also essential that all licence holders are able to fully understand the legislative requirements and
conditions and communications from the council in its role as the regulator. Understanding these
communications is vital in order to ensure passenger safety.
 Re. Certificates of Good Character – we will provide additional guidance for cases where an applicant is unable
to provide documentation from their country of origin because they are a refugee etc.
 Reasonable adjustments should be made to ensure that applicants and licence holders are given appropriate
support and time to ensure they can meet the standards by this policy.
 Guidelines on the relevance of criminal behaviour - The strengthening of the guidelines are in line with the
national standards proposed by central government (Department for Transport). The DfT have stated that the
guidelines they have set out should be taken to be a minimum in considering whether a licence should be
granted or renewed in most cases. The Department’s view is that this places passenger safety as the priority
while enabling past offenders to sufficiently evidence that they have been successfully rehabilitated so that
they might obtain or retain a licence. Applicants/licence holders will however be given the opportunity to have
their case heard on its own merits and will be entitled to a fair and impartial consideration of their
application/suitability to hold a licence.
 Certificate of good character – these are also recommended by the national standards proposed by central
government (Department for Transport). A Disclosure and Barring Service check cannot access criminal records
held overseas, only foreign convictions that are held on the Police National Computer may, subject to the
disclosure rules, be disclosed. Therefore, a DBS check may not provide a complete picture of an individual’s
criminal record where there have been periods living or working overseas; the same applies when an applicant
has previously spent an extended period (three or more continuous months) outside the UK. As such to ensure
licence holders are fit and proper persons to hold a licence it is essential this certificate is required. As above
should any negative information be received applicants/licence holders will be given the opportunity to have
their case heard on its own merits and will be entitled to a fair and impartial consideration of their
application/suitability to hold a licence.
Summary of positive impacts / opportunities to promote the Public Sector Equality Duty:
DBS Update Service - The impact on applicants and drivers should over time save money, allowing drivers to apply

Page 326

for three year licences more frequently, and reduce the administrative burden for all drivers and applicants,
particularly when there are often delays with DBS certificates which can subsequently impact on whether a licence
is issued and therefore impact on driver’s earnings.
In respect of the public this service will enable checks to be carried out on drivers more frequently therefore it is
likely to increase public safety
Private Hire Operator Policy - Yes. In creating a policy, the standard of operators will be established in respect of
public safety.
Taxis are an integral part of the public transport network, and an overall minimum standard in respect of topics
such as disability awareness and child sex exploitation would benefit and further enhance the safety element of
using taxis as a safe means of transport.
Card Payments - Having a card payment facility for passengers would improve public safety for Hackney Carriage
customers in Bristol. Customers would not have the need to stop and use cash machines late at night and therefore
reduce the risk of robbery or other associated crimes.
Tints – The more vehicles licensed by Bristol City Council, thereby improving the regulatory regime for consumers
booking vehicles and travelling in Bristol
Statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards - Licensing authorities should consider the role that those in the
taxi and private hire vehicle industry can play in spotting and reporting the abuse, exploitation or neglect of children
and vulnerable adults. As with any group of people, it is overwhelmingly the case that those within the industry can
be an asset in the detection and prevention of abuse or neglect of children and vulnerable adults.
The introduction of requirements such as safeguarding training, DBS update service, basic disclosures, certificate of
good character will enable additional checks to be carried out to ensure licence holders are fit and proper to hold a
licence. The introduction of safeguarding training will drivers to :
• provide a safe and suitable service to vulnerable passengers of all ages;
• recognise what makes a person vulnerable; and
• understand how to respond, including how to report safeguarding concerns and where to get advice.
The ability to require all licence holders to pass a language proficiency test is likely to have a positive impact on
people with learning difficulties and hearing difficulties. This is because these groups are more likely to already
experience some barriers to communication.

4.2 Action Plan
Use this section to set out any actions you have identified to improve data, mitigate issues, or maximise
opportunities etc. If an action is to meet the needs of a particular protected group please specify this.
Improvement / action required
Present a report to the Public Safety and Protection Committee with
recommendations including findings of the consultation.

Responsible Officer
Carl Knights`

Timescale
Due on 27 July 2021

4.3 How will the impact of your proposal and actions be measured?
How will you know if you have been successful? Once the activity has been implemented this equality impact
assessment should be periodically reviewed to make sure your changes have been effective your approach is still
appropriate.
DBS Update Service - Through statistics relating to the number of drivers that fail to maintain subscription to the
DBS update service, and the number of drivers that have DBS update check status changes.
Private Hire Operator Policy - Through monitoring of licensed operators and enforcement visits/inspections. The
policy will also create a requirement for licensed operators to report back to the council in respect of training
undertaken for staff.
Page 327

Card Payments - If approved it will be a mandatory requirement for all hackney carriage vehicles to be fitted with a
card payment device. This will be checked by Fleet Services by way of their vehicle inspection check on the initial
granting of the licence and each time the vehicle is due for renewal
Tints – If the proposal is not approved the Licensing Team will monitor the supply of new vehicles to see if the trend
for manufacturer fitted tints increase and the subsequent cost implications of window replacement. If the proposal
is approved any negative feedback from members of the public with regard to tints fitted on licensed vehicles will
be monitored. This element of the policy will be kept under review to determine if any future change is required.
Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards – Taking all of the above into consideration and with the added
conditions in the statutory standards a more proactive approach on deciding whether a licence holder is deemed fit
and proper to hold such a licence.

Step 5: Review
The Equality and Inclusion Team need at least five working days to comment and feedback on your EqIA. EqIAs
should only be marked as reviewed when they provide sufficient information for decision-makers on the equalities
impact of the proposal. Please seek feedback and review from the Equality and Inclusion Team before requesting
sign off from your Director2.

Equality and Inclusion Team Review:

Director Sign-Off:

Reviewed by Equality and Inclusion Team
Date: 14/7/2021

Date: 15/7/2021

2

Review by the Equality and Inclusion Team confirms there is sufficient analysis for decision makers to consider the
likely equality impacts at this stage. This is not an endorsement or approval of the proposal.

Page 328

